
 Marysville City Council Work Session 
April 3, 2017                                       7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
April 10, 2017 City Council meeting. 

 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Approval of the  Agenda 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
A. Premier Golf Annual Report 2016 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
1. Consider the March 6, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
Consent 
2. Consider the March 22, 2017 Claims in the Amount of $804,109.89; Paid by EFT 
Transactions and Check Numbers 115506 through 115689 with No Checks Voided 
 
3. Consider the March 29, 2017 Claims in the Amount of $324,508.30; Paid by EFT 
Transactions and Check Numbers 115690 through 115822 with No Checks Voided 
 
Review Bids 
4. Consider the Contract Award for the Grove Street Improvement Project 
 
Public Hearings  
 
Action Item 
5. Consider an Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Updating the 
City’s Development Regulations and Amending Sections 22A.020.050, 
22A.020.070, 22A.020.200, 22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 22C.010.090, 
22C.010.210, 22C.010.220, 22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, 22C.020.190, 
22C.130.030, 22C.160.080, 22G.080.100, AND 22A.010.160 of the Marysville 
Municipal Code 
 
New Business 
6. Consider the Professional Services Agreement for the State Avenue Widening 
Project from 100th St NE and 116th Street NE 
 
7. Consider a Resolution Appointing the City Clerk as the Agent to Receive Claims 
for Damages Pursuant to RCW 4.96.020 
  

1



 Marysville City Council Work Session 
April 3, 2017                                       7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
April 10, 2017 City Council meeting. 

Legal   
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Staff Business  
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Adjournment/Recess 
 
Executive Session 
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel 
 
C.    Real Estate 
 
Reconvene 
 
Adjournment 
 
Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible 
meetings for people with disabilities.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (360) 363-
8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD Relay) two days prior to 
the meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for this meeting.       
 

2



Index #1
 

3



March 6, 2017 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 p.m.
Excuse the absence of Councilmember Donna Wrightr Approved
Approval of the Agenda Approved
Committee Reports 
Presentations 
Officer Swearing-In -new officers Wade Rediger and Daniel Negron Presented
Code Enforcement Presentation Presented
Audience Participation 
Approval of Minutes  
Consider the February 13, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes 
Consent Agenda 
Consider the February 22, 2017 Claims in the Amount of $997,210.30; 
Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 114750 through 114954 
with Check Numbers 111529 and 113638 Voided 

Approved

Review Bids 
Public Hearings 
New Business 
Consider the Alliance for Housing Affordability Fiscal Year 2018 Budget 
and Work Plan with a Contribution Totaling $6,085.00 

Approved

Consider the Update to the 2017-2022 Capital Facilities Plan with Formal 
Action Requested at the March 27, 2017 City Council Meeting 

Continued

Consider the Lakewood Neighborhood Master Plan with Formal Action 
Requested at the on March 27, 2017 City Council Meeting 

Continued

Consider the Application for Snohomish Running Company to Conduct a 
Special Event on Sunday, April 9, 2017, including the Temporary Street 
Closure of Northbound SR529/State Avenue to 2nd Street, the Eastbound 
Lane of 2nd Street from State Avenue to Alder Avenue, the Southbound 
Lane of Alder Avenue from 2nd Street to the South Side of 1st Street, 
Both Lanes of Columbia Avenue from the South Side of 1st  Street to 2nd 
Street, and 1st Street from Columbia Avenue to State Avenue, as 
Requested by the Applicant 

Approved

Consider Amendment to Paymentus Corporation Agreement Approved
Consider Agreement with Gravity Payments, Inc. for Merchant Services Approved
Consider the Substitute Professional Services Agreement between City of 
Marysville and Billing Document Specialists 

Approved

Consider the Local Agency Supplemental Funding Agreement No. 2 with 
WSDOT for the Grove Street Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements (State 
Ave to Cedar Ave). 

Approved

Consider Amending the City’s Municipal Code and Development 
Regulations by Amending Sections 22A.020.050, 22A.020.070, and 
22A.020.200 of MMC Chapter 22A.020, Definitions; Amending Sections 
22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 22C.010.090, 22C.010.210, and 22C.010.220 
of MMC Chapter 22C.010, Residential Zones; Amending Sections 
22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, and 22C.020.190 of MMC Chapter 22C.020, 
Commercial, Industrial, Recreation and Public Institutional Zones; 

Continued

Item 1 - 1

4



March 6, 2017 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Amending Section 22C.130.030 of MMC Chapter 22C.130 Parking and 
Loading Amending Section 22C.160.080 of MMC Chapter 22C.160 Signs; 
Amending Section 22G.080.100 Of MMC Chapter 22G.080 Planned 
Residential Developments; and Amending Section 22A.010.160 of MMC 
Chapter 22A.010, General Administration, Related to Tracking 
Amendments to the City’s Uniform Development Code 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Marysville, 
Washington, Relinquishing All Interest in the Real Property Located at 
3020 Rucker Avenue in Everett, Washington, to the Snohomish Health 
District 

Approved
Res. No. 2410

Consider an Ordinance Amending Chapter 11.37 of the Municipal Code 
Regarding Qualifications for Tow Truck Operators 

Approved
Ord. No. 3050

Legal 
Mayor’s Business 
Reappointment to the Parks, Culture, and Recreation Board; Katherine 
Smith 

Approved

Staff Business 
Call on Councilmembers 
Adjournment 8:33 p.m.

 

Item 1 - 2

5



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting 
March 6, 2017 

 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. Gene Rutherford of the 
Salvation Army gave the invocation, and Mayor Nehring led those present in the Pledge 
of Allegiance.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Council: Steve Muller, Kamille Norton, Jeff Seibert, Michael Stevens, 

Rob Toyer, and Jeff Vaughan  
 
Absent: Donna Wright  
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City 
Attorney Jon Walker, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, 
Parks and Recreation Director Jim Ballew, Community 
Development Director Dave Koenig, Fire Chief Martin 
McFalls, Planning Manager Holland, Senior Planner Cheryl 
Dungan, Senior Planner Angela Gemmer, Commander 
Mark Thomas, Financial Operations Manager John Nield 
and Recording Secretary Laurie Hugdahl.  

 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
excuse Councilmember Wright. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Committee Reports  
 

Item 1 - 3

6



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

Presentations 
 
A.  Officer Swearing-In 
 
Chief Smith introduced new officers Wade Rediger and Daniel Negron. Mayor Nehring 
swore in the new officers.  
 
B.  Code Enforcement Presentation 
 
Commander Thomas gave a PowerPoint presentation reviewing a 30-day update of the 
reorganized Code Enforcement Program. He commended staff for their support in 
making this program successful.  
 
Councilmember Muller asked Commander Thomas if he thinks they are getting more 
positive response because of the uniformed staff. Commander Thomas commented that 
he thinks it is more a result of the proactive approach. 
 
Councilmember Toyer asked if there has been any non-compliance. Commander 
Thomas indicated that there has. He referred to the sheet showing the notices of 
infractions. He reviewed how the process works.  
 
Audience Participation 
 
Evan Kaiser, 2910 73rd Ave. NE, Marysville, WA referred to and read portions of two 
emails which he sent to the Council today regarding proposed code amendments (item 
11 under New Business). He spoke against the proposed amendments to the definitions 
of signs and the flagpole height limit and recommended further study of these issues. 
He expressed concern and stated that the Planning Commission and planning staff 
wasn’t supplied all the relevant information.  
 
Mr. Kaiser then referred to the Code Enforcement presentation and asked if the outline 
for the Code Enforcement division would be available online. Commander Thomas was 
not sure if it would be online or not. Mr. Kaiser asked a question about a noise 
enforcement issue. Commander Thomas responded. 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1.  Consider the February 13, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve the February 13, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes with Councilmember 
Toyer abstaining. Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 

Item 1 - 4

7



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

Consent  
 
2.  Consider the February 22, 2017 Claims in the Amount of $997,210.30; Paid by 

EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 114750 through 114954 with Check 
Numbers 111529 and 113638 Voided 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve Consent Agenda item 2. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Review Bids  
 
Public Hearings 
 
New Business 
 
3.  Consider the Alliance for Housing Affordability Fiscal Year 2018 Budget and 

Work Plan with a Contribution Totaling $6,085.00 
 
Planning Manager Holland reviewed this item and recommended that Council approve 
the allocation.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the Alliance for Housing Affordability Fiscal Year 2018 Budget and Work Plan 
with a Contribution Totaling $6,085.00. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
4.  Consider the Update to the 2017-2022 Capital Facilities Plan with Formal Action 

Requested at the March 27, 2017 City Council Meeting. 
 
Senior Planner Dungan reviewed the update to the 2017-2022 Capital Facilities Plan. 
No action was requested. 
 
5.  Consider the Lakewood Neighborhood Master Plan with Formal Action 

Requested at the on March 27, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Planning Manager Holland made a PowerPoint presentation regarding the Lakewood 
Neighborhood Master Plan (LNMP). Staff will be requesting action on March 27. 
 
Councilmember Seibert referred to the issue with 169th and asked if the plan is to 
approve the road going straight or curved south. Planning Manager Holland explained 
that it may change, but it has to meet engineering standards.  
 
6.  Consider the Application for Snohomish Running Company to Conduct a Special 

Event on Sunday, April 9, 2017, including the Temporary Street Closure of 
Northbound SR529/State Avenue to 2nd Street, the Eastbound Lane of 2nd 
Street from State Avenue to Alder Avenue, the Southbound Lane of Alder 
Avenue from 2nd Street to the South Side of 1st Street, Both Lanes of Columbia 

Item 1 - 5

8



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

Avenue from the South Side of 1st  Street to 2nd Street, and 1st Street from 
Columbia Avenue to State Avenue, as Requested by the Applicant 

 
Director Koenig reviewed this item and explained it is for a half marathon which has 
happened before in recent years.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to the 
Application for Snohomish Running Company to Conduct a Special Event on Sunday, 
April 9, 2017, including the Temporary Street Closure of Northbound SR529/State 
Avenue to 2nd Street, the Eastbound Lane of 2nd Street from State Avenue to Alder 
Avenue, the Southbound Lane of Alder Avenue from 2nd Street to the South Side of 1st 
Street, Both Lanes of Columbia Avenue from the South Side of 1st  Street to 2nd Street, 
and 1st Street from Columbia Avenue to State Avenue, as Requested by the Applicant. 
Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
7.  Consider Amendment to Paymentus Corporation Agreement 
 
Finance Director Langdon explained that 7, 8, and 9 all relate to online bill pay. 
Financial Operations Manager John Nield reviewed these items.  
 
Councilmember Vaughan asked about the length of the term. Financial Operations 
Manager John Nield explained that they are both for 60-months. Councilmember 
Vaughan asked about a liquidated damages clause. Mr. Nield explained that they were 
not tied to Gravity at all. Councilmember Vaughan noted that it looks like an early 
termination would result in fees paid to Gravity so there is still a potential cost. Mr. Nield 
explained that according to Deputy City Attorney Olivers, the early termination fee would 
be $495.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement extension between the City of Marysville and 
Paymentus Corporation. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
8.  Consider Agreement with Gravity Payments, Inc. for Merchant Services 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
authorize the Mayor to accept Gravity Payments’ waiver of rights and sign the 
Agreement between the City of Marysville, Gravity Payments, and Wells Fargo Bank, 
N.A.  Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
9.   Consider the Substitute Professional Services Agreement between City of 

Marysville and Billing Document Specialists 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Substitute Professional Services Agreement between 
City of Marysville and Billing Document Specialists. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

Item 1 - 6

9



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

10.  Consider the Local Agency Supplemental Funding Agreement No. 2 with 
WSDOT for the Grove Street Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements (State Ave to 
Cedar Ave). 

 
Director Nielsen explained that the project came in less than the contract amount so the 
percentages need to be reallocated.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign and execute the Local Agency Supplemental Funding 
Agreement No. 2 with WSDOT for the Grove Street Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Improvements (State Ave to Cedar Ave). Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
11.  Consider Amending the City’s Municipal Code and Development Regulations by 

Amending Sections 22A.020.050, 22A.020.070, and 22A.020.200 of MMC 
Chapter 22A.020, Definitions; Amending Sections 22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 
22C.010.090, 22C.010.210, and 22C.010.220 of MMC Chapter 22C.010, 
Residential Zones; Amending Sections 22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, and 
22C.020.190 of MMC Chapter 22C.020, Commercial, Industrial, Recreation and 
Public Institutional Zones; Amending Section 22C.130.030 of MMC Chapter 
22C.130 Parking and Loading Amending Section 22C.160.080 of MMC Chapter 
22C.160 Signs; Amending Section 22G.080.100 Of MMC Chapter 22G.080 
Planned Residential Developments; and Amending Section 22A.010.160 of MMC 
Chapter 22A.010, General Administration, Related to Tracking Amendments to 
the City’s Uniform Development Code 

 
Senior Planner Gemmer reviewed the proposed code amendments related to flags and 
flagpoles, single family/duplex/townhouse parking requirement clarifications, duplex 
dimensional standards, adding and amending zoning definitions, shipping containers 
standards (primarily in residential zones), manufactured homes age administrative 
variance, and residential accessory structure clarifications. She also responded to Mr. 
Kaiser’s concerns. Additionally, Director Koenig discussed this item. He explained that 
flagpoles haven’t been an issue so far, and staff feels that permits should not be 
required. He explained that the City does not want to be in the role of enforcing the 
content of flags. City Attorney Walker stated that based on the Supreme Court decision 
his recommendation is that the City should not regulate the content of flags.  
 
Councilmember Muller asked if the size of flags would be regulated. Director Koenig 
commented that they did not address the size of flags. He pointed out that most 
communities do not regulate flags at all.  
 
Mayor Nehring noted that this item will be back to the Council on March 27.  
 
12.  Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Marysville, Washington, 

Relinquishing All Interest in the Real Property Located at 3020 Rucker Avenue in 
Everett, Washington, to the Snohomish Health District 

 

Item 1 - 7

10



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

City Attorney Walker stated that this would clear up any title issues associated with this 
building so the Health District is able to move forward with selling the building. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve Resolution No. 2410. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
13.  Consider an Ordinance Amending Chapter 11.37 of the Municipal Code 

Regarding Qualifications for Tow Truck Operators  
 
City Attorney Walker explained the need for this item.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
approve Ordinance No. 3050. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
14.  Reappointment to the Parks, Culture, and Recreation Board; Katherine Smith 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the reappointment of Katherine Smith to the Parks, Culture, and Recreation 
Board. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Staff Business 
 
Chief Smith: 

 Citizens Academy is going well. Personnel and participants are enjoying it. 
 Commander Thomas wanted to make sure to acknowledge Community Service 

Officer Dave Vasconi and his work on code enforcement efforts.  
 
Sandy Langdon had no additional comments.  
 
Jon Walker had no additional comments. 
 
Dave Koenig thanked the Mayor and Gloria Hirashima for the clear direction on code 
enforcement. 
 
Chief McFalls had no additional comments. 
 
Jim Ballew:  

 MTV will be in Marysville doing an episode at Jennings Park.  
 He noted that the next two performances at the Opera House look like they are 

going to be sold out.  
 The new recreation guide should be out next week. 

 

Item 1 - 8

11



DRAFT 

 
3/6/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Kevin Nielsen noted that snow was falling and urged everyone to be careful. 
 
CAO Hirashima: 

 She thanked Code Enforcements for their efforts and a nice presentation by 
Commander Thomas. 

 She thanked the Community Development group for their work and the 
Lakewood Plan. 

 She thanked Director Nielsen and Public Works for the work they will be doing 
tonight.  

 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Jeff Vaughan had no additional comments. 
 
Jeff Seibert thanked staff for the Lakewood Master Plan. He acknowledged the amount 
of work that has gone into that.  
 
Michael Stevens had no additional comments. 
 
Rob Toyer had no additional comments. 
 
Steven Muller thanked staff for the Lakewood Plan 
 
Kamille Norton had no additional comments. 
 
Executive Session  
 
A.  Litigation  
 
B.  Personnel  
 
C.  Real Estate 
 
Adjournment 
 
Seeing no further business Mayor Nehring adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m. 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2017. 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  
Mayor April O’Brien 
Jon Nehring Deputy City Clerk 

Item 1 - 9

12



Index #2
 

13



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: April 10, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: AGENDA SECTION: 
Claims 

PREPARED BY: AGENDA NUMBER: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: APPROVED BY: 
Claims Listings 

MAYOR ICAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the 
March 22, 2017 claims in the amount of $804,109.89 paid by EFT transactions and 
Check No. 115506 through 115689 with no Check No.'s voided. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 2 - 1

14



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-3 

I , THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF $804 , 109 . 89 PAI D 
BY EFT TRANSACTIONS AND CHECK NO.' S 115506 THROUGH 115689 WITH NO CHECK 
NO .' S VOIDED ARE JUST, DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CI TY OF 
MARYSVILLE, AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID 
CLAIMS . 

AUDITING OFFICER DATE 

MAYOR DATE 

WE , THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY 
APPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS lQ th DAY OF APRIL 
2017. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER 

Item 2 - 2

15



DATE: 3/22/201 7 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAG E: I 
T IME: 9:33:36AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115506 REVENUE, DEPT OF SALES & USE TAXES CITY CLERK 0.09 

REVENUE, DEPT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 1.23 
REVENUE, DEPT OF POLICE ADMINISTRATION 29.62 
REVENUE, DEPT OF RECREATION SERVICES 32.06 
REVENUE, DEPT OF INFORMATION SERVICES 36.31 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GOLF ADMINISTRATION 80.35 
REVENUE, DEPT OF ER&R 170.96 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GENERAL FUND 319.16 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GARBAGE 410.00 
REVENUE, DEPT OF WATER/SEWER OPERATION 1,251.67 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GOLF COURSE 1,609.63 
REVENUE, DEPT OF STORM DRAINAGE 5,981 .92 
REVENUE, DEPT OF SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 30,977.31 
REVENUE, DEPT OF UTILADMIN 63,971 .06 

115507 LICENSING, DEPT OF CPLACH BATCH 3/17/17 GENERAL FUND 678 .00 
115508 LICENSING, DEPT OF STATE GUN DEALERS LICENSE-MARL GENERAL FUND 125.00 
115509 ADVANTAGE BUILDING S JANITORIAL SERVICE WATER FILTRATION PLANT 81 .19 

ADVANTAGE BUILDING S COMMUNITY CENTER 811 .88 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 811 .88 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS UTILADMIN 811 .88 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS COURT FACILITIES 1,217.81 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS CITY HALL 1,217.81 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 1,510.09 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS MAINT OF GENL PLANT 1,623.74 
ADVANTAGE BUILDINGS PARK & RECREATION FAC 3,653.43 

115510 ARAMARK UNIFORM UNIFORM SERVICE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 6.55 
ARAMARK UNIFORM EQUIPMENT RENTAL 69 .11 

115511 ARLINGTON , CITY OF ARL CHRISTIAN SCHOOL SOURCE OF SUPPLY 128.48 
115512 ATSI ANNUAL CALIBRATION CITY STREETS -62.67 

ATSI TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 751.30 
115513 BANK OF AMERICA MANAGER/SUPERVISOR LUNCH MEETI EXECUTIVE ADMIN 267.92 
11551 4 BANK OF AMERICA PARKING REIMBURSEMENT EXECUTIVE ADMIN 18.00 
115515 BANK OF AMERICA SECURITY/WEB SERVICE REIMBURSE COMPUTER SERVICES 24.12 
115516 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT MUNICIPAL COURTS 83 .89 
115517 BANK OF AMERICA MEMBERSHIP DUES REIMBURSEMENT POLICE ADMINISTRATION 90.00 
115518 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT LEGAL - PROSECUTION 211 .21 
115519 BANK OF AMERICA ADVERTISING REIMBURSEMENT RECREATION SERVICES 45.00 

BANK OF AMERICA OPERA HOUSE 175.00 

115520 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL!TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT ER&R -8.55 
BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 90.23 

BANK OF AMERICA EQUIPMENT RENTAL 102.50 

BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 185.00 

115521 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT UTILADMIN 400 .00 

11 5522 BANK OF AMERICA GENERAL FUND -6 .87 
BANK OF AMERICA OFFICE OPERATIONS 50.00 

BANK OF AMERICA K9 PROGRAM 76 .70 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE PATROL 121 .91 

BANK OF AMERICA K9 PROGRAM 200.00 

115523 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL/TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT GENERAL FUND -79.42 

BANK OF AMERICA PARK & RECREATION FAC 13.50 

BANK OF AMERICA OPERA HOUSE 597.33 

BANK OF AMERICA OPERA HOUSE 603.45 

115524 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT POLICE TRAINING-FIREARMS 180.00 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE PATROL 392 .96 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE ADMINISTRATION 1,062 .20 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE INVESTIGATION 1,757.32 

115525 BANK OF AMERICA FINANCE-GENL 19.65 

BANK OF AMERICA EXECUTIVE ADMIN 139.66 

BANK OF AMERICA PARK & RECREATION FAC 154.55 

BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 154.55 
BANK OF AMERICA EXECUTIVE ADMIN 319.29 

Item 2 - 3

16



DATE: 3/22/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 2 
TIM E: 9:33:36AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115525 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT EXECUTIVE ADMIN 1,212 .84 

BANK OF AMERICA CITY COUNCIL 4,215.68 
115526 BILLING DOCUMENT SPE BILL PRINTING SERVICE UTILITY BILLING 1,447.62 
115527 BORGES, ELIZABETH INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 75.60 
115528 BOTESCH, NASH & HALL PUBLIC SAFETY FEASIBILITY STUD NON-DEPARTMENTAL 232 .50 
115529 CARVER, VICKI INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 189.00 
115530 CASCADE COLUMBIA POLY ALUMINUM CHLORIDE WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 11 ,892.78 

CASCADE COLUMBIA WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 12,277.36 
115531 CATHOLIC COMMUNITY CDBG-CCS CHORE SERVICES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 398 .94 

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 404.48 
115532 CEMEX ASPHALT ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 137.59 

CEMEX ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 142.28 
CEMEX ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 155.61 

115533 CENTRAL WELDING SUPP STEEL WIRE ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 41 .95 
CENTRAL WELDING SUPP SAFETY GLASSES ER&R 56.16 
CENTRAL WELDING SUPP WYPALL WIPES ER&R 248 .62 

115534 CHAMPION BOLT HARDWARE AND PAINT MARKER WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 71.62 
115535 COMMERCIAL FIRE FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE ER&R 68.76 
115536 CONSOLIDATED PRESS CITYSCENE NEWSLETIER UTILITY BILLING 1,306.03 
115537 CONSOLIDATED SUPPLY PLUG WRENCH WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 20.26 
115538 COOP SUPPLY BUCKETS AND ROPE WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 81 .77 
115539 CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF INMATE MEALS DETENTION & CORRECTION 3,546.32 
115540 COSTLESS SENIOR SRVC INMATE PRESCRIPTIONS DETENTION & CORRECTION 259.86 

COSTLESS SENIOR SRVC DETENTION & CORRECTION 533.19 
115541 CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER COOLER RENTAL/BOTILED WA SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 6.29 

CRYSTAL SPRINGS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 96.96 
115542 DELL PC REPLACEMENT IS REPLACEMENT ACCOUNn 1,105.35 
115543 DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-7175 POLICE PATROL 43 .64 

DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-9373 POLICE PATROL 43 .64 
DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-9508 POLICE PATROL 43.64 
DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-9775 POLICE PATROL 43.64 
DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-8657 POLICE PATROL 114.66 
DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-9657 POLICE PATROL 114.66 

115544 DIXON, DIANE REFUND CLASS FEES PARKS-RECREATION 35.00 
115545 DMCMA DMCMA SPRING REGIONAL (3) MUNICIPAL COURTS 75.00 
115546 DONNELSON ELECTRIC HVAC WORK-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 1,260.11 

DONNELSON ELECTRIC TRIM OUT OFFICE IN PW BLDG MAINT OF GENL PLANT 3,175.46 

DONNELSON ELECTRIC SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 3,175.46 

115547 DORCAS, JOHN REIMBURSE EMPLOYEE FAREWELL LU COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 178.00 
115548 DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL IMPACT DRIVER SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 291 .51 
115549 E&E LUMBER BRASS CAPS FACILITY REPLACEMENT 4.89 

E&E LUMBER CASING-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 5.18 

E&E LUMBER CLEANING SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 10.77 

E&E LUMBER ENTRY LOCK MAINT OF GENL PLANT 16.22 

E&E LUMBER HARDWARE, TUBE AND P-TRAP-WELC FACILITY REPLACEMENT 18.29 

E&E LUMBER BIT ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 18.84 

E&E LUMBER HOLDER-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 19.15 

E&E LUMBER MDF-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 19.90 

E&E LUMBER CABLE TIES , PAINT AND PARTICLE PARK & RECREATION FAC 21.22 

E&E LUMBER LUMBER AND TRAPS PARK & RECREATION FAC 44.81 

E&E LUMBER PAINT AND FASTENERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 82.74 

E&E LUMBER PAINT PARK & RECREATION FAC 103.66 

E&E LUMBER PAINT, LINE AND SHIMS-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 372.27 

115550 EAST JORDAN IRON WOR VALVE TOPS, LIDS AND KEYS WATER DIST MAINS 624 .79 

115551 EDGE ANALYTICAL LAB ANALYSIS WATER QUAL TREATMENT 10.50 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 10.50 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 12.00 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 12.00 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 12.00 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 12.00 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 24.00 
Item 2 - 4

17



DATE: 3/22/20 I 7 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
TIME: 9:33:36AM PAGE: 3 

INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115551 EDGE ANALYTICAL LAB ANALYSIS WATER QUAL TREATMENT 24.00 

EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 189.00 
EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 189.00 
EDGE ANALYTICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 968.00 

115552 EIJKELKAMP NORTH AME CALIBRATION FLUID WATER/SEWER OPERATION -7.10 
EIJKELKAMP NORTH AME STORM DRAINAGE 85.15 

115553 EMERALD HILLS COFFEE SUPPLIES BAXTER CENTER APPRE 82.63 
115554 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 1 ST QTR 2017 EMERGENCY SERVICE NON-DEPARTMENTAL 19,176.51 
115555 ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUC GRAB CLAWS WATER/SEWER OPERATION -59.51 

ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUC FLANGE, REDUCER AND ADAPTER WATER/SEWER OPERATION -46.22 
ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUC SEWER MAIN COLLECTION 554.14 
ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUC GRAB CLAWS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 713.50 

115556 ESRI DESKTOP AND SERVER MAINTENANCE STORM DRAINAGE 5,498.49 
ESRI UTILADMIN 5,498.49 
ESRI COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 5,498.49 

115557 EVERED STEEL CO STEEL ANGLE AND FLAT BARS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 202.34 
115558 EVERED, CITY OF LAB ANALYSIS STORM DRAINAGE 216.00 
115559 EVERED, CITY TREAS WATER FILTRATION SERVICES SOURCE OF SUPPLY 212,438.40 
115560 EVERGREEN STATE HVAC REPAIR PARK & RECREATION FAC 316.39 
115561 EVIDENT, INC. EVIDENCE SUPPLIES GENERAL FUND -1 .07 

EVIDENT, INC. POLICE PATROL 12.82 
115562 EWING IRRIGATION HERBICIDES ROADSIDE VEGETATION 1,317.88 
115563 FASTENAL COMPANY PED PARTS TRANSPORTATION MANAGEI\/ 25.17 
115564 FORSLOF, WALLACE PER DIEM 3/4-3/10 POLICE PATROL 223.00 
115565 FRED MEYER PITCHERS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 35.38 
115566 FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065836350725085 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 47.46 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI UTILADMIN 47.47 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #3606577 4950927115 STREET LIGHTING 48 .33 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065809240222175 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 147.53 

115567 GALLS, LLC NAMETAG POLICE ADMINISTRATION 17.40 
GALLS, LLC COMMENDATION BARS POLICE ADMINISTRATION 198.02 
GALLS, LLC NIK KITS POLICE PATROL 566.23 

115568 GIESBRECHT, BRADFORD INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 240.00 
115569 GIGGLES ENTERTAINMEN RECREATION SERVICES 168.00 
115570 GONZALES, MICHAEL & UB 240566000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 14.07 
115571 GORDON TRUCK CENTER 2017 FREIGHTLINER MT45 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 16,203 .63 

GORDON TRUCK CENTER EQUIPMENT RENTAL 20,000.00 
GORDON TRUCK CENTER EQUIPMENT RENTAL 75,000.00 

115572 GRAINGER ADAPTER AND BUSHING WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 22.61 
GRAINGER SUMP PUMP WATER DIST MAINS 129.69 
GRAINGER SUMP PUMPS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 522.85 

115573 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO NETWORK WALLMOUNT CABINET-WELC FACILITY REPLACEMENT 375.27 
115574 GREEN RIVER CC WA OPERATOR WORKSHOP-EVANS UTILADMIN 225.00 
115575 GREENHAUS PORTABLE PORTABLE PARK & RECREATION FAC 255.00 
115576 GREENSHIELDS HOSE ASSEMBLY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 125.34 

GREENSHIELDS BOLTCUDER WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 178.97 
115577 GREG RAIRDONS DODGE WIPER BLADES AND KEY FAUBS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 477.42 
115578 GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENDER PUBLIC DEFENSE 75.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 187.50 
GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 187.50 
GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 262 .50 
GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 262.50 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 
GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 
GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

115579 GROUP HEALTH DOT PHYSICALS (4) PARK & RECREATION FAC 95.00 
GROUP HEALTH SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 95.00 

Item 2 - 5

18



DATE: 3/22/201 7 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
TIM E: 9:3 3:3 6AM PAGE: 4 

INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115579 GROUP HEALTH DOT PHYSICALS (4) PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 95 .00 

GROUP HEALTH UTILADMIN 190.00 
115580 HACH COMPANY POCKET COLORIMETERS WATER QUAL TREATMENT 1,000.19 
115581 HARVEY, JENNIFER A INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 168.00 
115582 HD FOWLER COMPANY COUPLINGS STORM DRAINAGE 22.73 

HD FOWLER COMPANY BREAKER AND REPAIR KIT WATER DIST MAINS 95 .22 
HD FOWLER COMPANY COUPLING AND PVC PIPE STORM DRAINAGE 196.35 
HD FOWLER COMPANY GASKETED TEES AND PCV PIPE STORM DRAINAGE 269 .59 
HD FOWLER COMPANY METER SEITERS WATER/SEWER OPERATION 674.45 
HD FOWLER COMPANY BURYHYDRANTANDHOTBOX WATER SERVICES 788 .26 
HD FOWLER COMPANY METER BOXES AND LIDS WATER/SEWER OPERATION 967.17 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 67TH AVE MAIN BREAK SUPPLIES WATER DIST MAINS 1,159.22 

115583 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS OIL AND GREASE HYDRANTS 88 .37 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS PLASTIC BOXES W/LIDS AND WATER WATER SERVICES 872.59 

115584 HEWLETI PACKARD PRINTER MAINTENANCE POLICE PATROL 0.11 
HEWLETI PACKARD COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 3.51 
HEWLETI PACKARD PARK & RECREATION FAC 13.84 
HEWLETI PACKARD WATER QUAL TREATMENT 35.47 
HEWLETI PACKARD POLICE INVESTIGATION 36.46 
HEWLETI PACKARD LEGAL - PROSECUTION 40 .32 
HEWLETI PACKARD FINANCE-GENL 53 .36 
HEWLETI PACKARD CITY CLERK 53 .37 
HEWLETI PACKARD MUNICIPAL COURTS 81 .16 
HEWLETI PACKARD WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 90.22 
HEWLETI PACKARD UTILITY BILLING 131 .34 
HEWLETI PACKARD COMPUTER SERVICES 426.60 

115585 HILTI INC CORE DRILL GENERAL SERVICES - OVER~ 1,962.71 
115586 HIMALAYA HOMES-RENTA UB 766109000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 60.45 
115587 HIMALAYA HOMES-RENTA UB 768105860000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 93.57 
115588 HINES, HAROLD J UB 620710000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 107.57 
115589 INDUSTRIAL CONTROLS BREAKERS AND POWER SUPPLY WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 515.73 
115590 J. THAYER COMPANY OFFICE SUPPLIES WATER DIST MAINS 299.00 
115591 JOHNSON , NANCY REFUND CLASS FEES PARKS-RECREATION 35.00 

JOHNSON, NANCY PARKS-RECREATION 35.00 
115592 KEEFE, RYAN M REIBURSE CCS/GOAMP EXAM FEES UTILADMIN 149.00 
115593 KEN BLANCHARD COMPAN SL II EXPENSES EXECUTIVE ADMIN 360.31 

KEN BLANCHARD COMPAN SL II EXPERIENCE 2 DAY SESSION EXECUTIVE ADMIN 4,426.01 
115594 KING , ANGELA INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 180.00 

KING, ANGELA RECREATION SERVICES 294.00 
115595 KUMMERLE, JAMES & CH UB 800551000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 0.74 

KUMMERLE, JAMES & CH WATER/SEWER OPERATION 317 .31 
115596 LANCE, GABE REIMBURSE COL RENEWAL FEES UTILADMIN 102 .00 
115597 LANGUAGE LINE INTERPRETER SERVICES OFFICE OPERATIONS 27.43 
115598 LASTING IMPRESSIONS SAFETY JACKET UTILADMIN 131 .87 

LASTING IMPRESSIONS SHIRTS CRIME PREVENTION 194.77 
115599 LAWN EQUIPMENT SUPPL ROPE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 66 .70 
115600 LEAL, ERIC ANGEL UB 240568664002 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 141.27 
115601 LOOMIS ARMORED TRUCK SERVICE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 97 .30 

LOOMIS UTILADMIN 97 .30 
LOOMIS GOLF ADMINISTRATION 155.68 
LOOMIS UTILITY BILLING 194.60 
LOOMIS POLICE ADMINISTRATION 389.20 
LOOMIS MUNICIPAL COURTS 389.20 

115602 LOWES HIW INC RETURN WRENCH SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS -1 02.62 

LOWES HIW INC LIGHT FIXTURE AND BULBS-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 20.70 

LOWES HIW INC LUMBER AND WOOD FILL MAINT OF GENL PLANT 42.46 

LOWES HIW INC WRENCH AND SOCKETS SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 117.93 

LOWES HIW INC SMALL TOOLS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 244.65 
LOWES HIW INC VANITY, MIRROR, FAUCET AND BAS FACILITY REPLACEMENT 253.20 
LOWES HIW INC 4X8'S PRIMED-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 364.40 

115603 MAPLES, JAMES PER DIEM 3/4-3/10 POLICE INVESTIGATION 223.00 
Item 2 - 6

19



DATE: 3/22/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 5 TIM E: 9:33:36AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115604 MARSHALL, KEVIN LEE UB 983914000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 199.29 
115605 MARYSVILLE FORD BRAKE ROTORS AND BRAKE PADS ER&R 160.84 
115606 MARYSVILLE PRINTING BUSINESS CARDS POLICE ADMINISTRATION 42.49 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING ENVELOPES WATER FILTRATION PLANT 85.10 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING STORM DRAINAGE 85.10 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING OFFER FORMS LEGAL - PROSECUTION 100.14 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING OPERA HOUSE FLYERS OPERA HOUSE 106.37 

115607 MARYSVILLE, CITY OF UTILITY SERVICE-1218 1ST ST OF PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 159.99 
MARYSVILLE, CITY OF UTILITY SERVICE-6802 84TH ST N GOLF ADMINISTRATION 198.97 

115608 MILLER, NANCY REFUND CLASS FEES PARKS-RECREATION 15.00 
115609 MILLER, REUBEN & JUD UB 986724290000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 18.00 
115610 MIZELL, TARA REIMBURSE EASTER EGG HUNT EXPE RECREATION SERVICES 117.73 
115611 MOBILEGUARD, INC. TEXT MESSAGE ARCHIVING COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 6.55 

MOBILEGUARD, INC. PROPERTY TASK FORCE 6.55 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. RECREATION SERVICES 6.55 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 6.55 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. OFFICE OPERATIONS 13.10 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 13.10 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. GENERAL SERVICES - OVER~ 13.10 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. FACILITY MAINTENANCE 13.10 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. LEGAL - PROSECUTION 19.65 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. PARK & RECREATION FAC 19.65 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. WATER QUAL TREATMENT 19.65 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. EXECUTIVE ADMIN 26.20 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. YOUTH SERVICES 26.20 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. STORM DRAINAGE 39.30 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. POLICE INVESTIGATION 45.85 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 45 .85 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. UTILADMIN 52.40 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. DETENTION & CORRECTION 72 .05 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. COMPUTER SERVICES 81 .25 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. POLICE ADMINISTRATION 91 .70 
MOBILEGUARD, INC. POLICE PATROL 281 .65 

115612 MORRIS, scon & DEBB UB 987329000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 20.31 
115613 MOTOR TRUCKS TOWELS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 202.80 
115614 MOTOROLA RADIOS POLICE PATROL 7,236.81 
115615 NATIONAL BARRICADE SIGNS TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 1,281 .75 
115616 NAVIA BENEFIT FLEX PLAN FEES PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 66.40 
115617 NELSON PETROLEUM OIL ER&R 1,276.74 

NELSON PETROLEUM BULK OIL AND TRANS FLUID ER&R 2,327.90 
115618 NEXSITE ONLINE SPRING/SUMMER ACTIVITY GUIDE PARK & RECREATION FAC 6,072 .05 
115619 NORTH SOUND HOSE COMPRESSOR HOSES WATER DIST MAINS 96.88 
115620 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES ENGR-GENL 6.81 

OFFICE DEPOT UTILADMIN 10.69 
OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 21.08 
OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 61.07 
OFFICE DEPOT UTILADMIN 76 .54 
OFFICE DEPOT ENGR-GENL 76 .54 
OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 91 .29 
OFFICE DEPOT ENGR-GENL 122.06 
OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 138.22 
OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 187.00 
OFFICE DEPOT COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 250.00 

115621 OLMOS, AMANDA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 
115622 OVERHEAD DOOR COMPAN DOOR REPAIR PARK & RECREATION FAC 172.38 
115623 PACIFIC PLUMBING EYEWASH REPAIR VALVE WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 104.61 
115624 PAPE MACHINERY FITIINGS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 81 .93 

PAPE MACHINERY REPAIR AND SERVICE STORM PUMP STORM DRAINAGE 1,879.64 
115625 PARR LUMBER CO MINI DRILL W/CHARGER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 109.09 
115626 PART WORKS INC, THE CHECK MODULE AND BALL VALVES WATER CROSS CNTL 258 .80 

PART WORKS INC, THE RESTROOM FIXTURES AND ACCESSOR GMA-PARKS 4,683.34 
Item 2 - 7

20



DATE: 3/22/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 6 
TIME: 9:33 :36AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115627 PARTS STORE, THE WIPER BLADE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 9.57 

PARTS STORE, THE GAS CAP EQUIPMENT RENTAL 9.90 
PARTS STORE, THE FILTER KIT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 10.28 
PARTS STORE, THE GREASE AND SILICONE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 39.37 
PARTS STORE, THE SPARK PLUGS AND BOOT KIT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 41 .57 
PARTS STORE, THE AIR AND OIL FILTERS ER&R 139.55 
PARTS STORE, THE OIL, FUEL AND AIR FILTERS ER&R 148.17 
PARTS STORE, THE OZZY JUICE AND MAT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 523.59 

115628 PARTS MASTER RIVETS AND BITS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 600.75 
115629 PAYMENTUS TRANSACTION FEES UTILITY BILLING 15,508.97 
115630 PB LOADER CORP PUMP W/RELIEF VALVE ER&R -185.44 

PB LOADER CORP CONTROL BOX AND WIRE PLUGS ER&R -79.89 
PB LOADER CORP EQUIPMENT RENTAL 957.83 
PB LOADER CORP PUMP W/RELIEF VALVE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,223.26 

115631 PENTAIR VALVES REPAIR VALVE ACTUATOR AND ADJU WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 437.27 
115632 PETERSON, CHAD UB 987001380000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 518.12 
115633 PETROCARD SYSTEMS FUEL CONSUMED SMALL ENGINE SHOP 34.19 

PETROCARD SYSTEMS STORM DRAINAGE 37.58 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 65.57 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS FACILITY MAINTENANCE 65.77 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 73.53 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 228.73 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS PARK & RECREATION FAC 256.50 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS GENERAL SERVICES - OVER~ 2,030.76 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS MAINT OF EQUIPMENT 2,673.10 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 2,686.93 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS POLICE PATROL 5,002 .84 

115634 PETTY CASH- POLICE REIMBURSE SPECIAL EVENT SUPPL! PROPERTY TASK FORCE 28.34 
PETTY CASH- POLICE POLICE PATROL 56.29 

115635 PICK OF THE LITIER GRAPHHIC DESIGN PARK & RECREATION FAC 1,855.00 

115636 PILCHUCK RENTALS HOSE AND COUPLERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 239.78 
PILCHUCK RENTALS LIFT RENTAL MAINTENANCE 381 .85 

115637 PLATI ELECTRIC BULBS AND UTILITY KNIFE FACILITY MAINTENANCE 20.59 

PLATI ELECTRIC COURT FACILITIES 28.76 

PLATI ELECTRIC AMR/MTU CONNECTORS WATER SERVICES 113.90 

115638 PUBLIC AGENCY TRAIN TRAINING (3) POLICE TRAINING-FIREARMS 1,485.00 

115639 PUD ACCT #2011-4209-8 PARK & RECREATION FAC 7.83 

PUD ACCT #2042-5946-9 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 15.58 

PUD ACCT #2042-6034-3 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 15.58 

PUD ACCT #2042-6262-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 15.58 

PUD ACCT #2020-1258-9 PARK & RECREATION FAC 16.14 

PUD ACCT #2051-9537-3 PARK & RECREATION FAC 17.25 

PUD ACCT #2054-8182-3 GOLF ADMINISTRATION 17.81 

PUD ACCT #2024-6102-6 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 23.22 

PUD ACCT #2005-0161-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEN 24.06 

PUD ACCT #2009-7395-6 SEWER LIFT STATION 25.24 

PUD ACCT #2011-4215-5 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEN 34.48 

PUD ACCT #2200-2050-7 STREET LIGHTING 34.87 

PUD ACCT #2004-4880-1 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEN 40.27 

PUD ACCT #2022-9424-5 SEWER LIFT STATION 45.23 

PUD ACCT #2035-0002-0 STREET LIGHTING 46.55 

PUD ACCT #2048-2969-1 STREET LIGHTING 55.05 

PUD ACCT #2023-0330-1 SEWER LIFT STATION 62.42 

PUD ACCT #2006-6043-9 STREET LIGHTING 67 .32 

PUD ACCT #2020-1181-3 PUMPING PLANT 69.64 

PUD ACCT #2039-9634-3 STREET LIGHTING 70.82 

PUD ACCT #2206-8134-0 STORM DRAINAGE 79.73 

PUD ACCT #2016-7563-4 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 80.20 

PUD ACCT #2000-6146-3 PARK & RECREATION FAC 83.62 

PUD ACCT #2010-9896-9 PUMPING PLANT 89.38 

PUD ACCT #2019-0963-7 SEWER LIFT STATION 127.86 
Item 2 - 8

21



DATE: 3/22/201 7 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 7 T IM E: 9:33:36AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115639 PUD ACCT #2032-9121-6 GENERAL SERVICES - OVERr 128.51 

PUD ACCT #2008-1280-8 PUMPING PLANT 161 .86 
PUD ACCT #2016-2888-0 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 165.09 
PUD ACCT #2211-1593-4 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 169.81 
PUD ACCT #2010-4638-0 PARK & RECREATION FAC 287.32 
PUD ACCT #2200-2051-1 STREET LIGHTING 322.59 
PUD ACCT #2015-8728-4 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 781 .29 
PUD ACCT #2021-7733-3 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 814.48 
PUD ACCT #2000-2187-1 COURT FACILITIES 947.61 
PUD ACCT #2016-1747-9 CITY HALL 1,161.49 
PUD ACCT #2016-3968-9 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 1,738 .52 

115640 REYNOLDS, BRIAN UB 847262000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 28.97 
115641 RH2 ENGINEERING INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS 14,406.07 
115642 ROTIER, GINNA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 
115643 RUANO, BLANCA REFUND RENTAL FEES PARKS-RECREATION 85.00 

RUANO, BLANCA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 
115644 RYAN POWERS UB 680361500006 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 65.56 
115645 SAFEWAY INC. MEETING SUPPLIES UTILADMIN 46.92 
115646 SAFEWAY INC. EXECUTIVE ADMIN 77.48 
115647 SAFEWAY INC. SPECIAL EVENT SUPPLIES RECREATION SERVICES 65.75 

SAFEWAY INC. BAXTER CENTER APP RE 203.65 
115648 SCIENTIFIC SUPPLY FILTER PAPERS, FLASK AND CYLIN WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 240 .13 
115649 SCORE INMATE HOUSING DETENTION & CORRECTION 15,229.20 
115650 SEASIDE LANDSCAPE RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200 .00 
115651 SERVICEMASTER CLEANING SERVICE-JENNINGS CARE PARK & RECREATION FAC 675 .00 
115652 SHRED-IT US MONTHLY SHREDDING SERVICE PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 4.56 

SHRED-IT US CITY CLERK 4.56 
SHRED-IT US POLICE PATROL 25.00 
SHRED-IT US OFFICE OPERATIONS 25.16 

115653 SOUND PUBLISHING LEGAL ADS CITY CLERK 57.65 
115654 SOUND PUBLISHING EMPLOYMENT ADS GENERAL SERVICES - OVERr 324.00 

SOUND PUBLISHING UTILADMIN 356.50 
SOUND PUBLISHING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 359.00 

115655 SOUND SAFETY EAR PLUGS AND BOOT SAVERS ER&R 77.30 
SOUND SAFETY RUBBER BOOTS-FREEMAN UTILADMIN 116.84 
SOUND SAFETY JEANS AND JACKETS-ROTH PARK & RECREATION FAC 141 .69 
SOUND SAFETY BOOTS-DAVIS UTILADMIN 152.86 
SOUND SAFETY JEANS-IMADHAY PURCHASING/CENTRAL STOF 176.09 
SOUND SAFETY JEANS AND BOOTS-EVANS UTILADMIN 339.21 
SOUND SAFETY NEEDLE/SYRINGE KEEPERS ER&R 461.49 
SOUND SAFETY SHIRTS ER&R 563.88 

115656 SOUTHERN COMPUTER SCANNERS MUNICIPAL COURTS 345.72 
SOUTHERN COMPUTER PROBATION 1,037.16 

115657 SPENCER, BRENDA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200.00 
115658 SPRINGBROOK NURSERY BARK ROADSIDE VEGETATION 428 .11 

SPRINGBROOK NURSERY ROADSIDE VEGETATION 428 .11 
115659 STAPLES OFFICE SUPPLIES COMMUNITY CENTER 5.60 

STAPLES PARK & RECREATION FAC 31 .63 
115660 STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 180.00 

STATE PATROL FINGERPRINT ID SERVICES GENERAL FUND 360.00 
115661 STEUBER DISTRIBUTING HANGING BASKET SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 255.29 
11 5662 SUPPLYWORKS DEGREASER ER&R 320.97 
11 5663 T & A SUPPLY CO INC COVE BASES-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 337.38 
115664 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT HARDWARE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 923.46 
115665 TAYLORS EXCAVATORS RETAINAGE ON PAY ESTIMATE #1 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 7,297.75 

115666 THE ESTATE OF GARY D UB 281070000002 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 10.66 

115667 THOMAS, MARK REIMBURSE MEALS POLICE ADMINISTRATION 31 .09 
THOMAS, MARK REIMBURSE MEALS-COMMAND TRAINI POLICE ADMINISTRATION 86.88 

115668 TOKAY SOFTWARE ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT WATER CROSS CNTL 530.00 
115669 TOTEM ELECTRIC PAY ESTIMATE #2 GMA- STREET 33,904.50 

TOTEM ELECTRIC PAY ESTIMATE #3 GMA- STREET 49 ,066.17 
Item 2 - 9

22



DAT E: 3/22/2017 
TIM E: 9:33:36AM 

CHK# VENDOR 

115670 TWITCHELL, KRISTA & 
115671 ULINE 

ULINE 
115672 US BANK NA 
115673 USA BLUEBOOK 
115674 UTILITIES UNDERGROUN 
115675 VAN DAM'S ABBEY 
115676 VINYL SIGNS & BANNER 
115677 WA ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

WA ASPHALT PAVEMENT 
115678 WABO 
115679 WALTER E NELSON CO. 
115680 WAPRO 
115681 WASTE MANAGEMENT 
115682 WEST PAYMENT CENTER 

WEST PAYMENT CENTER 
WEST PAYMENT CENTER 

115683 WESTERN FACILITIES 
115684 WESTERN SYSTEMS 
115685 WHISTLE WORKWEAR 
115686 WILLIAM & TERRY ANOE 
115687 WILSON, CHRISTY 
115688 WINELAND, CARL 
115689 YAKIMA COUNTY DOC 

REASON FOR VOIDS: 

UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 

INITIATOR ERROR 

WRONG VENDOR 

CHECK LOST/DAMAGED IN MAIL 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 8 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/16/2017 TO 3/22/2017 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
UB 460080000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 24.95 
55 GALLON STEEL DRUM ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 182.09 
55 GALLON STEEL DRUM (10) PARK & RECREATION FAC 1,114.67 
UB 621420000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 21 .77 
VALVE BOX KEYS AND FIRST AID K WATER RESERVOIRS 1,307.44 
EXCAVATION NOTICES UTILITY LOCATING 264 .88 
CARPET AND INSTALLATION-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 4,465.76 
CORRUGATED PLASTIC OPERA HOUSE 30.00 
ASPHALT WORKSHOP AND TRAINING ENGR-GENL 140.00 

TRAINING 280 .00 
EMPLOYMENT AD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 100.00 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 601.75 
2017 WAPRO SPRING TRAINING-BRO CITY CLERK 200.00 
RECYCLE PILOT RECYCLING OPERATION 2,763 .87 
WEST INFORMATION CHARGES POLICE INVESTIGATION 246.41 

LEGAL - PROSECUTION 425.49 
LEGAL-GENL 425 .50 

FINANCE CHARGE DETENTION & CORRECTION 6.95 
INVENTORY PARTS ER&R 3,551.33 
JEANS & BOOTS-WINELAND UTILADMIN 270.23 
UB 300800000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 15.73 
U B 5211 00000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 2.32 
REIMBURSE TRAINING EXPENSE UTILADMIN 31 .07 
INMATE HOUSING DETENTION & CORRECTION 14,843.72 

WARRANT TOTAL: 804,109.89 

Item 2 - 10

23



Index #3
 

24



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: April 10, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: AGENDA SECTION: 
Claims 

PREPARED BY: AGENDA NUMBER: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: APPROVED BY: 
Claims Listings 

MAYOR ICAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the 
March 29, 2017 claims in the amount of $324,508.30 paid by EFT transactions and 
Check No. 115690 throuj?;h 115822 with no Check No.'s voided. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 3 - 1

25



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-3 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF $324,508.30 PAID 
BY EFT TRANSACTIONS AND CHECK NO.' S 115690 THROUGH 115822 WITH NO CHECK 
NO.' S VOIDED ARE JUST, DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE, AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID 
CLAIMS. 

AUDITING OFFICER DATE 

MAYOR DATE 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY 
APPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS lQth DAY OF APRIL 
2017. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER 

Item 3 - 2

26



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: I 
TIME: 8:37:2 IAM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115690 LICENSING, DEPT OF CPLACH WIRE 3/23/17 GENERAL FUND 183.00 
115691 ARAMARK UNIFORM UNIFORM SERVICE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 6.55 

ARAMARK UNIFORM EQUIPMENT RENTAL 69.11 
ARAMARK UNIFORM LINEN SERVICE OPERA HOUSE 78.45 
ARAMARK UNIFORM OPERA HOUSE 78.45 
ARAMARK UNIFORM OPERA HOUSE 78.45 

115692 ASKANDER, LOLA INTERPRETER SERVICES COURTS 150.00 
ASKANDER, LOLA COURTS 150.00 

115693 BHC CONSULTANTS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS 44,912.23 
115694 BILLING DOCUMENT SPE BILL PRINTING SERVICE UTILITY BILLING 4,402.74 
115695 BLUE MARBLE ENV WASTE REDUCTION/RECYCLING EDUC RECYCLING OPERATION 8,433.90 
115696 BRYANT, RON REIMBURSE MEALS-TRAINING UTILADMIN 67.25 
115697 BUCHANAN SERVICES VEHICLE LIFT INSPECTIONS/SERVI EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,518.91 
115698 BUDLONG, KIMELA REFUND CLASS FEES PARKS-RECREATION 15.75 

BUDLONG, KIMELA PARKS-RECREATION 15.75 
115699 CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON CAR WASHES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 4.50 

CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON POLICE PATROL 67.50 
115700 CENTURY 21 NORTH HOM UB 091910000001 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 34.19 
115701 CHAMPION BOLT BRUSH SEWER MAIN COLLECTION 55.01 

CHAMPION BOLT INSERT AND KIT SEWER MAIN COLLECTION 240.04 
115702 Cl TECHNOLOGIES INC IA PRO RENEWAL POLICE ADMINISTRATION 2,043.13 
115703 COMCAST CABLE SERVICE-KBCC BAXTER CENTER APPRE 61.45 

COMCAST MONTHLY BROADBAND CHARGE COMPUTER SERVICES 131.21 
115704 COMMAND SOURCING JAIL SUPPLIES GENERAL FUND -24.52 

COMMAND SOURCING DETENTION & CORRECTION 293.90 
115705 CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF INMATE MEAL CREDIT DETENTION & CORRECTION -45.84 

CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF INMATE MEALS DETENTION & CORRECTION 2,687.97 
115706 CPI PLUMBING & HEAT! REFUND PERMIT FEES NON-BUS LICENSES AND PEF 65.00 
115707 CTS LANGUAGE LINK INTERPRETER SERVICES COURTS 31 .94 

CTS LANGUAGE LINK COURTS 95.34 

115708 CUES SOFTWARE AND SUPPORT WATER/SEWER OPERATION -163.80 
CUES SEWER MAIN COLLECTION 981 .90 

CUES STORM DRAINAGE 981.90 

115709 CULLINAN, THADDEUS UB 094813000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 285.03 

115710 DENNIS, ELDON LEOFF 1 REIMBURSEMENT POLICE ADMINISTRATION 328.79 
115711 DIAMOND B CONSTRUCT REPLACE CONTROL FUSE WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 164.20 

DIAMOND B CONSTRUCT CHECK HEAT PUMP-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 529.14 

DIAMOND B CONSTRUCT REPAIR HEATING SYSTEM NON-DEPARTMENTAL 641.16 

DIAMOND B CONSTRUCT HEAT PUMP REPAIR WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 954.24 

DIAMOND B CONSTRUCT CLEAN FAN GRILLS PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 1,640.32 

115712 DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-#P148 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 43.64 

DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-03931 POLICE PATROL 43.64 

DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-11073 POLICE PATROL 43.64 

DICKS TOWING TOWING EXPENSE-MP17-11585 POLICE PATROL 43.64 

115713 DOPPS, MARIA C. INTERPRETER SERVICES COURTS 125.00 

115714 DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL BOOTS-SCOTT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 162.39 

115715 E&E LUMBER BOLT PARK & RECREATION FAC 1.56 

E&E LUMBER BOLTS PARK & RECREATION FAC 4.39 

E&E LUMBER FASTENERS AND UTILTY KNIFE PARK & RECREATION FAC 6.19 

E&E LUMBER BATTERIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 13.60 

E&E LUMBER CORD AND MOUNTING PAD PARK & RECREATION FAC 26.65 

E&E LUMBER WHEEL PARK & RECREATION FAC 36.65 

E&E LUMBER CORD AND CASTER PARK & RECREATION FAC 38.46 

E&E LUMBER PAINT AND SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 53.36 

E&E LUMBER PARK & RECREATION FAC 260.39 
Item 3 - 3

27



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 2 
TIME: 8:37:2 IAM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115716 EAGLE FENCE INSTALL CHAIN LINK GATE AND PO PARK & RECREATION FAC 600.05 
115717 ECOLOGY, DEPT. OF WASTEWATER FEES UTILADMIN 19,594.44 
115718 EDGE ANALYTICAL LAB ANALYSIS WATER QUAL TREATMENT 189.00 
115719 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY SCREENING POLICE PATROL 9.50 

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY POLICE PATROL 9.50 
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY POLICE PATROL 9.50 

115720 EVERETT STAMP WORKS NOTARY STAMP AND LOG BOOK OFFICE OPERATIONS 68.57 
115721 EVERETT STEEL CO TUBES AND ANGLE ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 59.34 
115722 FARLEY, CHRISTOPHER PER DIEM 4/24-4/27 POLICE PATROL 224.00 
115723 FAUBION, ALAN U B 860330000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 113.27 
115724 FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT# 42539763250319985 PARK & RECREATION FAC 54.48 
115725 FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065125170927115 STREET LIGHTING 48.33 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065827660617105 MUNICIPAL COURTS 67.57 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065831360617105 MUNICIPAL COURTS 67.57 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065962121015935 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 67.57 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065976670111075 OFFICE OPERATIONS 67.57 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #25300981920624965 SEWER LIFT STATION 85.62 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065191230801065 WATER FILTRATION PLANT 99.05 

115726 GALLS, LLC AWARD BARS POLICE ADMINISTRATION 47.79 

GALLS, LLC UNIFORM-DAVIS COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 459.73 
115727 GILLINGS, FRED REIMBURSE OFFICE SUPPLY PURCHA MUNICIPAL COURTS 37.10 
115728 GLOBALSTAR INC. PHONE SERVICE OFFICE OPERATIONS 77.89 

115729 GOOBY, TERESA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200.00 

115730 GOVCONNECTION INC SURFACE 3 KEYBOARDS COMPUTER SERVICES 122.71 

GOVCONNECTION INC IS REPLACEMENT ACCOUNn 122.72 

115731 GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE PAYMENT CITY CLERK 30.19 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI EXECUTIVE ADMIN 30.19 

GREATAMERICA FINANCI FINANCE-GENL 30.19 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 30.19 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI UTILITY BILLING 30.19 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI LEGAL - PROSECUTION 30.19 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI POLICE INVESTIGATION 36.22 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI POLICE PATROL 36.22 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI OFFICE OPERATIONS 36.22 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI DETENTION & CORRECTION 36.22 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI POLICE ADMINISTRATION 36.22 

GREATAMERICA FINANCI COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 38.54 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI ENGR-GENL 38.54 

GREATAMERICA Fl NANCI UTILADMIN 38 .55 

115732 GREENSHIELDS HOSE ASSEMBLY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 85.80 

115733 GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENDER PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

115734 HARRISON, JOHN UB 070010000000 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 30.98 

115735 HD FOWLER COMPANY HARDWARE SIDEWALKS MAINTENANCE 7.64 

HD FOWLER COMPANY HYDRANT REPAIR PARTS HYDRANTS 126.12 

HD FOWLER COMPANY HARDWARE WATER/SEWER OPERATION 503.91 

HD FOWLER COMPANY SETTERS WATER/SEWER OPERATION 570.10 

115736 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS AMR METERS WATER SERVICE INSTALL 4,469.18 

115737 HIRSCH, GARY & TAMMY U B 051230000002 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 17.49 

115738 HYLARIDES, LETTIE INTERPRETER SERVICES COURTS 112.50 

HYLARIDES, LETTIE COURTS 112.50 

115739 INDUSTRIAL CONTROLS POWER SUPPLY AND BREAKERS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 270.81 

115740 JESSEN, ROBBIN RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 

115741 JOHNSON, JOBY PER DIEM 4/24-4/27 POLICE PATROL 224.00 

115742 JOHNSON, KRISTIE REFUND CLASS FEES PARKS-RECREATION 35.00 

115743 KELLER SUPPLY COM PAN RETURN ACCESSORIES-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 82.35 
Item 3 - 4

28



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 3 TIME: 8:37:2 IAM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115743 KELLER SUPPLY COMPAN TOILET AND ACCESSORIES-WELCO FACILITY REPLACEMENT 285.00 
115744 KIELAND, BRONWYN PER DIEM 4/11-4/14 POLICE INVESTIGATION 288.00 
115745 KIM, JAMIE S. PUBLIC DEFENDER PUBLIC DEFENSE 180.00 

KIM, JAMIE S. PUBLIC DEFENSE 180.00 
KIM, JAMIE S. PUBLIC DEFENSE 180.00 
KIM, JAMIE S. PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

115746 KINGSFORD, ANDREA REIMBURSE SPECIAL EVENT SUPPLY RECREATION SERVICES 25.59 
KINGSFORD, ANDREA RECREATION SERVICES 133.76 
KINGSFORD, ANDREA OPERA HOUSE 206.79 

115747 LICENSING, DEPT OF NOTARY FEE-SCHNEIDER UTILITY BILLING 30.00 
115748 LICENSING, DEPT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST MUNICIPAL COURTS 2.00 
115749 MAGNET FORENSICS INVESTIGATION TOOL GENERAL FUND -79.63 

MAGNET FORENSICS POLICE INVESTIGATION 954.63 
115750 MARKS GUTIERS INC GUTIER REPAIR PARK & RECREATION FAG 218.20 
115751 MARYSVILLE AWARDS NAMEPLATE POLICE ADMINISTRATION 25.42 
115752 MARYSVILLE PRINTING ENVELOPESANDFORMS PROBATION 52.24 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING MUNICIPAL COURTS 156.71 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING PO BOOKS PURCHASING/CENTRAL STOF 278.73 

115753 MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USAGE-TMS RECREATION SERVICES 72.00 
MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USAGE-CEDARCREST RECREATION SERVICES 244.00 

115754 MCLOUGHLIN & EARDLEY STROBE AND LIGHT BAR BULBS ER&R 537.38 
115755 MOTOR TRUCKS CLEVIS KIT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 12.97 

MOTOR TRUCKS CHAMBER EQUIPMENT RENTAL 58.43 
MOTOR TRUCKS BRAKE VALVE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 205.29 

115756 MOUNT, HERMAN LEOFF 1 REIMBURSEMENT POLICE ADMINISTRATION 314.70 
115757 MUNOZ, AMANDA RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 
115758 MYERS, TAMI & STEVEN UB 849000367001 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 300.28 
115759 NOREGON SYSTEMS JPRO SOFTWARE RENEWAL ER&R -90.91 

NOREGON SYSTEMS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,089.91 
115760 NORPOINT SHOOTING GUN RANGE RENTAL POLICE PATROL 32.73 

115761 NORTH COUNTY OUTLOOK ADVERTISING OPERA HOUSE 220.00 

115762 NORTH SOUND HOSE HARDWARE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 63.54 
115763 NORTON, WORTH REIMBURSE MILEAGE/SUPPLIES/SOF INFORMATION SERVICES -27.60 

NORTON, WORTH WATER/SEWER OPERATION -4.55 

NORTON, WORTH COMPUTER SERVICES 12.21 

NORTON, WORTH STORM DRAINAGE 54.50 

NORTON, WORTH COMPUTER SERVICES 75.00 

NORTON, WORTH COMPUTER SERVICES 405.73 

NORTON, WORTH CENTRAL SERVICES 682 .63 

115764 NW PROPERTY MANAGEME UB 760009500001 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 259.17 

115765 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES PROPERTY TASK FORCE 41 .22 

OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES/COFFEE MAKER FINANCE-GENL 50.63 

OFFICE DEPOT CITY CLERK 53.81 

OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES FINANCE-GENL 65.98 

OFFICE DEPOT CITY CLERK 65.98 

OFFICE DEPOT CITY COUNCIL 65.98 

OFFICE DEPOT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 140.71 

OFFICE DEPOT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 225.02 

OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES/COFFEE MAKER CITY HALL 240.01 

OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES POLICE PATROL 242.10 

OFFICE DEPOT UTILITY BILLING 397 .61 

115766 OLASON, MONICA INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 50.40 

OLASON, MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 84.00 

OLASON, MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 162.00 

OLASON, MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 168.00 Item 3 - 5

29



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 4 
TIME: 8:37 :21AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115766 OLASON, MONICA INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 192.00 

OLASON, MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 234.00 
OLASON , MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 288.00 
OLASON, MONICA RECREATION SERVICES 312.00 

115767 OLSON, PAM RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200.00 
115768 PARR LUMBER CO MINI DRILL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 109.09 
115769 PARTS STORE, THE SPARK PLUG EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.41 

PARTS STORE, THE FILTER EQUIPMENT RENTAL 10.38 
PARTS STORE, THE FILTERS AND WIPER BLADES ER&R 112.24 
PARTS STORE, THE FLUID STREET CLEANING 140.08 
PARTS STORE, THE OZZY JUICE AND MATS SMALL ENGINE SHOP 155.98 

115770 PEACE OF MIND MINUTE TAKING SERVICE CITY CLERK 150.40 
115771 PETIY CASH- PARKS SPECIAL EVENT SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 19.77 

PETIY CASH- PARKS OPERA HOUSE 69.46 
115772 PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 10.02 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 23.97 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 26.67 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 48 .23 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 51 .04 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 62 .13 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 62 .13 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 62 .65 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL MAINTENANCE 65.18 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 87.08 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 115.11 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 117.00 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 120.11 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL MAINTENANCE 123.72 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 127.69 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 140.48 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 175.00 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 184.59 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 253.68 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 313.94 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 318.21 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 373 .60 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 560.81 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 976.97 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 1,060.53 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 1,949.58 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 2,000.00 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 2,485.21 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE 3,367.67 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 4,070.08 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 5,097 .88 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 7,302.36 

115773 PHAM, JOSEPH INTERPRETER SERVICES COURTS 125.00 

115774 PLATI ELECTRIC DISCONNECTS STREET LIGHTING 38.33 

PLATI ELECTRIC BBS SUPPLIES STREET LIGHTING 56.1 9 

115775 PROHN , STEPHANIE UB 420760090605 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 23.33 

115776 PUD ACCT #2012-2506-7 PARK & RECREATION FAC 234.05 

115777 PUD ACCT #2051-3624-5 SEWER LIFT STATION 15.30 

PUD ACCT #2024-6103-4 UTILADMIN 15.90 

PUD ACCT #2020-3113-4 PUMPING PLANT 16.85 

PUD ACCT #2016-6804-3 PARK & RECREATION FAC 23.07 

Item 3 - 6

30



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 5 TIM E: 8:37:21AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115777 PUD ACCT #2024-9948-9 COMMUNITY EVENTS 23 .80 

PUD ACCT #2035-6975-1 STORM DRAINAGE 26.31 
PUD ACCT #2024-7643-8 SEWER LIFT STATION 28.25 
PUD ACCT #2026-9433-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 35.70 
PUD ACCT #2010-6528-1 PARK & RECREATION FAC 37.40 
PUD ACCT #2027-9465-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 38.06 
PUD ACCT #2031-9973-2 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 40.45 
PUD ACCT #2020-1258-9 PARK & RECREATION FAC 44.19 
PUD ACCT #2025-2469-0 PUMPING PLANT 49.60 
PUD ACCT #2034-3089-7 STREET LIGHTING 49.69 
PUD ACCT #2021-7595-6 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 55.01 
PUD ACCT #2023-6854-4 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 58 .61 
PUD ACCT #2022-8858-5 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 63.23 
PUD ACCT #2005-7184-2 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 64 .36 
PUD ACCT #2035-1961-6 NON-DEPARTMENTAL 67.14 
PUD ACCT #2000-8403-6 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 87.32 
PUD ACCT #2052-3773-8 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 111 .64 
PUD ACCT #2052-3927-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 129.42 
PUD ACCT #2024-2648-2 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 132.85 
PUD ACCT #2207-6117-5 OPERA HOUSE 150.29 
PUD ACCT #2211-9254-5 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 168.23 
PUD ACCT #2007-9006-1 PARK & RECREATION FAG 177.76 
PUD ACCT #2002-2385-7 PARK & RECREATION FAC 192.91 
PUD ACCT #2048-2122-7 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 237.58 
PUD ACCT #2054-1976-5 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 239.24 
PUD ACCT #2032-2345-8 PARK & RECREATION FAC 252 .25 
PUD ACCT #2012-4769-9 STREET LIGHTING 336.78 
PUD ACCT #2000-7044-9 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 346.93 
PUD ACCT #2023-0972-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 385 .83 

PUD ACCT #2010-2160-7 PARK & RECREATION FAC 500.82 

PUD ACCT #2208-2414-8 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 540.63 

PUD ACCT #2004-7954-1 COMMUNITY CENTER 602 .11 

PUD ACCT #2011-4 725-3 PUMPING PLANT 1, 163.26 

PUD ACCT #2008-2454-8 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 1,342.20 

PUD ACCT #2003-034 7-7 WATER FILTRATION PLANT 1,997.27 

PUD ACCT #2014-6303-1 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 3,087.84 

PUD ACCT #2015-7792-1 PUMPING PLANT 3,753.97 

PUD ACCT #2020-7500-8 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 5,518 .12 

PUD ACCT #2014-2063-5 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 13,121 .58 

PUD ACCT #2017-2118-0 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 15,095.00 

115778 PUGET SOUND SECURITY KEYS MADE POLICE PATROL 18.27 

115779 PUGET SOUND SECURITY SECURITY SERVICES PROBATION 807.68 

PUGET SOUND SECURITY MUNICIPAL COURTS 2,423.07 

115780 QALTEK CALIBRATION AND LEAK TEST UTILADMIN 674.00 

115781 RANGANATH, CASABA UB 761279000001 GARBAGE 326.76 

115782 RICOH USA, INC. PRINTER/COPIER CHARGES GENERAL SERVICES - OVER~ 11 .39 

RICOH USA, INC. OFFICE OPERATIONS 11 .80 

RICOH USA, INC. COMMUNITY CENTER 14.71 

RICOH USA, INC. WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 54.27 

RICOH USA, INC. PROPERTY TASK FORCE 58.72 

RICOH USA, INC. PROBATION 91 .59 

RICOH USA, INC. PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 98.08 

RICOH USA, INC. PARK & RECREATION FAG 111 .32 

RICOH USA, INC. POLICE PATROL 128.81 

RICOH USA, INC. ENGR-GENL 132.69 

Item 3 - 7

31



DATE: 3/29/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 6 TIME: 8:37:21AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
115782 RICOH USA, INC. PRINTER/COPIER CHARGES UTILADMIN 208 .79 

RICOH USA, INC. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 258.86 
115783 RMT EQUIPMENT KUBOTA RTV900 GOLF CAPITAL OUTLAY 9,055.30 
115784 ROY ROBINSON TAIL LIGHT ASSEMBLY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 171 .83 
115785 RUSDEN, JOHN PRO-TEM SERVICES MUNICIPAL COURTS 370.00 

RUSDEN , JOHN MUNICIPAL COURTS 555.00 
115786 SAGE, SUSAN UB 870299100001 WATER/SEWER OPERATION 38 .98 
115787 SAUK SUIATILE INDIAN BAIL POSTED GENERAL FUND 25.00 
115788 SCWBOA BASKETBALL REFS RECREATION SERVICES 2,513.00 
115789 SEA-ALASKA INDUSTRIA REPAIR PUMP #1 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 1,086.09 
115790 SEAHURST ELECTRIC REFUND ELEC PERMIT FEES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 59.15 
115791 SHACKLETON, CORI PER DIEM 4/11-4/14 POLICE INVESTIGATION 288.00 
115792 SITELINES PARK & PLA RUTHERFORD BENCH PARK & RECREATION FAC 1,956.16 
115793 SIX ROBBLEES INC HITCH MOUNT, PIN AND BALL EQUIPMENT RENTAL 49.58 
115794 SNO CO TREASURER INMATE HOUSING DETENTION & CORRECTION 54,189.62 
115795 SNURE SEMINARS 2017 SATURDAY SEMINAR SERIES EXECUTIVE ADMIN 140.00 
115796 SOUND PUBLISHING LEGAL ADS GMA- STREET 436.80 
115797 SOUND PUBLISHING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 453.02 
115798 SOUND PUBLISHING ADVERTISING OPERA HOUSE 945.00 
115799 SOUND SAFETY PANTS-NORSBY FACILITY MAINTENANCE 54 .60 
115800 SOUTHERN COMPUTER SCANNERS POLICE PATROL 730.71 
115801 STATE PATROL ACCESS USER FEE OFFICE OPERATIONS 600.00 
115802 STERLING RENTALS OPERA HOUSE LEASE PAYMENT OPERA HOUSE 5,203.37 
115803 SUBURBAN PROPANE PROPANE TANK RENTAL MAINTENANCE 1.09 

SUBURBAN PROPANE PROPANE CHARGES PARK & RECREATION FAC 750.67 

115804 SUEZ TREATMENT BALLASTS, WIRING AND DCA WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 3,091 .11 

115805 SUMMIT LAW GROUP GENERAL LABOR PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 855.50 

115806 SUN BADGE CO BADGES GENERAL FUND -82.86 

SUN BADGE CO POLICE PATROL 218 .20 

SUN BADGE CO POLICE ADMINISTRATION 775.16 

115807 SUNQUEST HOMES REFUND APPLICATION FEES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 500.00 

115808 SUPPLYWORKS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES UTILADMIN 258.22 

SUPPLYWORKS COURT FACILITIES 325.22 

SUPPLYWORKS MAINT OF GENL PLANT 428.08 

SUPPLYWORKS CITY HALL 437.80 

SUPPLYWORKS PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 459.61 

115809 SWANK MOTION PICTURE OPERA HOUSE MOVIE OPERA HOUSE 120.00 

115810 SWICK-LAFAVE, JULIE REIMBURSE JAIL SUPPLY EXPENSE DETENTION & CORRECTION 87.77 

115811 TOTEM ELECTRIC PAY ESTIMATE #4 GMA- STREET 7,717.46 

115812 TRANSPORTATION, DEPT PROJECT COSTS GMA-PARKS 56.79 

TRANSPORTATION, DEPT GMA- STREET 732 .20 

115813 UNITED PARCEL SERVIC SHIPPING EXPENSE POLICE PATROL -6.67 

UNITED PARCEL SERVIC POLICE PATROL 51.80 

115814 VERIZON WIRELESS CHARGES PURCHASING/CENTRAL STOF 20.09 

VERIZON CRIME PREVENTION 40.18 

VERIZON UTILITY BILLING 40.18 

VERIZON PROPERTY TASK FORCE 55.11 

VERIZON PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 55.11 

VERIZON EQUIPMENT RENTAL 60.27 

VERIZON FACILITY MAINTENANCE 110.22 

VERIZON FINANCE-GENL 120.22 

VERIZON LEGAL-GENL 120.91 

VERIZON RECREATION SERVICES 155.56 

VERIZON SOLID WASTE CUSTOMER EX 162.71 

VERIZON LEGAL - PROSECUTION 165.33 

Item 3 - 8

32



DATE: 3/29/2017 
TIME: 8:37:21AM 

CHK# VENDOR 

115814 VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 
VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 
VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

VERIZON 

115815 VERMEULEN, ADAM 

115816 WA AUDIOLOGY SRVCS 

115817 WA STATE TREASURER 

115818 WALKER SPECIALTY 

115819 WAL TON BEVERAGE CO 
115820 WHITE CAP CONSTRUCT 

115821 YOUNG, MICHAEL 

115822 ZARETZKE, NATE 

REASON FOR VOIDS : 

UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 

INITIATOR ERROR 

WRONG VENDOR 

CHECK LOST/DAMAGED IN MAIL 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 7 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 3/23/2017 TO 3/29/2017 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
WIRELESS CHARGES COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 165.58 

PARK & RECREATION FAC 170.49 

OFFICE OPERATIONS 190.58 

YOUTH SERVICES 220.44 

EXECUTIVE ADMIN 230.44 

MUNICIPAL COURTS 245.35 

WATER SUPPLY MAINS 320.08 

WATER QUAL TREATMENT 345.46 

GENERAL SERVICES - OVER!- 371 .39 

WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 385.98 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 395.96 

DETENTION & CORRECTION 396.15 

ENGR-GENL 426.16 

SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 480.12 

STORM DRAINAGE 536.62 

COMPUTER SERVICES 616.83 

POLICE INVESTIGATION 655.94 

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 736.41 

UTILADMIN 1,781.16 

POLICE PATROL 4,689.15 

PER DIEM 3/4-3/10 POLICE PATROL 223.00 

TESTING EXECUTIVE ADMIN 2,127.40 

FORFEITURE QTR 4 2016 DRUG SEIZURE 968.45 

ASBESTOS REMOVAL PARK & RECREATION FAC 7,173.33 

BEVERAGES-OPERA HOUSE OPERA HOUSE 50.70 

SEALANT AND UTILITY KNIFE ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 196.43 

PER DIEM 4/24-4/27 POLICE PATROL 224.00 

PER DIEM 4/10-4/12 POLICE PATROL 54.00 

WARRANT TOTAL: 324,508.30 

Item 3 - 9

33



Index #4
 

34



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: April 10, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Contract Award - Grove Street Improvements Project 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 
1--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----1 

Kyle Woods, Project Engineer 

DEPARTMENT: 
Engineering 

ATTACHMENTS: 

None 

BUDGET CODE: 
Schedule A: Sewer Replacement 
40230594.563000.SR&R 
Schedule B: Overlay 10200030.548000.TB701 

SUMMARY: ff< ' 
~;> v 

The work of this contract involves the consttuctmn of two '&id schedules, A and B. Schedule A "'"'"''" '~:;.. ·.· ... ~"~ 
involves the construction sanitary sewer fadlities 'c>n Grov~ Street from Alder A venue to 4 7th 
AVE NE. Schedule A also includes sTI~repaf~1:ton, "'cu;b, gutter, and sidewalk, trench patch, 
removal of structures, and side seW~r ins'ti~~!ion.S~hedule B involves the grind and overlay of 
Grove Stree~ from State Ave~rneI!~'*47~_YE'~::,Th.e ~ork also. includes site preparation, c.urb, 
gutter and sidewalk, pede~~U~.9.. ra~!?g, pavegient gnndmg, pavmg, traffic control loops, video 
detection, and channelization. · '<" .. p 

~ '1'.,-

~~ ·",.ov? 
The project was advertise~ or a Mardr 28, 2017 bid opening. The City received X bids. The low 
bidder was X at $X~:' he>_EngiQ,~fJ~>Estimate for this project is $747,817.40 

-:: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign and execute the Grove Street 
Improvements project with X in the amount of $X, including Washington State Sales Tax and 
approve a management reserve of $X for a total allocation of $X. 

Item 4 - 1

35



Index #5
 

36



Item 5 - 1

37



ALTERNATIVE FLAGPOLE HEIGHT – OPTION A 
 

adjacent townhome or apartment development, provided the required setback applied to 

said development shall not exceed 60 feet. The setback shall be measured from said 

property line to the closest point of each single-family detached dwelling unit, excluding 

projections allowed per MMC 22C.010.210 and accessory structures existing at the time the 

townhome or apartment development receives approval by the city. 

(11) Townhome setbacks are reduced to zero on an interior side yard setback where the units 

have a common wall for zero lot line developments. 

(12) Townhome setbacks are reduced to five feet on side yard setbacks provided the buildings 

meet a 10-foot separation between structures. 

(13) Single-family detached units and duplexes on individual lots within the R-12 through R-28, 

and WR-R-6-18 zones shall utilize the dimensional requirements of the R-8 zone, except the 

base density. 

(14) Provided that the front yard setback shall be established as the point at which the lot meets 

the minimum width requirements. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced 

to the minimum of 20 feet; provided, that the portion of the structure closest to the street is part 

of the “living area,” to avoid having the garage become the predominant feature on the lot. 

(15) Subject to MMC 22A.020.130, subsection (1)(a) of the definition of “lot lines.” 

(16) Required landscaping setbacks for developments on the north side of Soper Hill Road are 25 

feet from the edge of sidewalk. 

(17) Projects with split zoning (two or more distinct land use zones) may propose a master site 

plan to density average at the zone edge or modify the zone boundaries using topography, 

access, critical areas, or other site characteristics in order to provide a more effective transition 

between land uses and zones. Approval is at the discretion of the community development 

director.  

Section 10. Section 22C.010.210, Setbacks – Projections allowed, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may project 

into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above the finished 

grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, and 

uncovered accessory structures such as mechanical equipment, play structures, and tennis 

courts, may project to the property line, provided that, with the exception of uncovered porches 

and decks, the front property line setback for the zone shall be observed; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development;  

(5) Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall be setback a minimum of five feet 

from all property lines, provided: 

(a) They are not located within a utility or access easement, and;  

(b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach onto a 

neighboring property. 

 

Section 11. Section 22C.010.220, Height – Exceptions to limits, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) Flagpoles may be up to 25 feet tall in all single family and multi-family zones.  

Item 5 - 2

38

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.130


ALTERNATIVE FLAGPOLE HEIGHT – OPTION A 
 

(2) The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080:  

(1a) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans or 

similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and  

(2b) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and utility 

line towers and poles. 

 

Section 12. Section 22C.020.060, Permitted uses, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Residential Land Uses 

Dwelling Units, Types:                     

Townhouse       P6 P           

Multiple-family 
C4 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

P6 
P           

Mobile home P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7     

Senior citizen assisted P       C         P 

Caretaker’s quarters (3) P P P P P P P P P P 

Group Residences:                     

Adult family home P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Convalescent, nursing, retirement C P P P P         P 

Residential care facility P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Master planned senior community 

(10) 
        C         C 

Accessory Uses:                     

Home occupation (2) 
P8 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 
P9 P9 P9     

Temporary Lodging:                     

Hotel/motel P P P P P P P       

 

 

Item 5 - 3

39



ALTERNATIVE FLAGPOLE HEIGHT – OPTION B 
 

adjacent townhome or apartment development, provided the required setback applied to 

said development shall not exceed 60 feet. The setback shall be measured from said 

property line to the closest point of each single-family detached dwelling unit, excluding 

projections allowed per MMC 22C.010.210 and accessory structures existing at the time the 

townhome or apartment development receives approval by the city. 

(11) Townhome setbacks are reduced to zero on an interior side yard setback where the units 

have a common wall for zero lot line developments. 

(12) Townhome setbacks are reduced to five feet on side yard setbacks provided the buildings 

meet a 10-foot separation between structures. 

(13) Single-family detached units and duplexes on individual lots within the R-12 through R-28, 

and WR-R-6-18 zones shall utilize the dimensional requirements of the R-8 zone, except the 

base density. 

(14) Provided that the front yard setback shall be established as the point at which the lot meets 

the minimum width requirements. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced 

to the minimum of 20 feet; provided, that the portion of the structure closest to the street is part 

of the “living area,” to avoid having the garage become the predominant feature on the lot. 

(15) Subject to MMC 22A.020.130, subsection (1)(a) of the definition of “lot lines.” 

(16) Required landscaping setbacks for developments on the north side of Soper Hill Road are 25 

feet from the edge of sidewalk. 

(17) Projects with split zoning (two or more distinct land use zones) may propose a master site 

plan to density average at the zone edge or modify the zone boundaries using topography, 

access, critical areas, or other site characteristics in order to provide a more effective transition 

between land uses and zones. Approval is at the discretion of the community development 

director.  

Section 10. Section 22C.010.210, Setbacks – Projections allowed, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may project 

into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above the finished 

grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, and 

uncovered accessory structures such as mechanical equipment, play structures, and tennis 

courts, may project to the property line, provided that, with the exception of uncovered porches 

and decks, the front property line setback for the zone shall be observed; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development;  

(5) Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall be setback a minimum of five feet 

from all property lines, provided: 

(a) They are not located within a utility or access easement, and;  

(b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach onto a 

neighboring property. 

 

Section 11. Section 22C.010.220, Height – Exceptions to limits, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Item 5 - 4

40

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.130


ALTERNATIVE FLAGPOLE HEIGHT – OPTION B 
 

(1) Flagpoles may be up to 25 feet tall in all single family zones, and up to 35 feet tall in all 

multi-family zones; provided, that flagpoles on multi-family zoned properties developed with 

single family residences or duplexes shall be limited to 25 feet tall.  

(2) The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080:  

(1a) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans or 

similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and  

(2b) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and utility 

line towers and poles. 

 

Section 12. Section 22C.020.060, Permitted uses, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Residential Land Uses 

Dwelling Units, Types:                     

Townhouse       P6 P           

Multiple-family 
C4 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

P6 
P           

Mobile home P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7     

Senior citizen assisted P       C         P 

Caretaker’s quarters (3) P P P P P P P P P P 

Group Residences:                     

Adult family home P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Convalescent, nursing, 

retirement 
C P P P P         P 

Residential care facility P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Master planned senior 

community (10) 
        C         C 

Accessory Uses:                     

Home occupation (2) 
P8 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 
P9 P9 P9     

Temporary Lodging:                     

Hotel/motel P P P P P P P       

 

Item 5 - 5

41



1 Flag and flagpole amendments follow-up to March 7, 2017 City Council meeting 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: March 17, 2017    
 
TO: City Council      
 
FROM: Angela Gemmer, Senior Planner  
 

 RE: 2016-17 Code Amendments – flags and flagpoles 
 
 CC: Dave Koenig, Community Development Director 
  Chris Holland, Planning Manager  
   

The flag and flagpole amendments arose from a citizen-initiated code enforcement concern 
pertaining to the proximity of a flagpole to a property line. During review of the concern, the 
question arose whether the height and setback requirements applicable to accessory 
structures such as garages and sheds should apply to flagpoles since the MMC definition of 
accessory structures identifies flagpoles as a type of accessory structure.  An “accessory 
structure” is defined in MMC 22A.020.020, as follows: 
 

“Accessory structure” means a structure of secondary importance or function on a site. 
In general, the primary use of the site is not carried on in an accessory structure.  
(1) Accessory structures may be attached or detached from the primary structure.  
(2) Examples of accessory structures include:  

(a) Garages; 
(b) Decks; 
(c) Fences;  
(d) Trellises;  
(e) Flagpoles;  
(f) Stairways; 
(g) Heat pumps;  
(h) Awnings; and  
(i) Other structures.  

 
Since the MMC is mainly silent of accessory structures such as trellises, flagpoles, heat pumps, 
awnings, and other structures, staff had difficulties identifying how flagpoles should be treated 
in regards to height and setbacks.  Ultimately, due to the fact that the code is mostly silent 
regarding flagpoles, staff decided that flagpoles should be required to comply with the 
provisions of MMC Chapter 22C.180 Accessory Structures.  These provisions require flagpoles 
not to exceed 20 feet in height and be setback a minimum of 5 feet from the side and rear 
lot lines and provide the minimum required front yard setback for principal structures in the 
zone (20 feet, but can be reduced to 10 feet on a case-by-case basis). 
 
When MMC Chapter 22C.180, Accessory Structures, was adopted, the provisions of the code 
were intended for uses such as garages, sheds, carports and accessory dwelling units.  
Therefore, staff decided to research potential amendments related to flags and flagpoles. 
 

Item 5 - 6

42



2 Flag and flagpole amendments follow-up to March 7, 2017 City Council meeting 
 

In considering amendments to the MMC, staff researched the regulations for numerous 
jurisdictions throughout the State of Washington and found that most every jurisdictions’ code 
was silent on flags and flagpoles with the exception of the City of Spokane. The proposed 
amendments are adapted from Spokane’s regulations, and incorporate other revisions 
identified by staff to clarify the applicable standards. These amendments resolve the location 
and height standards applicable to flagpoles, and provide clarification on aspects of the sign 
code that pertain to flags.  
 
At the March 7th City Council meeting, Mr. Kaiser raised concerns that the proposed height 
amendments would cause flagpoles to be out of scale with the surrounding residential 
development. As drafted, flagpoles are proposed to be allowed to “rise ten feet above the 
height limit, or five feet above the highest point of the roof, whichever is greater.” Below is 
an excerpt of height limits from the City’s residential density and dimensional matrices which 
shows the allowable heights in the various residential zones (footnotes unrelated to height 
have been omitted from the excerpt below).  
 
22C.010.080 Densities and dimensions. 
 

  
R-
4.5 

R-
6.5 R-8 

WR-
R-4-8 

R-12 
(13) 

R-18 
(13) 

R-28 
(13) 

WR-R-6-18 
(13) 

Base height 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft 35 ft (4) 45 ft (4) 45 ft (4) 35 ft (4) 
 
22C.010.090 Densities and dimensions – Development conditions. 
(4) Base Height. 

(a) Height limits may be increased when portions of the structure which exceed the base 
height limit provide one additional foot of street and interior setback beyond the required 
setback for each foot above the base height limit; provided, that the maximum height 
may not exceed 60 feet. 
(b) Multiple-family developments, located outside of Planning Area 1, abutting or 
adjacent to areas zoned as single-family, or areas identified in the comprehensive plan 
as single-family, may have no more floors than the adjacent single-family dwellings, 
when single-family is the predominant adjacent land use. 

(13) Single-family detached units on individual lots within the R-12 through R-28, and WR-R-
6-18 zones shall utilize the dimensional requirements of the R-8 zone, except the base 
density. 
 
Under the proposed code amendment, the following would be the allowable heights for 
flagpoles.  
 

  
R-
4.5 

R-
6.5 R-8 

WR-R-
4-8 R-12  R-18  R-28  WR-R-6-18  

Height allowed for 
flagpoles 

40 ft 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft 45 ft 55 ft 55 ft 45 ft 

 
Consistent with MMC Section 22C.010.090(13), single family residences on individual lots in 
multi-family zones would be subject to the height standards of the R-8 zone. The drawing 
provided by Mr. Kaiser illustrating the proposed height of flagpoles was not to scale and 
implied that flagpoles up to 60 feet tall would be possible adjacent to single family residences; 
however, as the table above shows, this is not the case. Under the proposed regulations, the 
maximum height of a flagpole would be 10 feet above the applicable base height limit, so 
would be proportional to the structures that the flagpole is adjacent to. The reason that the 

Item 5 - 7

43



3 Flag and flagpole amendments follow-up to March 7, 2017 City Council meeting 
 

height is proposed to exceed the base height limit is to enable flags to fly in the wind since a 
flagpole that is shorter than a home may be unable to catch wind and fly depending on the 
location of the flagpole in relation to prevailing winds, adjacent residential structures, and the 
topography where the house is located.   
 
Concerns were also raised regarding the proposed front yard setback allowance for flagpoles. 
The proposed language states that, “Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall 
be setback a minimum of five feet from all property lines, provided: (a) They are not located within 
a utility or access easement, and; (b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the 
flag to encroach onto a neighboring property.” Since most platted lots have utility easements in 
the front yard that range from 7 to 10 feet, the resulting front yard setback for flagpoles in most 
instances will effectively be 7 to 10 feet depending on the applicable plat conditions. Unplatted lots 
and plats that were not subject to utility easements could potentially have a 5 foot front yard 
setback, but these instances would be more limited.  
 
The rest of the proposed structure setbacks for flagpoles are consistent with the setbacks that are 
generally applicable to accessory structures such as garages and sheds, and are also the same 
setbacks as code presently requires. In addition, since the proposed provisions require that flags 
not be displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach onto a neighboring property, 
a greater side or rear yard setback than five feet may result. 
 
While the provision in the sign code that references structural review for flagpoles is being omitted, 
(since the sign code is intended to pertain to signs not flags), structural review and permitting 
requirements would still apply to flagpoles as required by the currently adopted International 
Residential Code and International Building Code.  Noise from flags must be consistent with the 
City’s noise ordinance which adopts the noise restrictions set forth in the Washington 
Administrative Code (WAC).  
 
Community Development staff respectfully requests that City Council adopt the amendments  
related to flags and flagpoles which were reviewed and recommended for approval by Planning 
Commission.  
 

Item 5 - 8

44



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: February 24, 2017  

TO: City Council 

FROM: Angela Gemmer, Senior Planner   

RE: 2016 Code Clean-Up Amendments   
 
CC: Dave Koenig, Community Development Director 
 Chris Holland, Planning Manager    
    
The following is a summary of proposed amendments to Title 22, Unified Development Code of the Marysville 
Municipal Code. The proposed code amendments are items observed over the last year that need to be 
updated in order to improve clarity and overall review process and include, but are not limited to, the 
following:  
 

 Addition of, and amendments to, flag and flagpole provisions in order to: 
o Define the term ‘flagpole’; 
o Provide exceptions to the generally applicable height and setbacks standards for flagpoles and 

similar uncovered accessory structures;   
o Eliminate an exemption provision in the sign code which pertains to flags; and  
o Amend the definition of ‘sign’ to simply state that flags are not included in the ‘sign’ definition.  

 Revision to the language regarding the minimum required parking spaces for single family residences, 
duplexes, townhouses, and mobiles homes to make it clear that three parking spaces are required per 
dwelling unit rather than two;  

 Revision to footnotes in the residential density and dimensional standards table that pertain to 
duplexes in order to: 
o Clarify that the 12,500 square foot minimum lot size applies to duplex lots in the R-4.5 zone, 

and that the 7,200 square foot minimum lot size applies to duplex lots in the R-6.5, R-8, WR-
R-4-8 zones; and 

o Allow duplexes on individual lots in the R-12 through R-28 zones to utilize the less restrictive 
dimensional requirements of the R-8 zone. 

 Addition of definitions for the terms ‘social services’ and ‘dwelling’;  

 Inclusion of an administrative variance to the manufactured home age restrictions so that relief from 
the age restriction may be granted by the Community Development Director rather than the Hearing 
Examiner when site circumstances support such relief. The intent of this provision is to minimize 
applicant and staff time and financial expense for a relatively simple type of variance;  

 Clarification of the Planned Residential Development (PRD) open space requirements;  

 Inclusion of new standards to restrict shipping containers on residential lots to those lots that are 
over one acre in size, and to require screening for shipping containers in any zone in which they may 
be located (commercial and industrial zones already require screening, but this provision makes it clearer);  and 

 Addition of a footnote to the residential permitted uses matrices to clarify that residential accessory 
structures may only be established as dwellings if they meet the criteria for an accessory dwelling 
unit.  

Item 5 - 9

45



Item 5 - 10

46



Item 5 - 11

47



Item 5 - 12

48



Item 5 - 13

49



Item 5 - 14

50



Item 5 - 15

51



Item 5 - 16

52



Item 5 - 17

53



Item 5 - 18

54



Item 5 - 19

55



Item 5 - 20

56



Item 5 - 21

57



Item 5 - 22

58



Item 5 - 23

59



Item 5 - 24

60



Item 5 - 25

61



Item 5 - 26

62



Item 5 - 27

63



Item 5 - 28

64



Item 5 - 29

65



Item 5 - 30

66



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, UPDATING 

THE CITY’S DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND AMENDING SECTIONS 

22A.020.050, 22A.020.070, 22A.020.200, 22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 

22C.010.090, 22C.010.210, 22C.010.220, 22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, 

22C.020.190, 22C.130.030, 22C.160.080, 22G.080.100, AND 22A.010.160 

OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the State Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW mandates that cities 

periodically review and amend development regulations, including zoning ordinances and official 

controls; and 

 

 WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.106 requires the processing of amendments to the City's 

development regulations in the same manner as the original adoption of the City's comprehensive 

plan and development regulations; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the State Growth Management Act requires notice and broad public participation 

when adopting or amending the City's comprehensive plan and development regulations; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City, in reviewing and amending its development regulations has complied 

with the notice, public participation, and processing requirements established by the Growth 

Management Act, as more fully described below; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Marysville finds that from time to time it is 

necessary and appropriate to review and revise provisions of the City’s municipal code and 

development code (MMC Title 22); and 

 

 WHEREAS, during public meetings on November 22, 2016, January 10, 2017, and January 

24, 2017, the Planning Commission discussed proposed amendments to MMC Sections 

22A.020.050, 22A.020.070, 22A.020.200, 22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 22C.010.090, 

22C.010.210, 22C.010.220, 22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, 22C.020.190, 22C.130.030, 

22C.160.080, 22G.080.100, and 22A.010.160; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Marysville has submitted the proposed development regulation 

revisions to the Washington State Department of Commerce on January 30, 2017, as required by 

RCW 36.70A.106; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the amendments to the development regulations are exempt from State 

Environmental Policy Act review under WAC 197-11-800(19); 

 

 WHEREAS, after providing notice to the public as required by law, on February 14, 2017, 

the Marysville Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on the proposed amendments to the 

City’s development regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on February 14, 2017 the Planning Commission made a Recommendation to 

the City Council recommending the adoption of the proposed amendments to MMC Sections 

22A.020.050, 22A.020.070, 22A.020.200, 22C.010.060, 22C.010.070, 22C.010.090, 

22C.010.210, 22C.010.220, 22C.020.060, 22C.020.070, 22C.020.190, 22C.130.030, 

22C.160.080, 22G.080.100, and 22A.010.160; and 
 

Item 5 - 31

67



 WHEREAS, at a public meeting on March 13, 2017 the Marysville City Council reviewed and 

considered the Planning Commission’s Recommendation and proposed amendments to the 

development regulations; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, DO 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Approval of Planning Commission’s Recommendation and Adoption of 

Findings and Conclusions. The Planning Commission’s February 14, 2017 Recommendation 

regarding the proposed development regulation amendments, including the Findings and 

Conclusions contained therein, as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”, is hereby adopted and 

incorporated herein by this reference.  

 

Section 2. Required Findings. In accordance with MMC 22G.010.520, the following 

findings are made regarding the development regulation amendments which comprise this 

ordinance: 

(1) The amendments are consistent with the purposes of the comprehensive plan; and 

(2) The amendments are consistent with the purpose of Title 22 MMC; and 

(3) There have been significant changes in the circumstances to warrant a 

change; and 

(4) The benefit or cost to the public health, safety, and welfare is sufficient to 

warrant the action. 

 

Section 3. Section 22A.020.050, “D” definitions, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended by adding a new definition to read as follows:  

 

“Dwelling” means a shelter in which a person or people live. 

 

Section 4. Section 22A.020.070, “F” definitions, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended by adding a new definition to read as follows:  

 

“Flagpole” means a tall pole on which a flag is or can be displayed. 

 

Section 5. The definition of “sign” as contained in Section 22A.020.200, “S” definitions, 

of the Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way or 

surrounding properties and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy conveying a 

message or image and used to inform or attract the attention of the public, such as advertising 

or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or activity. A sign may have multiple 

faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, businesses, products, services, or 

activities. This definition does not include any flag of any country, state or local jurisdiction. 

Unless the context clearly provides to the contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes 

the “sign structure.” 

 

Section 6. Section 22A.020.200, “S” definitions, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended by adding a new definition to read as follows:  

 

“Social services” means public or nonprofit establishments, organizations or agencies that 

provide counseling, therapy or other social or human services to persons needing such services 

due to physical, mental, emotional, or other disabilities. 

 

Item 5 - 32

68



Section 7. Section 22C.010.060, Permitted uses, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Specific Land Use 

R-

4.5 

R-

6.5 R-8 

WR 

R-4-

8 R-12 R-18 R-28 

WR 

R-6-

18 

R-

MHP 

Residential Land Uses 

Dwelling Units, Types: 

Single detached (14) P11 P11 P11 P11 P11 P11 P11 P11 P43 

Model home P30 P30 P30 P30 P30 P30 P30 P30 P30 

Cottage housing C6 C6 C6 C6 C6 C6 C6 C6   

Duplex (14) C8 P8 P8 P8 P P P P   

Townhouse P3 P3 P3 P3 P P P P   

Multiple-family         P P P P   

Mobile home P12 P12 P12 P12 P12 P12 P12 P12 P12 

Mobile/manufactured home park P3 P3 P3   C P P   P45 

Senior citizen assisted C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 

Factory-built P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7, 

43 

Recreational vehicle                 P44 

Group Residences: 

Adult family home P P P P P P P P P 

Convalescent, nursing, retirement C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2 C2   

Residential care facility P P P P P P P P   

Master planned senior community (15) C C C C C C C C C 

Accessory Uses: 

Item 5 - 33

69



Specific Land Use 

R-

4.5 

R-

6.5 R-8 

WR 

R-4-

8 R-12 R-18 R-28 

WR 

R-6-

18 

R-

MHP 

Residential accessory uses (1), (9), (10), 

(49), (50) 

P P P P P P P P P 

Home occupation (5) P P P P P13 P13 P13 P13 P 

Temporary Lodging: 

Hotel/motel         P P P P   

Bed and breakfast guesthouse (4)   C C C P P P P   

Bed and breakfast inn (4)         P P P P   

Recreation/Cultural Land Uses 

Park/Recreation: 

Park P16 P16 P16 P16 P16 P16 P16 P16 P16 

Recreational vehicle park                 C46 

Community center C C C C C C C C C 

Amusement/Entertainment: 

Sports club         C C C C   

Golf facility (17) C C C C P P P P   

Cultural: 

Library, museum and art gallery C C C C C C C C C 

Church, synagogue and temple C C C C P P P P C 

General Services Land Uses 

Personal Services: 

Funeral home/crematory C18 C18 C18 C18 C18 C18 C18 C18 C18 

Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

P24 

C19 

Item 5 - 34

70



Specific Land Use 

R-

4.5 

R-

6.5 R-8 

WR 

R-4-

8 R-12 R-18 R-28 

WR 

R-6-

18 

R-

MHP 

Day care I P20 P20 P20 P20 P20 P20 P20 P20 P20 

Day care II C25 C25 C25 C25 C C C C C25 

Stable C C C C           

Kennel or cattery, hobby C C C C C C C C   

Electric vehicle (EV) charging station (38), 

(39) 

P P P P P P P P   

EV rapid charging station (40), (41), (42)         P P P P   

Health Services: 

Medical/dental clinic         C C C C   

Education Services: 

Elementary, middle/junior high, and senior 

high (including public, private and 

parochial) 

C C C C C C C C C 

Commercial school C21 C21 C21 C21 C21 C21 C21 C21   

School district support facility C23 C23 C23 C23 C23 C23 C23 C23   

Interim recycling facility P22 P22 P22 P22 P22 P22 P22 P22   

Vocational school                   

Government/Business Service Land Uses 

Government Services: 

Public safety facilities, including police and 

fire 

C26 C26 C26 C26 C26 C26 C26 C26 C26 

Utility facility P P P P P P P P P 

Private storm water management facility P P P P P P P P P 

Item 5 - 35

71



Specific Land Use 

R-

4.5 

R-

6.5 R-8 

WR 

R-4-

8 R-12 R-18 R-28 

WR 

R-6-

18 

R-

MHP 

Public storm water management facility P P P P P P P P P 

Business Services: 

Self-service storage (31)         C27 C27 C27 C27   

Professional office         C C C C   

Automotive parking P29 P29 P29 P29 P29 P29 P29 P29   

Model house sales office P47 P47 P47 P47           

Wireless communication facility (28) P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

P 

C 

State-Licensed Marijuana Facilities: 

Marijuana cooperative (48)                   

Marijuana processing facility – Indoor only 

(48) 

                  

Marijuana production facility – Indoor only 

(48) 

                  

Marijuana retail facility (48)                   

Retail/Wholesale Land Uses 

Forest products sales P32 P32 P32 P32           

Agricultural crop sales P32 P32 P32 P32           

Resource Land Uses 

Agriculture: 

Growing and harvesting crops P34 P34 P34 P34           

Raising livestock and small animals P35 P35 P35 P35           

Forestry: 

Item 5 - 36

72



Specific Land Use 

R-

4.5 

R-

6.5 R-8 

WR 

R-4-

8 R-12 R-18 R-28 

WR 

R-6-

18 

R-

MHP 

Growing and harvesting forest products P34 P34 P34 P34           

Fish and Wildlife Management: 

Hatchery/fish preserve (33) C C C C           

Aquaculture (33) C C C C           

Regional Land Uses 

Regional storm water management facility C C C C C C C C C 

Nonhydroelectric generation facility C C C C C C C C C 

Transit park and pool lot P P P P P P P P   

Transit park and ride lot C C C C C C C C   

School bus base C36 C36 C36 C36 C36 C36 C36 C36   

Racetrack C37 C37 C37 C37 C37 C37 C37 C37   

College/university C C C C C C C C   

 

 

Section 8. Section 22C.010.070, Permitted uses – Development conditions, of the 

Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) Accessory dwelling units must comply with development standards in Chapter 22C.180 MMC. 

Accessory dwelling units in the MHP zone are only allowed on single lots of record containing one 

single-family detached dwelling. 

(2) Limited to three residents per the equivalent of each minimum lot size or dwelling units per 

acre allowed in the zone in which it is located. 

(3) Only as part of a planned residential development (PRD) proposal, and subject to the same 

density as the underlying zone. 

(4) Bed and breakfast guesthouses and inns are subject to the requirements and standards 

contained in Chapter 22C.210 MMC. 

(5) Home occupations are subject to the requirements and standards contained in 

Chapter 22C.190 MMC. 

(6) Subject to cottage housing provisions set forth in MMC 22C.010.280. 

(7) Factory-built dwelling units shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) A factory-built house must be inspected at least two times at the factory by the State 

Building Inspector during the construction process, and must receive an approval certifying 

that it meets all requirements of the International Building Code. At the building site, the 
city building official will conduct foundation, plumbing and final inspections. 

Item 5 - 37

73

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C180.html#22C.180
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C210.html#22C.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C190.html#22C.190
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.280


(b) A factory-built house cannot be attached to a metal frame allowing it to be mobile. All 

such structures must be placed on a permanent foundation at the building site. 

(8) Permitted outright in the R-6.5, R-8, and WR-R-4-8 zones on minimum 7,200-square-foot 

lots. A conditional use permit is required for the R-4.5 zone, and the minimum lot size must be 

12,500 square feet. Duplexes must comply with the comprehensive plan density requirements 

for the underlying land use designation. 

(9) A garage sale shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) No residential premises shall have more than two such sales per year and no such sale 

shall continue for more than six days within a 15-day period. 

(b) Signs advertising such sales shall not be attached to any public structures, signs or 

traffic control devices, nor to any utility poles. All such signs shall be removed 24 hours 

after the sale is completed. 

A garage sale complying with the above conditions shall be considered as being an allowable 

accessory use to all residential land uses. A garage sale violating one or more of the above 

conditions shall be considered as being a commercial use and will be disallowed unless it 

complies with all requirements affecting commercial uses. 

(10) Residential accessory structures must comply with development standards in 

Chapter 22C.180 MMC. 

(11) Manufactured homes must: 

(a) Be no more than five years old, as evidenced by the date of manufacture recorded on 

the HUD data plate; 

(ab) Be set on a permanent foundation, as specified by the manufacturer, enclosed with an 

approved concrete product from the bottom of the home to the ground which may be 

either load-bearing or decorative; 

(bc) Meet all design standards applicable to all other single-family homes in the 

neighborhood in which the manufactured home is to be located.; 

(c) Be no more than five years old, as evidenced by the date of manufacture recorded on 

the HUD data plate. An administrative variance to the requirement that a manufactured 

home be no more than five years old may be granted by the community development 

director only if the applicant demonstrates all of the following:  

(i) The strict enforcement of the provisions of this title creates an unnecessary hardship to 

the property owner;  

(ii) The proposed manufactured home is well maintained and does not present any health 

or safety hazards; 

(iii) The variance is necessary or warranted because of the unique size, shape, topography, 

location, critical areas encumbrance, or other feature of the subject property;  

(iv) The proposed manufactured home will be compatible with the neighborhood or area 

where it will be located;  

(v) The subject property is otherwise deprived, by provisions of this title, of rights and 

privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and within an identical zone;  

(vi) The need for the variance is not the result of deliberate actions of the applicant or 

property owner; and  

(vii) The variance is the minimum necessary to grant relief to the applicant. 

(12) Mobile homes are only allowed in existing mobile home parks established prior to October 

16, 2006. 

(13) Home occupations are limited to home office uses in multifamily dwellings. No signage is 

permitted in townhouse or multifamily dwellings. 

(14) No more than one single-family detached or duplex dwelling is allowed per lot except in 

planned residential developments, through the provisions of Chapter 22G.080 MMC, using the 

binding site plan (BSP) process outlined in Chapter 22G.100 MMC, and designated on the face of 

the BSP, for multiple single-family detached dwellings on a single parcel; or accessory dwelling 

units through the provisions of Chapter 22C.180 MMC. 

(15) Subject to Chapter 22C.220 MMC, Master Planned Senior Communities. 
(16) The following conditions and limitations shall apply, where appropriate: 

Item 5 - 38

74

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C180.html#22C.180
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G080.html#22G.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G100.html#22G.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C180.html#22C.180
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C220.html#22C.220


(a) Parks are permitted in residential and mixed use zones when reviewed as part of a 

subdivision, mobile/manufactured home park, or multiple-family development proposal; 

otherwise, a conditional use permit is required; 

(b) Lighting for structures and fields shall be directed away from residential areas; and 

(c) Structures or service yards shall maintain a minimum distance of 50 feet from property 

lines adjoining residential zones. 

(17) Golf facilities shall comply with the following: 

(a) Structures, driving ranges and lighted areas shall maintain a minimum distance of 50 

feet from property lines adjoining residential zones. 

(b) Restaurants are permitted as an accessory use to a golf course. 

(18) Only as an accessory to a cemetery. 

(19) Structures shall maintain a minimum distance of 100 feet from property lines adjoining 

residential zones. 

(20) Only as an accessory to residential use and subject to the criteria set forth in 

Chapter 22C.200 MMC. 

(21) Only as an accessory to residential use, provided: 

(a) Students are limited to 12 per one-hour session; 

(b) All instruction must be within an enclosed structure; and 

(c) Structures used for the school shall maintain a distance of 25 feet from property lines 

adjoining residential zones. 

(22) Limited to drop box facilities accessory to a public or community use such as a school, fire 

station or community center. 

(23) Only when adjacent to an existing or proposed school. 

(24) Limited to columbariums accessory to a church; provided, that existing required landscaping 

and parking are not reduced. 

(25) Day care IIs must be located on sites larger than one-half acre and are subject to minimum 

standards identified in Chapter 22C.200 MMC for day care I facilities. Parking facilities and 

loading areas shall be located to the rear of buildings or be constructed in a manner consistent 

with the surrounding residential character. Evaluation of site suitability shall be reviewed through 

the conditional use permit process. 

(26) Public safety facilities, including police and fire, shall comply with the following: 

(a) All buildings and structures shall maintain a minimum distance of 20 feet from property 

lines adjoining residential zones; 

(b) Any buildings from which fire-fighting equipment emerges onto a street shall maintain 

a distance of 35 feet from such street. 

(27) Accessory to an apartment development of at least 12 units, provided: 

(a) The gross floor area in self-service storage shall not exceed 50 percent of the total 

gross floor area of the apartment dwellings on the site; 

(b) All outdoor lights shall be deflected, shaded and focused away from all adjoining 

property; 

(c) The use of the facility shall be limited to dead storage of household goods; 

(d) No servicing or repair of motor vehicles, boats, trailers, lawn mowers or similar 

equipment; 

(e) No outdoor storage or storage of flammable liquids, highly combustible or explosive 

materials or hazardous chemicals; 

(f) No residential occupancy of the storage units; 

(g) No business activity other than the rental of storage units to the apartment dwellings 

on the site; and 

(h) A resident manager shall be required on the site and shall be responsible for 

maintaining the operation of the facility in conformance with the conditions of approval. 

(28) All WCFs and modifications to WCFs are subject to Chapter 22C.250 MMC including, but not 

limited to, the siting hierarchy, MMC 22C.250.060. WCFs may be a permitted use or a conditional 

use subject to MMC 22C.250.040. 
(29) Limited to commuter parking facilities for users of transit, carpools or ride-share programs, 

provided: 

Item 5 - 39

75

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C200.html#22C.200
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C200.html#22C.200
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250.040


(a) They are located on existing parking lots for churches, schools, or other permitted 

nonresidential uses which have excess capacity available during commuting hours; and 

(b) The site is adjacent to a designated arterial that has been improved to a standard 

acceptable to the department. 

(30) Model Homes. 

(a) The community development director may approve construction of model homes 

subject to the following conditions: 

(i) No model home shall be constructed without the issuance of a building permit; 

(ii) In no event shall the total number of model homes in a preliminary subdivision be 

greater than nine; 

(iii) A hard-surfaced roadway to and abutting all model homes shall be constructed to 

standards determined by the city engineer or designee; 

(iv) Operational fire hydrant(s) must be available in accordance with the International 

Fire Code; 

(v) Submittal of a site plan, stamped by a registered civil engineer or licensed 

surveyor, delineating the location of each structure relative to existing and proposed 

utilities, lot lines, easements, roadways, topography and critical areas; 

(vi) Submittal of building permit applications for each of the proposed structures; 

(vii) Approval of water, sewer and storm sewer extension plans to serve the proposed 

structures; and 

(viii) Execution of an agreement with the city saving and holding it harmless from any 

damages, direct or indirect, as a result of the approval of the construction of model 

homes on the site. 

(b) Prior to occupancy of any model home, the final plat of the subject subdivision shall be 

approved and recorded. 

(31) Any outdoor storage areas are subject to the screening requirements of the landscape code. 

(32) Subject to approval of a small farms overlay zone. 

(33) May be further subject to the provisions of the Marysville shoreline master program. 

(34) Only allowed in conjunction with the small farms overlay zone. 

(35) Provided, that the property has received approval of a small farms overlay designation, or is 

larger than one acre in size. 

(36) Only in conjunction with an existing or proposed school. 

(37) Except racing of motorized vehicles. 

(38) Level 1 and Level 2 charging only. 

(39) Allowed only as an accessory use to a principal outright permitted use or permitted 

conditional use. 

(40) The term “rapid” is used interchangeably with “Level 3” and “fast charging.” 

(41) Only “electric vehicle charging stations – restricted” as defined in Chapter 22A.020 MMC. 

(42) Rapid (Level 3) charging stations are required to be placed within a parking garage. 

(43) One single-family detached dwelling per existing single lot of record. Manufactured homes 

on single lots must meet the criteria outlined in subsection (11) of this section. 

(44) Used as a permanent residence in an established MHP or RV park; provided, that utility 

hookups in MHPs meet current standards for MHPs or RV parks. 

(45) MHPs shall fulfill the requirements of Chapter 22C.230 MMC. 

(46) Recreational vehicle parks are subject to the requirements and conditions of 

Chapter 22C.240 MMC. 

(47) Model house sales offices are subject to the requirements of MMC 22C.110.030(12). 

(48) No person or entity may produce, grow, manufacture, process, accept donations for, give 

away, or sell marijuana concentrates, marijuana-infused products, or usable marijuana within 

residential zones in the city. Provided, activities in strict compliance with 

RCW 69.51A.210 and 69.51A.260 are not a violation of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

(49) Shipping/cargo and similar storage containers are prohibited on lots within a platted 

subdivision and properties under one acre in size. Shipping/cargo and similar storage containers 
may be located on properties over one acre in size if located behind the primary residence, 

observe all setbacks applicable to an accessory structure, and are screened from public view.  

Item 5 - 40

76

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C230.html#22C.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C240.html#22C.240
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C110.html#22C.110.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=69.51A.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=69.51A.260


(50) Accessory structures may not be utilized as, or converted to, a dwelling unless the structure 

complies with the accessory dwelling unit standards outlined in MMC 22C.180.030. 

 

Section 9. Section 22C.010.090, Densities and dimensions – Development conditions, 

of the Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) Maximum Density – Dwelling Unit/Acre. 

(a) The maximum density for R-12, R-18, R-28, WR-R-4-8 and WR-R-6-18 zones may be 

achieved only through the application of residential density incentive provisions outlined in 

Chapter 22C.090 MMC. 

(b) The maximum net density for the single-family zones is the same as the base density; 

provided, that for PRD developments the maximum density may be increased by up to 20 

percent through the application of residential density incentive provisions outlined in 

Chapter 22C.090 MMC. 

(2) The minimum lot sizes for duplexes apply to lots or parcels which existed on or before the 

effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter. All new duplex lots created through the 

subdivision or short subdivision process shall be a minimum of 12,500 square feet in size in the 

R4.5 zone, and 7,200 square feet in size in the R-6.5, R-8 and WR-R-4-8 zones. Additionally, all 

new duplex lots, must include a “duplex disclosure,” on the plat map, and must comply with the 

density requirements of the comprehensive plan (six units per acre for the R-4.5 zone and eight 

units per acre for the R-6.5, R-8, and WR-R-4-8 zones). 

(3) These standards may be modified under the provisions for zero lot line and townhome 

developments. 

(4) Base Height. 

(a) Height limits may be increased when portions of the structure which exceed the base 

height limit provide one additional foot of street and interior setback beyond the required 

setback for each foot above the base height limit; provided, that the maximum height may 

not exceed 60 feet. 

(b) Multiple-family developments, located outside of Planning Area 1, abutting or adjacent 

to areas zoned as single-family, or areas identified in the comprehensive plan as single-

family, may have no more floors than the adjacent single-family dwellings, when single-

family is the predominant adjacent land use. 

(5) Applies to Each Individual Lot. Building coverage and impervious surface area standards for: 

(a) Regional uses shall be established at the time of permit review; or 

(b) Nonresidential uses in residential zones shall comply with MMC 22C.010.250. 

(6) Density – Dwelling Unit/Acre. 

(a) The densities listed for the single-family zones (R-4.5, R-6.5, R-8) and single-family 

development in the Whiskey Ridge zones (WR-R-4-8, WR-R-6-18) are maximum net 

densities. 

(b) Mobile home parks shall be allowed a maximum density of eight dwelling units per 

acre, unless located in the R-4.5 or R-6.5 zones, in which case they are limited to the 

density of the underlying zone. 

(7) The standards of the R-4.5 zone shall apply if a lot is less than 15,000 square feet in area. 

(8) On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced to 10 feet; provided, that at 

least 20 linear feet of driveway are provided between any garage, carport, or other fenced 

parking area and the street property line, or the lot takes access from an alley. The linear 

distance shall be measured in a straight line from the nearest point of the garage, carport or 

fenced area to the access point at the street property line. In the case of platted lots, no more 

than two consecutive lots may be reduced to 10 feet. 

(9) Residences shall have a setback of at least 50 feet from any property line if adjoining an 

agricultural zone either within or outside the city limits. 

(10) For townhomes or apartment developments, the setback shall be the greater of: 

(a) Twenty feet along any property line abutting R-4.5 through R-8, and WR-R-4-8 zones; 

or 

(b) The average setback of the R-4.5 through R-8 zoned and platted single-family detached 

dwelling units from the common property line separating said dwelling units from the 

Item 5 - 41

77

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C090.html#22C.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C090.html#22C.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.250


adjacent townhome or apartment development, provided the required setback applied to 

said development shall not exceed 60 feet. The setback shall be measured from said 

property line to the closest point of each single-family detached dwelling unit, excluding 

projections allowed per MMC 22C.010.210 and accessory structures existing at the time the 

townhome or apartment development receives approval by the city. 

(11) Townhome setbacks are reduced to zero on an interior side yard setback where the units 

have a common wall for zero lot line developments. 

(12) Townhome setbacks are reduced to five feet on side yard setbacks provided the buildings 

meet a 10-foot separation between structures. 

(13) Single-family detached units and duplexes on individual lots within the R-12 through R-28, 

and WR-R-6-18 zones shall utilize the dimensional requirements of the R-8 zone, except the 

base density. 

(14) Provided that the front yard setback shall be established as the point at which the lot meets 

the minimum width requirements. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced 

to the minimum of 20 feet; provided, that the portion of the structure closest to the street is part 

of the “living area,” to avoid having the garage become the predominant feature on the lot. 

(15) Subject to MMC 22A.020.130, subsection (1)(a) of the definition of “lot lines.” 

(16) Required landscaping setbacks for developments on the north side of Soper Hill Road are 25 

feet from the edge of sidewalk. 

(17) Projects with split zoning (two or more distinct land use zones) may propose a master site 

plan to density average at the zone edge or modify the zone boundaries using topography, 

access, critical areas, or other site characteristics in order to provide a more effective transition 

between land uses and zones. Approval is at the discretion of the community development 

director.  

 

Section 10. Section 22C.010.210, Setbacks – Projections allowed, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may project 

into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above the finished 

grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, and 

uncovered accessory structures such as mechanical equipment, play structures, and tennis 

courts, may project to the property line, provided that, with the exception of uncovered porches 

and decks, the front property line setback for the zone shall be observed; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development;  

(5) Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall be setback a minimum of five feet 

from all property lines, provided: 

(a) They are not located within a utility or access easement, and;  

(b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach onto a 

neighboring property. 

 

Section 11. Section 22C.010.220, Height – Exceptions to limits, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Item 5 - 42

78

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.130


The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080:  

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans or similar 

equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and  

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and utility line towers 

and poles.; and 

(3) Flagpoles may rise ten feet above the height limit, or five feet above the highest point of the 

roof, whichever is greater. 

 

Section 12. Section 22C.020.060, Permitted uses, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Residential Land Uses 

Dwelling Units, Types:                     

Townhouse       P6 P           

Multiple-family 
C4 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

C5 

P4, 

P6 
P           

Mobile home P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7 P7     

Senior citizen assisted P       C         P 

Caretaker’s quarters (3) P P P P P P P P P P 

Group Residences:                     

Adult family home P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Convalescent, nursing, retirement C P P P P         P 

Residential care facility P P P P P P70 P70 P70 P70 P 

Master planned senior community (10)         C         C 

Accessory Uses:                     

Home occupation (2) 
P8 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 

P8, 

P9 
P9 P9 P9     

Temporary Lodging:                     

Hotel/motel P P P P P P P       

Item 5 - 43

79



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Bed and breakfast guesthouse (1)                     

Bed and breakfast inn (1) P P P               

Recreation/Cultural Land Uses 

Park/Recreation:                     

Park P11 P P P P P P P P11 P 

Marina       P       P C P 

Dock and boathouse, private, 

noncommercial 
      P       P P16 P 

Recreational vehicle park     C12       C12   C P 

Boat launch, commercial or public       P       P   P 

Boat launch, noncommercial or private       P       P P17 P 

Community center P P P P P P P P P P 

Amusement/Entertainment:                     

Theater   P P P P           

Theater, drive-in     C               

Amusement and recreation services   P18 P18 P18 P19 P P C     

Sports club P P P P P P P P     

Golf facility (13)   P P     P P P C   

Shooting range (14)     P15     P15 P15       

Outdoor performance center     C       C   C C 

Riding academy           P P   C   

Cultural:                     

Library, museum and art gallery P P P P P P P P C P 

Item 5 - 44

80



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Church, synagogue and temple P P P P P P P P   P 

Dancing, music and art center   P P P P       C P 

General Services Land Uses 

Personal Services:                     

General personal service P P P P P P P P     

Dry cleaning plant   P         P P     

Dry cleaning pick-up station and retail 

service 
P P P P P25   P P     

Funeral home/crematory   P P P P26 P P P     

Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum 
P24 P24 

P24 

C20 
    P P P     

Day care I 
P70 P70 P70 P70 P70 P70 

P21, 

70 
P70 P70 P70 

Day care II P P P P P P21 P21       

Veterinary clinic P P P P P P P P     

Automotive repair and service 
P22 

C, 

P28 
P     P P P     

Electric vehicle (EV) charging station 

(64) 
P P P P P P P P P P 

EV rapid charging station (65), (66) P P P P67 P67   P P     

EV battery exchange station     P       P P     

Miscellaneous repair   P P       P P     

Social services   P P P P         P 

Kennel, commercial and 

exhibitor/breeding (71) 
  P P     C P P     

Item 5 - 45

81



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Pet daycare (71), (72)   P P P P P P P     

Civic, social and fraternal association   P P P C P   P   P 

Club (community, country, yacht, etc.)           P   P   P 

Health Services:                     

Medical/dental clinic P P P P P         P 

Hospital   P P P C         C 

Miscellaneous health P68 P68 P68 P68 P68         P68 

Education Services:                     

Elementary, middle/junior high, and 

senior high (including public, private 

and parochial) 

  C C C C   P C   C 

Commercial school P P   P P27         C 

School district support facility C P P P P   P P   P 

Vocational school   P P P P27         P 

Government/Business Service Land Uses 

Government Services:                     

Public agency office P P P P P P P P   P 

Public utility yard     P       P     P 

Public safety facilities, including police 

and fire 
P29 P P P P   P     P 

Utility facility P P P   C P P P   P 

Private storm water management 

facility 
P P P P P P P P   P 

Public storm water management facility P P P P P P P P   P 

Item 5 - 46

82



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Business Services:                     

Contractors’ office and storage yard     P30 P30 P30   P P     

Interim recycling facility   P23 P23       P     P 

Taxi stands   P P               

Trucking and courier service   P31 P31       P P     

Warehousing and wholesale trade     P     P P P     

Mini-storage (36)     P     P P P     

Freight and cargo service     P     P P P     

Cold storage warehousing             P P     

General business service and office P P P P P30 P P P     

Commercial vehicle storage           P P P     

Professional office P P P P P P P       

Miscellaneous equipment rental 
  

P30, 

37 
C38   

P30, 

37 
  P P     

Automotive rental and leasing     P       P       

Automotive parking P P P P P P P P     

Research, development and testing     P     P P P     

Heavy equipment and truck repair             P P     

Automobile holding yard     C       P P     

Commercial/industrial accessory uses 

(73) 

P39, 

40 
P39 P39 

P39, 

40 

P39, 

40 
P P P     

Adult facility               P33     

Factory-built commercial building (35) P P P P   P P P     

Wireless communication facility (32) P, C P, C P, C P, C P, C P, C P, C P, C   P, C 

Item 5 - 47

83



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

State-Licensed Marijuana Facilities: 

Marijuana cooperative (69)                     

Marijuana processing facility – Indoor 

only (69) 
                    

Marijuana production facility – Indoor 

only (69) 
                    

Marijuana retail facility (69)                     

Retail/Wholesale Land Uses 

Building, hardware and garden 

materials 
P47 P P P P47   P P     

Forest products sales   P P       P       

Department and variety stores P P P P P   P       

Food stores P P P P P45   P       

Agricultural crop sales   P P   C   P       

Storage/retail sales, livestock feed             P P     

Motor vehicle and boat dealers   P P       P P     

Motorcycle dealers   C P P49     P P     

Gasoline service stations P P P P     P P     

Eating and drinking places P41 P P P P46 P P P     

Drug stores P P P P P   P P     

Liquor stores   P P               

Used goods: antiques/secondhand 

shops 
  P P P P           

Sporting goods and related stores   P P P P           

Item 5 - 48

84



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Book, stationery, video and art supply 

stores 
P P P P P           

Jewelry stores   P P P P           

Hobby, toy, game shops P P P P P           

Photographic and electronic shops P P P P P           

Fabric and craft shops P P P P P           

Fuel dealers     P43     P43 P43 P43     

Florist shops P P P P P           

Pet shops P P P P P           

Tire stores   P P P     P P     

Bulk retail   P P       P       

Auction houses     P42       P       

Truck and heavy equipment dealers             P P     

Mobile home and RV dealers     C       P P     

Retail stores similar to those otherwise 

named on this list 
P P P P P48 P44 P44 P44     

Automobile wrecking yards             C P     

Manufacturing Land Uses 

Food and kindred products 
  

P50, 

52 
P50       P50 P     

Winery/brewery   P53 P P53 P53   P P     

Textile mill products             P P     

Apparel and other textile products     C       P P     

Wood products, except furniture     P       P P     

Item 5 - 49

85



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Furniture and fixtures     P       P P     

Paper and allied products             P P     

Printing and publishing P51 P51 P   P51 P P P     

Chemicals and allied products             C C     

Petroleum refining and related 

industries 
            C C     

Rubber and misc. plastics products             P P     

Leather and leather goods             C C     

Stone, clay, glass and concrete products             P P     

Primary metal industries             C P     

Fabricated metal products     C     P P P     

Industrial and commercial machinery             C P     

Heavy machinery and equipment             C P     

Computer and office equipment     C       P       

Electronic and other electric equipment     C       P       

Railroad equipment             C P     

Miscellaneous light manufacturing       P54     P P     

Motor vehicle and bicycle manufacturing             C P     

Aircraft, ship and boat building             C P     

Tire retreading             C P     

Movie production/distribution     P       P       

Resource Land Uses 

Agriculture:                     

Item 5 - 50

86



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Growing and harvesting crops           P P P P   

Raising livestock and small animals           P P P P   

Greenhouse or nursery, wholesale and 

retail 
    P     P P P C   

Farm product processing             P P     

Forestry:                     

Growing and harvesting forest products             P       

Forest research             P       

Wood waste recycling and storage             C C     

Fish and Wildlife Management:                     

Hatchery/fish preserve (55)           P P P C   

Aquaculture (55)             P P C   

Wildlife shelters C C             P   

Mineral:                     

Processing of minerals             P P     

Asphalt paving mixtures and block             P P     

Regional Land Uses 

Jail   C C     C C       

Regional storm water management 

facility 
  C C C   C C C   P 

Public agency animal control facility     C       P P   C 

Public agency training facility   C56 C56   C56   C57     C57 

Nonhydroelectric generation facility C C C       C C   C 

Energy resource recovery facility             C       

Item 5 - 51

87



Specific Land Use NB 

CB 

(63) GC DC 

MU 

(63) BP LI GI REC P/I 

Soil recycling/incineration facility             C C     

Solid waste recycling               C   C 

Transfer station             C C   C 

Wastewater treatment facility           C C C   C 

Transit bus base     C       P     C 

Transit park and pool lot P P P P P P P P   P 

Transit park and ride lot P P P P P P P P   C 

School bus base C C C       P     C58 

Racetrack C59 C59 C       P       

Fairground           P P P   C 

Zoo/wildlife exhibit   C C             C 

Stadium/arena     C       C P   C 

College/university C P P P P P P P   C 

Secure community transition facility               C60     

Opiate substitution treatment program 

facilities 
  

P61, 

62 

P61, 

62 

P61, 

62 
    P62 P62     

 

Section 13. Section 22C.020.070, Permitted uses – Development conditions, of the 

Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) Bed and breakfast guesthouses and inns are subject to the requirements and standards 

contained in Chapter 22C.210 MMC, Bed and Breakfasts. 

(2) Home occupations are subject to the requirements and standards contained in 

Chapter 22C.190 MMC, Home Occupations. 

(3) Limited to one dwelling unit for the purposes of providing on-site service and security of a 

commercial or industrial business. Caretaker’s quarters are subject to the provisions set forth in 

Chapter 22C.110 MMC, entitled “Temporary Uses.” 

(4) All units must be located above a street-level commercial use. 

(5) Twenty percent of the units, but no more than two total units, may be located on the street 

level of a commercial use, if conditional use permit approval is obtained and the units are 
designed exclusively for ADA accessibility. The street-level units shall be designed so that the 

units are not located on the street front and primary access is towards the rear of the building. 

Item 5 - 52

88

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C210.html#22C.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C190.html#22C.190
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C110.html#22C.110


(6) Permitted on the ground floor in the southwest sector of downtown vision plan area, as 

incorporated into the city of Marysville comprehensive plan. 

(7) Mobile homes are only allowed in existing mobile home parks established prior to October 16, 

2006. 

(8) Home occupations are limited to home office uses in multifamily dwellings. No signage is 

permitted in townhouse or multifamily dwellings. 

(9) Permitted in a legal nonconforming or conforming residential structure. 

(10) Subject to Chapter 22C.220 MMC, Master Planned Senior Communities. 

(11) The following conditions and limitations shall apply, where appropriate: 

(a) Parks are permitted in residential and mixed use zones when reviewed as part of a 

subdivision or multiple-family development proposal; otherwise, a conditional use permit is 

required; 

(b) Lighting for structures and fields shall be directed away from residential areas; and 

(c) Structures or service yards shall maintain a minimum distance of 50 feet from property 

lines adjoining residential zones. 

(12) Recreational vehicle parks are subject to the requirements and conditions of 

Chapter 22C.240 MMC. 

(13) Golf Facility. 

(a) Structures, driving ranges and lighted areas shall maintain a minimum distance of 50 

feet from property lines adjoining residential zones. 

(b) Restaurants are permitted as an accessory use to a golf course. 

(14) Shooting Range. 

(a) Structures and ranges shall maintain a minimum distance of 50 feet from property lines 

adjoining residential zones; 

(b) Ranges shall be designed to prevent stray or ricocheting projectiles or pellets from 

leaving the property; and 

(c) Site plans shall include safety features of the range; provisions for reducing noise 

produced on the firing line; and elevations of the range showing target area, backdrops or 

butts. 

(15) Only in an enclosed building. 

(16) Dock and Boathouse, Private, Noncommercial. 

(a) The height of any covered over-water structure shall not exceed 20 feet as measured 

from the line of ordinary high water; 

(b) The total roof area of covered, over-water structures shall not exceed 1,000 square 

feet; 

(c) The entirety of such structures shall have not greater than 50 percent of the width of 

the lot at the natural shoreline upon which it is located; 

(d) No over-water structure shall extend beyond the average length of all pre-existing 

over-water structures along the same shoreline and within 300 feet of the parcel on which 

proposed. Where no such pre-existing structures exist within 300 feet, the pier length shall 

not exceed 50 feet; 

(e) Structures permitted hereunder shall not be used as a dwelling; and 

(f) Covered structures are subject to a minimum setback of five feet from any side lot line 

or extension thereof. No setback from adjacent properties is required for any uncovered 

structure, and no setback from water is required for any structure permitted hereunder. 

(17) Boat Launch, Noncommercial or Private. 

(a) The city may regulate, among other factors, required launching depth, and length of 

docks and piers; 

(b) Safety buoys shall be installed and maintained separating boating activities from other 

water-oriented recreation and uses where this is reasonably required for public safety, 

welfare and health; and 

(c) All site improvements for boat launch facilities shall comply with all other requirements 

of the zone in which it is located. 
(18) Excluding racetrack operation. 

Item 5 - 53

89

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C220.html#22C.220
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C240.html#22C.240


(19) Amusement and recreation services shall be a permitted use if they are located within an 

enclosed building, or a conditional use if located outside. In both instances they would be subject 

to the exclusion of a racetrack operation similar to other commercial zones. 

(20) Structures shall maintain a minimum distance of 100 feet from property lines adjoining 

residential zones. 

(21) Permitted as an accessory use; see MMC 22A.020.020, the definition of “Accessory use, 

commercial/industrial.” 

(22) Only as an accessory to a gasoline service station; see retail and wholesale permitted use 

table in MMC 22C.020.060. 

(23) All processing and storage of material shall be within enclosed buildings and excluding yard 

waste processing. 

(24) Limited to columbariums accessory to a church; provided, that existing required landscaping 

and parking are not reduced. 

(25) Drive-through service windows in excess of one lane are prohibited in Planning Area 1. 

(26) Limited to columbariums accessory to a church; provided, that existing required landscaping 

and parking are not reduced. 

(27) All instruction must be within an enclosed structure. 

(28) Car washes shall be permitted as an accessory use to a gasoline service station. 

(29) Public Safety Facilities, Including Police and Fire. 

(a) All buildings and structures shall maintain a minimum distance of 20 feet from property 

lines adjoining residential zones; 

(b) Any buildings from which fire-fighting equipment emerges onto a street shall maintain 

a distance of 35 feet from such street. 

(30) Outdoor storage of materials or vehicles must be accessory to the primary building area and 

located to the rear of buildings. Outdoor storage is subject to an approved landscape plan that 

provides for effective screening of storage, so that it is not visible from public right-of-way or 

neighboring properties. 

(31) Limited to self-service household moving truck or trailer rental accessory to a gasoline 

service station. 

(32) All WCFs and modifications to WCFs are subject to Chapter 22C.250 MMC including but not 

limited to the siting hierarchy, MMC 22C.250.060. WCFs may be a permitted use or a CUP may 

be required subject to MMC 22C.250.040. 

(33) Subject to the conditions and requirements listed in Chapter 22C.030 MMC. 

(34) Reserved. 

(35) A factory-built commercial building may be used for commercial purposes subject to the 

following requirements: 

(a) A factory-built commercial building must be inspected at least two times at the factory 

by the State Building and Electrical Inspector during the construction process, and must 

receive a state approval stamp certifying that it meets all requirements of the International 

Building and Electrical Codes. At the building site, the city building official will conduct 

foundation, plumbing and final inspections; and 

(b) A factory-built commercial building cannot be attached to a metal frame allowing it to 

be mobile. All structures must be placed on a permanent, poured-in-place foundation. The 

foundation shall be structurally engineered to meet the requirements set forth in Chapter 

16 of the International Building Code. 

(36) Mini-storage facilities are subject to the development standards outlined in 

Chapter 22C.170 MMC. 

(37) Except heavy equipment. 

(38) With outdoor storage and heavy equipment. 

(39) Incidental assembly shall be permitted; provided, it is limited to less than 20 percent of the 

square footage of the site excluding parking. 

(40) Light industrial uses may be permitted; provided, there is no outdoor storage of materials, 

products or vehicles. 
(41) Excluding drinking places such as taverns and bars and adult entertainment facilities. 

(42) Excluding vehicle and livestock auctions. 

(43) If the total storage capacity exceeds 6,000 gallons, a conditional use permit is required. 

Item 5 - 54

90

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C250.html#22C.250.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C030.html#22C.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C170.html#22C.170


(44) The retail sale of products manufactured on site shall be permitted; provided, that not more 

than 20 percent of the constructed floor area in any such development may be devoted to such 

retail use. 

(45) Limited to 5,000 square feet or less. 

(46) Eating and Drinking Places. 

(a) Limited to 4,000 square feet or less. 

(b) Drive-through service windows in excess of one lane are prohibited in Planning Area 1. 

(c) Taverns, bars, lounges, etc., are required to obtain a conditional use permit. 

(47) Limited to hardware and garden supply stores. 

(48) Limited to convenience retail, such as video, and personal and household items. 

(49) Provided there is no outdoor storage and/or display of any materials, products or vehicles. 

(50) Except slaughterhouses. 

(51) Limited to photocopying and printing services offered to the general public. 

(52) Limited to less than 10 employees. 

(53) In conjunction with an eating and drinking establishment. 

(54) Provided there is no outdoor storage and/or display of any materials, products or vehicles. 

(55) May be further subject to the provisions of city of Marysville shoreline management 

program. 

(56) Except weapons armories and outdoor shooting ranges. 

(57) Except outdoor shooting ranges. 

(58) Only in conjunction with an existing or proposed school. 

(59) Except racing of motorized vehicles. 

(60) Limited to land located along east side of 47th Avenue NE alignment, in the east half of the 

northeast quarter of Section 33, Township 30N, Range 5E, W.M., and in the northeast quarter of 

the southeast quarter of Section 33, Township 30N, Range 5E, W.M., and land located east side 

of SR 529, north of Steamboat Slough, south and west of Ebey Slough (a.k.a. TP No. 300533-

002-004-00) and in the northwest and southwest quarters of Section 33, Township 30N, Range 

5E, W.M., as identified in Exhibit A, attached to Ordinance No. 2452. 

(61) Opiate substitution treatment program facilities permitted within commercial zones are 

subject to Chapter 22G.070 MMC, Siting Process for Essential Public Facilities. 

(62) Opiate substitution treatment program facilities, as defined in MMC 22A.020.160, are 

subject to the standards set forth below: 

(a) Shall not be established within 300 feet of an existing school, public playground, public 

park, residential housing area, child-care facility, or actual place of regular worship 

established prior to the proposed treatment facility. 

(b) Hours of operation shall be restricted to no earlier than 6:00 a.m. and no later than 

7:00 p.m. daily. 

(c) The owners and operators of the facility shall be required to take positive ongoing 

measures to preclude loitering in the vicinity of the facility. 

(63) Permitted uses include Whiskey Ridge zones. 

(64) Level 1 and Level 2 charging only. 

(65) The term “rapid” is used interchangeably with Level 3 and fast charging. 

(66) Rapid (Level 3) charging stations are required to comply with the design and landscaping 

standards outlined in MMC 22C.020.265. 

(67) Rapid (Level 3) charging stations are required to be placed within a parking garage. 

(68) Excepting “marijuana (cannabis) dispensaries,” “marijuana (cannabis) collective gardens,” 

and “marijuana cooperatives” as those terms are defined or described in this code and/or under 

state law; such facilities and/or uses are prohibited in all zoning districts of the city of Marysville. 

(69) No person or entity may produce, grow, manufacture, process, accept donations for, give 

away, or sell marijuana concentrates, marijuana-infused products, or usable marijuana within 

commercial, industrial, recreation, and public institution zones in the city. Provided, activities in 

strict compliance with RCW 69.51A.210 and 69.51A.260 are not a violation of the Marysville 

Municipal Code. 
(70) Permitted within existing legal nonconforming single-family residences. 

(71) Subject to the requirements set forth in MMC 10.04.460.* 

Item 5 - 55

91

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G070.html#22G.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.265
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=69.51A.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=69.51A.260


(72) Pet daycares are restricted to indoor facilities with limited, supervised access to an outdoor 

fenced yard. Overnight boarding may be permitted as a limited, incidental use. Both outdoor 

access and overnight boarding privileges may be revoked or modified if the facility is not able to 

comply with the noise standards set forth in WAC 173-60-040.*  

(73) Shipping/cargo and similar storage containers may be installed on commercial or industrial 

properties provided they are screened from public view pursuant to MMC 22C.120.160, 

Screening and impact abatement. 

 

Section 14. Section 22C.020.190, Height – Exceptions to limits, of the Marysville 

Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.020.080(2): 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans or similar 

equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, flagpoles, and 

utility line towers and poles.  

 

Section 15. Section 22C.130.030, Minimum required parking spaces, of MMC Chapter 

22C.13O, Parking and Loading, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) Purpose. The purpose of required parking spaces is to provide enough parking to 

accommodate the majority of traffic generated by the range of uses which might locate at the 

site over time. As provided in subsection (2)(e) of this section, bicycle parking may be 

substituted for some required parking on a site to encourage transit use and bicycling by 

employees and visitors to the site. The required parking numbers correspond to specific land use 

categories. Provision of carpool parking, and locating it closest to the building entrance, will 

encourage carpool use. 

(2) Minimum Number of Parking Spaces Required. 

(a) The minimum number of parking spaces for all zones and use categories is stated in 

Table 1. 

(b) If the parking formula used to determine parking requirements results in a fractional 

number greater than or equal to one-half, the proponent shall provide parking equal to the 

next highest whole number. 

(c) Changes in Occupancy. Whenever the occupancy classification of a building is changed, 

the minimum standards for off-street parking for the new occupancy classification shall be 

applicable; provided, that if the existing occupancy had established a legal nonconforming 

status with respect to off-street parking requirements, no additional off-street parking shall 

be required for the new occupancy unless said new occupancy is in a classification requiring 

more parking than that which would have been required for the existing occupancy if it had 

been subject to the provisions of this chapter. If strict application of this section is not 

feasible due to existing site conditions such as building or parcel size, shape or layout, a 

variance may be granted by the community development director. 

(d) Joint Use Parking. Joint use of required parking spaces may occur where two or more 

uses on the same or separate sites are able to share the same parking spaces because 

their parking demands occur at different times. Joint use of required nonresidential parking 

spaces is allowed if the following documentation is submitted in writing to the community 

development department as part of a building or land use permit application, and approved 

by the community development director: 

(i) The names and addresses of the uses and of the owners or tenants that are 

sharing the parking; 

(ii) The location and number of parking spaces that are being shared; 

(iii) An analysis showing that the peak parking times for the uses occur at different 
times and that the parking area will be large enough for the anticipated demands of 

both uses; and 

Item 5 - 56

92

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-60-040
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.080


(iv) A legal instrument such as an easement or deed restriction that guarantees 

access to the parking for both uses. 

The building or use for which application is being made to utilize the off-street parking 

facilities provided by another building or use shall be located within 500 feet of such 

parking facilities. 

(e) Bicycle parking may substitute for up to 10 percent of required parking. For every five 

nonrequired bicycle parking spaces that meet the bicycle parking standards in 

MMC 22C.130.060, the motor vehicle parking requirement is reduced by one space. 

Existing parking may be converted to take advantage of this provision. 

(f) The off-street parking and loading requirements of this chapter do not apply 

retroactively to established uses; however: 

(i) The site to which a building is relocated must provide the required spaces; and 

(ii) A person increasing the floor area, or other measure of off-street parking and 

loading requirements, by addition or alteration, must provide spaces as required for 

the increase, unless the requirement under this subsection is five spaces or fewer. 

(g) Reduction of Required Spaces When Effective Alternatives to Automobile Access Are 

Proposed. Upon demonstration to the hearing examiner that effective alternatives to 

automobile access are proposed to be implemented, the examiner may reduce by not more 

than 40 percent the parking requirements otherwise prescribed for any use or combination 

of uses on the same or adjoining sites, to an extent commensurate with the permanence, 

effectiveness, and demonstrated reduction in off-street parking demand achieved by such 

alternative programs. Alternative programs which may be considered by the examiner 

under this provision include, but are not limited to, the following: 

(i) Private vanpool operation; 

(ii) Transit/vanpool fare subsidy; 

(iii) Imposition of a charge for parking; 

(iv) Provision of subscription bus services; 

(v) Flexible work-hour schedule; 

(vi) Capital improvement for transit services; 

(vii) Preferential parking for carpools/vanpools; 

(viii) Participation in the ride-matching program; 

(ix) Reduction of parking fees for carpools and vanpools; 

(x) Establishment of a transportation coordinator position to implement carpool, 

vanpool, and transit programs; or 

(xi) Bicycle parking facilities. 

(h) Reduction of Required Spaces in Downtown Vision Plan Area. Commercial uses within 

the downtown core, southwest sector, southeast sector, and waterfront sector may reduce 

the number of required off-street parking spaces in accordance with this section, upon 

demonstration to the community development department that the proposed use is in 

conformance with the downtown master plan guidelines as set forth in the comprehensive 

plan. Expansion of existing commercial buildings and uses is required to demonstrate 

conformance with the city’s design standards and guidelines or to incorporate reasonable 

measures to meet the intent of the guidelines for existing uses. For commercial uses 

requiring less than 10 spaces, the parking requirements may be waived by the director. For 

required parking in excess of 10 spaces, the applicant must demonstrate that adequate on-

street parking facilities exist within 400 feet of the proposed use in order to qualify for a 

reduction. Parking may be reduced by up to 50 percent if consistent with the downtown 

master plan guidelines. In approving a reduction to required off-street parking, the 

department may require improvement of existing right-of-way to meet the intent of this 

code and the downtown master plan in providing improved parking, walkways and access 

to the business. 

(i) Uses Not Mentioned. In the case of a use not specifically mentioned in Table 1: 

Minimum Required Parking Spaces, the requirements for off-street parking shall be 
determined by the community development director. If there are comparable uses, the 

community development director’s determination shall be based on the requirements for 

the most comparable use(s). Where, in the judgment of the community development 

Item 5 - 57

93

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C130.html#22C.130.060


director, none of the uses in Table 1: Minimum Required Parking Spaces are comparable, 

the community development director may base his or her determination as to the amount 

of parking required for the proposed use on detailed information provided by the applicant. 

The information required may include, but not be limited to, a description of the physical 

structure(s), identification of potential users, and analysis of likely parking demand. 

(3) Carpool Parking. For office, industrial, and institutional uses where there are more than 20 

parking spaces on the site, the following standards must be met: 

(a) Five spaces or five percent of the parking spaces on site, whichever is less, must be 

reserved for carpool use before 9:00 a.m. on weekdays. More spaces may be reserved, but 

they are not required. 

(b) The spaces will be those closest to the building entrance or elevator, but not closer 

than the spaces for disabled parking and those signed for exclusive customer use. 

(c) Signs must be posted indicating these spaces are reserved for carpool use before 9:00 

a.m. on weekdays. 

Table 1: Minimum Required Parking Spaces  

LAND USE MINIMUM REQUIRED SPACES 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Single-family dwellings, duplexes, 

townhouses, and mobile homes 

2 per dwelling unit for residents plus one additional guest 

parking space per dwelling unit; provided: 

1. One guest parking space is required per unit, where aAn 

enclosed private garage is may be utilized to meet the required 

parking for residents. Driveways can be counted as resident or 

a guest parking spaces, provided said driveway complies with 

the bulk and dimensional requirements outlined in Table 2; and 

2. Parking spaces behind other required parking spaces (a.k.a. 

“tandem parking”) shall not be counted towards the 2 required 

parking spaces per dwelling for the residentsin a development; 

however, tandem parking can be counted as a guest parking 

space., when required 

Accessory dwelling units 1 space per dwelling unit 

Multiple-family dwellings, one 

bedroom per unit 

1.5 per dwelling unit. Parking spaces behind other required 

parking spaces (a.k.a. “tandem parking”) shall not be counted 

towards the 2 required parking spaces in a multifamily 

development; however, tandem parking can be counted as a 

guest parking space, when required 

Multiple-family dwellings, two or 

more bedrooms 

1.75 per dwelling unit. Parking spaces behind other required 

parking spaces (a.k.a. “tandem parking”) shall not be counted 

towards the 2 required parking spaces in a multifamily 

development; however, tandem parking can be counted as a 

guest parking space, when required 

Retirement housing and 

apartments 

1 per dwelling 

Mobile home parks 2 per unit, plus guest parking at 1 per 4 lots 

Rooming houses, similar uses 1 per dwelling 

Bed and breakfast 

accommodations 

1 space for each room for rent, plus 2 spaces for the principal 

residential use 

RECREATIONAL/CULTURAL USES 

Movie theaters 1 per 4 seats 

Item 5 - 58

94



Table 1: Minimum Required Parking Spaces  

LAND USE MINIMUM REQUIRED SPACES 

Stadiums, sports arenas and 

similar open assemblies 

1 per 8 seats or 1 per 100 SF of assembly space without fixed 

seats 

Dance halls and places of 

assembly w/o fixed seats 

1 per 75 SF of gross floor area 

Bowling alleys 5 per lane 

Skating rinks 1 per 75 SF of gross floor area 

Tennis courts, racquet clubs, 

handball courts and other similar 

commercial recreation 

1 space per 40 SF of gross floor area used for assembly, plus 2 

per court 

Swimming pools (indoor and 

outdoor) 

1 per 10 swimmers, based on pool capacity as defined by the 

Washington State Department of Health 

Golf courses 4 spaces for each green, plus 50% of spaces otherwise 

required for any accessory uses (e.g., bars, restaurants) 

Gymnasiums, health clubs 1 space per each 200 SF of gross floor area 

Churches, auditoriums and similar 

enclosed places of assembly 

1 per 4 seats or 60 lineal inches of pew or 40 SF gross floor 

area used for assembly 

Art galleries and museums 1 per 250 SF of gross floor area 

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE USES 

Banks, business and professional 

offices (other than medical and 

dental) with on-site customer 

service 

1 per 400 SF gross floor area 

Retail stores and personal service 

shops unless otherwise provided 

herein 

If < 5,000 SF floor area, 1 per 600 SF gross floor area; if > 

5,000 SF floor area, 8 plus 1 per each 300 SF gross floor area 

over 5,000 SF 

Grocery stores 1 space per 200 SF of customer service area 

Barber and beauty shops 1 space per 200 SF 

Motor vehicle sales and service 2 per service bay plus 1 per 1,000 SF of outdoor display 

Motor vehicle or machinery 

repair, without sales 

2 plus 2 per service bay 

Mobile home and recreational 

vehicle sales 

1 per 3,000 SF of outdoor display area 

Motels and hotels 1 per unit or room 

Restaurants, taverns, bars with 

on-premises consumption 

If < 4,000 SF, 1 per 200 SF gross floor area; if > 4,000 SF, 20 

plus 1 per 100 SF gross floor area over 4,000 SF 

Drive-in restaurants and similar 

establishments, primarily for 

auto-borne customers 

1 per 75 SF of gross floor area. Stacking spaces shall be 

provided in accordance with Chapter 22C.140 MMC, Drive-

Through Facilities 

Shopping centers If < 15,000 SF, 1 per 200 SF of gross floor area; if > 15,000 

SF, 1 per 250 SF of gross floor area 

Item 5 - 59

95

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C140.html#22C.140


Table 1: Minimum Required Parking Spaces  

LAND USE MINIMUM REQUIRED SPACES 

Day care centers 1 space per staff member and 1 space per 10 clients. A paved 

unobstructed pick-up area shall be set aside for dropping off 

and picking up children in a safe manner that will not cause the 

children to cross the parking area or lines of traffic 

Funeral parlors, mortuaries or 

cemeteries 

1 per 4 seats or 8 feet of bench or pew or 1 per 40 SF of 

assembly room used for services if no fixed seating is provided 

Gasoline/service stations 

w/grocery 

1 per employee plus 1 per 200 SF gross floor area 

Adult facilities as defined by 

MMC 22A.020.020 

1 per 75 SF of gross floor area or, in the case of an adult drive-

in theater, 1 per viewing space 

HEALTH SERVICES USES 

Nursing homes, convalescent 

homes for aged 

1 per 5 beds plus 1 space per employee and medical staff 

Medical and dental clinics 1 per 200 SF gross floor area 

Hospitals 1 per 2 beds, excluding bassinets 

EDUCATIONAL USES 

Elementary, junior high schools 

(public and private) 

5 plus 1 per each employee and faculty member 

Senior high schools (public and 

private) 

1 per each 10 students plus 1 per each employee or faculty 

member 

Commercial/vocational schools 1 per each employee plus 1 per each 2 students 

PUBLIC/GOVERNMENT USES 

Public utility and governmental 

buildings 

1 per 400 SF of gross floor area 

Libraries 1 per 250 SF of gross floor area 

MANUFACTURING/WAREHOUSE USES 

Manufacturing and industrial uses 

of all types, except a building 

used exclusively for warehouse 

purposes 

One per 500 SF of gross floor area plus 1 per each 2 

employees on maximum working shift 

Warehouses, storage and 

wholesale businesses 

1 per each 2 employees on maximum working shift 

Mini self-storage 1 per each 50 storage cubicles equally distributed and 

proximate to storage buildings. In addition, 1 space for each 

50 storage cubicles to be located at the project office 

 

Item 5 - 60

96

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22A/Marysville22A020.html#22A.020.020


Section 16. Section 22C.160.080, Exemptions, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply with all other 

requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth below for each type of 

sign: 

(1) A change in the face of the sign or advertising copy of an existing, legally permitted, sign. 

(2) Temporary and special event signs meeting the requirements of MMC 22C.160.230. 

(3) On-premises and portable commercial or real estate signs meeting the requirements of 

MMC 22C.160.230(5) and (6). 

(4) Political signs meeting the requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(7). 

(5) Nonelectric signs not exceeding four square feet per face, which are limited in content to the 

name of occupant and address of the premises in a residential zone. 

(6) Instructional signs, not exceeding six square feet per sign; provided, that foundation, 

anchorage, attachments and other structural support of the sign and electrical connection require 

construction permits. 

(7) Menu signs. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of the sign and 

electrical connection require construction permits. 

(8) Seasonal decorations. Reasonable seasonal decorations within an appropriate holiday season 

or during a festival are exempt from this section as long as such displays are removed promptly 

at the end of the holiday season or festival. 

(9) Sculptures, fountains, benches, lighting, mosaics, murals, landscaping and other street 

furniture and design features, which do not incorporate advertising or identification. 

(10) Signs not visible from public way. Exterior and interior signs or displays not intended to be 

visible from streets or public ways, signs in the interior of a building more than three feet from the 

closest window and not facing a window, window displays and point of purchase advertising 

displays such as vending machines. 

(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit organization, 

subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the government or organization which 

they represent. Flag poles require a construction permit for structural review. 

(1112) Traffic or other municipal signs, signs required by law or emergency services, railroad 

crossing signs, legal notices, and any temporary signs specifically authorized by the city council or 

authorized under policies and procedures adopted by the city council. 

(1213) Signs of public utility companies indicating danger or which serve as an aid to public safety 

or which show the location of underground facilities or of public telephones. 

(1314) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings, stained glass windows and dates of erection 

when cut into the surface of the facade of the building or when projecting not more than two 

inches. 

(1415) Incidental signs, including, but not limited to, “no trespassing,” “no dumping,” “no parking,” 

“private,” signs identifying essential public needs (i.e., restrooms, entrance, exit, telephone, etc.) 

and other information warning signs, which shall not exceed three square feet in surface area. 

(1516) Flush-mounted wall signs which are used to identify the name and address of the occupant 

for each dwelling, provided the sign does not exceed two square feet in sign area. 

(1617) Gateway entrance signs. Gateway entrance signs that comply with the city of Marysville 

gateway master plan. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structure support of the sign 

and electrical connection require construction permits. 

 

Section 17. Section 22G.080.100, Open spaces, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

(1) A minimum of 15 percent of the net project area shall be established as open space. Critical 

areas and buffers may be used to satisfy a maximum of 65 percent of the required open space. 
Parking areas, driveways, access streets and required yards are not considered to be open space 
for purposes of this section. Critical areas and buffers may be used to satisfy up to 10 percent of 

Item 5 - 61

97

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230


this requirement. Fencing and/or landscaping shall separate, while maintaining visual 

observability of, recreation areas from public streets, parking areas and driveways. 
(2) Open space and recreational facilities shall be owned, operated and maintained in common 

by the PRD property owners; provided, that by agreement with the city council, open space may 

be dedicated in fee to the public. 

(3) The open space requirement may be reduced if substantial and appropriate recreational 

facilities (such as recreational buildings, swimming pools or tennis courts) are provided. If an 

open space reduction is proposed, detailed plans showing the proposed recreational facilities 

must be submitted with the preliminary site plan. 

(4) Open space excluding critical areas and buffers shall: 

(a) Be of a grade and surface suitable for recreation; 

(b) Be on the site of the proposed development; 

(c) Be one continuous parcel if less than 3,000 square feet in size, not to be located in the 

front yard setback; 

(d) Have no dimensions less than 30 feet (except trail segments); 

(e) Be situated and designed to be observable by the public; and 

(f) Be accessible and convenient to all residents within the development.  

 

Section 18. Section 22A.010.160, Amendments, of the Marysville Municipal Code is 

hereby amended as follows by adding reference to this adopted ordinance in order to track 

amendments to the City’s Unified Development Code: 

 

“22A.010.160 Amendments. 

 The following amendments have been made to the UDC subsequent to its adoption: 

 

Ordinance Title (description) Effective Date 

 

_______ 2016 Code Clean-Up Amendments  _______, 2017” 

 

Section 19.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

such invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 

other section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this ordinance. 

 

Section 20. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective five days after the date 

of its publication by summary. 

 

 PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this ______ day of 

__________________, 2017. 

 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 JON NEHRING, MAYOR 

 

Attest: 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 APRIL O’BRIEN, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

Approved as to form: 

 

Item 5 - 62

98



By: ________________________________ 

 JON WALKER, CITY ATTORNEY 

 

Date of Publication:   

 

Effective Date:  ______________________  

 (5 days after publication) 

Item 5 - 63

99



Item 5 - 64

100



Item 5 - 65

101



Item 5 - 66

102



Item 5 - 67

103



Item 5 - 68

104



Item 5 - 69

105



Item 5 - 70

106



Item 5 - 71

107



Item 5 - 72

108



Item 5 - 73

109



Item 5 - 74

110



Item 5 - 75

111



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE: January 5, 2017    

 

TO: Planning Commission     

 

FROM: Angela Gemmer, Senior Planner  

 

 RE: 2016-17 Code Amendments:  DRAFT Amendment 7 – flags and flagpoles 

 

 CC: Dave Koenig, Community Development Director 

  Chris Holland, Planning Manager  

  Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner  

  Amy Hess, Associate Planner 

  

The following are proposed amendments pertaining to flags and flagpoles that are part of the 

overall 2016-17 amendments to the Marysville Municipal Code (MMC) – primarily Title 22C, 

Land Use Standards. The need for these amendments arose from a citizen-initiated code 

enforcement concern pertaining to the proximity of a flagpole to a property line (please see 

the attached public comments).  

 

During review of the concern, the question arose whether the height and setback 

requirements applicable to accessory structures such as garages and sheds should apply to 

flagpoles since the MMC definition of accessory structures identifies flagpoles as a type of 

accessory structure.  An “accessory structure” is defined in MMC 22A.020.020, as follows: 

 

“Accessory structure” means a structure of secondary importance or function on a site. 

In general, the primary use of the site is not carried on in an accessory structure.  

(1) Accessory structures may be attached or detached from the primary structure.  

(2) Examples of accessory structures include:  

(a) Garages; 

(b) Decks; 

(c) Fences;  

(d) Trellises;  

(e) Flagpoles;  

(f) Stairways; 

(g) Heat pumps;  

(h) Awnings; and  

(i) Other structures.  

 

Since the MMC is mainly silent of accessory structures such as trellises, flagpoles, heat pumps, 

awnings, and other structures, staff had difficulties identifying how flagpoles should be treated 

in regards to height and setbacks.  Ultimately, due to the fact that the code is mostly silent 

regarding flagpoles, staff decided that they should be required to comply with the provisions 

of MMC Chapter 22C.180 Accessory Structures.  These provisions require flagpoles not to 

exceed 20’ in height and be setback a minimum of 5’ from the side and rear lot lines and 

Item 5 - 76

112

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/marysville22c/Marysville22C180.html#22C.180


provide the minimum required front yard setback for principal structures in the zone (20’, but 

can be reduced to 10’ on a case-by-case basis). 

  

When MMC Chapter 22C.180 Accessory Structures was adopted, the provisions of the code 

were intended for such uses as garages, sheds, carports and accessory dwelling units.  

Therefore, staff decided to research potential amendments related to flags and flagpoles. 

 

In considering amendments to the MMC, staff researched the regulations for numerous 

jurisdictions throughout the State of Washington and found that most every jurisdictions’ code 

was silent on flags and flagpoles with the exception of the City of Spokane. The proposed 

amendments are adapted from Spokane’s regulations, and incorporate other revisions 

identified by staff to clarify the applicable standards. These amendments resolve the location 

and height standards applicable to flagpoles, and provide clarification on aspects of the sign 

code that pertain to flags.  

 

Amendment 7 
 

Suggested code amendments:  

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

22A.020.070 “F” definitions. 

 

Option 1:  “Flagpole” a tall pole from which a flag hangs 

 

Option 2:  “Flagpole” means a tall pole on which a flag is or can be displayed; OR 

 

Option 3:  “Flagpole” means a staff or pole on which a flag is or can be displayed. 

 

22A.020.200 “S” definitions. 

 

“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way 

or surrounding properties and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy 

conveying a message or image and used to inform or attract the attention of the public, 

such as advertising or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or activity. 

A sign may have multiple faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, 

businesses, products, services, or activities. This definition does not include any flag 

of any country, state or local jurisdiction. Unless the context clearly provides to the 

contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes the “sign structure.” 

 

RESIDENTIAL ZONES 

 

22C.010.220 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080: 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and 

utility line towers and poles. 

(3) Flagpoles and other similar items with a width, depth or diameter of five feet or 

less may rise ten feet above the height limit, or five feet above the highest point of 

the roof, whichever is greater.  If these items are greater than five feet in width, depth 

or diameter, they are subject to the height limit. 

 

Item 5 - 77

113

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.080


22C.010.210 Setbacks – Projections allowed. 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may 

project into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear 

setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above 

the finished grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, 

and uncovered accessory structures such as flagpoles, lamp posts, signs, radio 

antennas and dishes, mechanical equipment, play structures, and tennis courts, may 

project to the property line, provided that flags shall not be displayed in a manner that 

would cause the flag to encroach onto a neighboring property; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development.  

 

COMMERCIAL ZONES 

 

22C.020.190 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 

22C.020.080(2): 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, 

flagpoles and utility line towers and poles. 

 

SIGN CODE 

 

22C.160.080 Exemptions. 

The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply with 

all other requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth 

below for each type of sign: 

(1) A change in the face of the sign or advertising copy of an existing, legally 

permitted, sign. 

(2) Temporary and special event signs meeting the requirements of MMC 

22C.160.230. 

(3) On-premises and portable commercial or real estate signs meeting the 

requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(5) and (6). 

(4) Political signs meeting the requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(7). 

(5) Nonelectric signs not exceeding four square feet per face, which are limited in 

content to the name of occupant and address of the premises in a residential zone. 

(6) Instructional signs, not exceeding six square feet per sign; provided, that 

foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of the sign and 

electrical connection require construction permits. 

(7) Menu signs. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of 

the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

Item 5 - 78

114

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230


(8) Seasonal decorations. Reasonable seasonal decorations within an appropriate 

holiday season or during a festival are exempt from this section as long as such 

displays are removed promptly at the end of the holiday season or festival. 

(9) Sculptures, fountains, benches, lighting, mosaics, murals, landscaping and other 

street furniture and design features, which do not incorporate advertising or 

identification. 

(10) Signs not visible from public way. Exterior and interior signs or displays not 

intended to be visible from streets or public ways, signs in the interior of a building 

more than three feet from the closest window and not facing a window, window 

displays and point of purchase advertising displays such as vending machines. 

(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit 

organization, subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the 

government or organization which they represent. Flag poles require a construction 

permit for structural review. 

(12) Traffic or other municipal signs, signs required by law or emergency services, 

railroad crossing signs, legal notices, and any temporary signs specifically authorized 

by the city council or authorized under policies and procedures adopted by the city 

council. 

(13) Signs of public utility companies indicating danger or which serve as an aid to 

public safety or which show the location of underground facilities or of public 

telephones. 

(14) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings, stained glass windows and dates 

of erection when cut into the surface of the facade of the building or when projecting 

not more than two inches. 

(15) Incidental signs, including, but not limited to, “no trespassing,” “no dumping,” 

“no parking,” “private,” signs identifying essential public needs (i.e., restrooms, 

entrance, exit, telephone, etc.) and other information warning signs, which shall not 

exceed three square feet in surface area. 

(16) Flush-mounted wall signs which are used to identify the name and address of the 

occupant for each dwelling, provided the sign does not exceed two square feet in sign 

area. 

(17) Gateway entrance signs. Gateway entrance signs that comply with the city of 

Marysville gateway master plan. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other 

structure support of the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

 
Attached are the following documents related to the proposed code amendment: 

 

1. Letter from Mr. Evan Kaiser to Gloria Hirashima, dated November 8, 2016 

2. E-mail from Gloria Hirashima, CAO, to Mr. Evan Kaiser, dated November 18, 2016 

3. Letter from Mr. Evan Kaiser and Ms. Patricia Kaiser to Marysville City Council 

4. E-mail from Mr. Evan Kaiser to Janis Lamoureux, dated December 21, 2016 

5. E-mail from Dave Koenig, CD Director, to Mr. Evan Kaiser, dated December 22, 

2016 

 

Community Development staff requests the Planning Commission review the DRAFT 

amendments related to flags and flagpoles and provide direction on finalizing the proposed 

code amendments for public review. 

Item 5 - 79

115



Item 5 - 80

116



Item 5 - 81

117



Item 5 - 82

118



Item 5 - 83

119



Item 5 - 84

120



From: Gloria Hirashima  
Sent: Friday, November 18, 2016 5:08 PM 
To: 'epkservices@comcast.net' <epkservices@comcast.net> 
Subject: Response to meeting 
 

Dear Mr. Kaiser: 

Thank you for contacting me regarding your concerns at our meeting last Tuesday 11/8/16.  I have 

reviewed the correspondence you provided dated 11/8/16 as well as emails received this week 

concerning the flagpole located at 2914-73rd Avenue NE.  The case number is CE16-000433.  I shared 

your letter with Dave Koenig and he has provided me with an overview of the code enforcement 

investigation and determinations made by the Community Development Department.  In my response 

below, I am answering several inquiries/questions that appeared directed at me.  I am not responding to 

issues that I believe were covered, or concluded by Dave’s email responses as I do not wish to duplicate 

or confuse matters. 

I understand that you feel our definitions for flags, flagpoles and how we address permitting is 

inadequate.  I have discussed this with the department and we share your concerns.  We will be 

reviewing the requirements for flags, flagpoles and updating/clarifying the municipal code as 

appropriate (sign code and building or land use requirements).  I believe this can be completed within 

the next 3 months.   

I am aware that Dave responded to your direct inquires to the department with an email response this 

afternoon.  It is my understanding that staff did confirm a code violation in that 1) the pole did not have 

a permit issued; and 2) the pole did not meet minimum setbacks for the structure.  Mr. Koenig did meet 

with your neighbor to review the situation and she immediately consented to discontinue use of the 

flagpole and relocate the structure to meet required setbacks and to obtain a permit for the new 

location.  The department did issue a permit for the relocation, subject to meeting setbacks.  The old 

flagpole has been retracted and the flag removed.  This same structure will be relocated to the new 

location.   With the relocation of the flagpole to the new location, under a valid permit and meeting 

setback requirements, the case file on CE16-000433 will be closed.   

I will confirm that we do investigate noise complaints.  If the complaint is valid, we will enforce the 

codes.  I understand that you did not file a noise complaint but have raised the possibility of a future 

concern in your letter.  At this time, the flag has been removed.  In future, the pole will be moved to a 

new location that will be further removed from the property line.   

Regarding your question as to what 4.02.020(7)(b) “A nuisance at common law” means.  I have no idea 

what this phrase means and would concur that the section should be clarified or removed if it cannot be 

better defined or understood.  We will address this during our review of the flag requirements and 

definitions. 

You asked if several complaints are typically combined.  The answer is yes and this has been historic 

practice by the department.  If several complaints are made regarding the same location, the 

department will combine the complaints into one CE file and number.  This is desirable from a tracking 

and efficiency standpoint.   The department does not have a uniform policy as it relates to 

communicating with diverse complainants, but is willing to accommodate requests to meet customer 

service needs.  For instance, in your case, you and your wife made separate complaints and made it 

Item 5 - 85

121

mailto:epkservices@comcast.net


known that you wished to have separate responses.  The department is sending separate responses now 

as a result.  

I realize that when we met you were dissatisfied with the City’s level of service and response.  In my 

discussions with the department it was clear that they were attempting to respond to your requests for 

information, as well as work with the neighboring property owners to address the code violation.  Your 

neighbor is being cooperative in working with the department to understand and meet city code 

requirements.   While I understand that you feel we should have addressed this sooner, I hope that the 

department’s and your neighbor’s actions this past week demonstrate our mutual efforts to respond to 

your concerns.   

Best wishes,  

Gloria Hirashima 

 

Gloria Hirashima 
Chief Administrative Officer 
City of Marysville 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 
(360) 363-8088 
ghirashima@marysvillewa.gov 
 

 

Item 5 - 86

122

mailto:ghirashima@marysvillewa.gov


Item 5 - 87

123



Item 5 - 88

124



Item 5 - 89

125



Item 5 - 90

126



Item 5 - 91

127



Item 5 - 92

128



Item 5 - 93

129



Item 5 - 94

130



Item 5 - 95

131



Item 5 - 96

132



Item 5 - 97

133



Item 5 - 98

134



Item 5 - 99

135



From: roumx@comcast.net [mailto:roumx@comcast.net]  
Sent: Wednesday, December 21, 2016 10:27 AM 
To: Janis Lamoureux <jlamoureux@marysvillewa.gov> 
Subject: Questions 

 

Planning Department 
Marysville, WA 
To: Janis Lamoureux 
  
The website states that I should contact you with questions about the planning 
commission, and I have several questions. Can the head of the planning department or 
any other member of the planning department or planning commission answer these 
questions? If so, I would like to have a reasonable estimate as to when I might receive a 
reply to these questions. During the holiday season, responses may often be delayed. I 
am requesting a reasonable estimate, not a definite time in which I might receive a 
replay. This is not a complaint, but a request for information. 
  
These members are appointed by the mayor and city council. Does the city have on file 
a list of the qualifications, educational background, or any pertinent experience in 
planning for each member and if so, is this information available on the website or at 
some city office? 
  
Are any city employees members of this commission? 
  
Are any city employees required to attend these meeting and if so, please list the 
employees’ names and their departments? As an alternative, if this information is 
available on the website or in the MMC, you may just supply me with this information. 
  
One of the duties of this commission is to review all proposed amendments to the city 
zoning code, subdivision code and shoreline management code. Title 22 of the MMC is 
the UDC. Does the planning commission or the planning department make, review and 
submit to the city council all of the codes in the UDC? 
  
Mrs. Hirashima has informed me that the planning commission will be addressing the 
current codes for flagpoles and possibly other codes in the UDC. I would like to know, 
when available, the meeting dates at which any of these code changes, or additions, will 
be discussed.   
  
Mr. Koenig and Ms. Hirashima are aware that there are several codes that need 
clarification. I have found the wording in many of the codes in the UDC to be 
contradictory and, or confusing. Listed below are two codes that I believe are 
contradictory. These codes were apparently prepared by and reviewed by some 
employee, the planning commission and the city council. I believe that I know how such 
a confusing statement was inserted into the codes. Anyone can make a mistake. I 
believe that this problem is not a mistake, but the result of the procedures used to make 
changes to the MMC. Do you believe that these statements are contradictory or 

Item 5 - 100

136

mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:jlamoureux@marysvillewa.gov


confusing? Should these codes be clarified? What measures do you believe should be 
instituted to insure that such problems are eliminated or reduced in the future? 

22A.020.200 “S” definitions. 
“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way or surrounding properties 
and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy conveying a message or image and used to inform or attract 
the attention of the public, such as advertising or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or 
activity. A sign may have multiple faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, businesses, 
products, services, or activities. This definition does not include any flag of any country, state or local 
jurisdiction. Unless the context clearly provides to the contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes 
the “sign structure.” 
(Ord. 2955, 2014; Ord. 2870 § 5, 2011; Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 
  

22C.160.080 Exemptions.  

The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply with all other 

requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth below for each type of sign: 

(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit organization, 

subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the government or organization which they represent. 

Flag poles require a construction permit for structural review. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

If a flag is not a sign, why does item 11 exempt these signs (flags) from obtaining a sign permit? Would the 12th 

man flag be a sign? The 12th man flag is not a flag of any country, state or local jurisdiction but is a flag, 

emblem or insignia of a nonprofit organization.  

You may think this is petty, but the word is flagpole, not flag pole. 

Thank you, 

Evan Kaiser 

Item 5 - 101

137



From: David Koenig  

Sent: Thursday, December 22, 2016 12:54 PM 

To: 'roumx@comcast.net' <roumx@comcast.net> 

Subject: Response to email to Janis Lamoureux 

 

Mr. Kaiser 

 

This is the response to your email to Janis Lamoureux received on Wednesday December 21, 

2016. 

 

Information about the Planning Commission from the Marysville Municipal Code is below.  This 

includes information on the City Council review of Planning Commission actions.  Planning 

Commission is an advisory committee to the City Council and all the Marysville Municipal Code 

is approved by the City Council. 

 

There are no city employees serving on the Planning Commission.  Planning staff in the 

Community Development Department provide staff support for the Planning Commission and 

provide them staff reports and respond to information requests to help them make a 

recommendation to the City Council.  Staff attend as needed.  An example is the City Engineer 

attends when there are transportation and utility infrastructure topics to support Planning 

Staff.   The minutes of the Planning Commission has a record of the staff who are in attendance 

at each Planning Commission meeting.  These minutes can be found at the link below.   

 

The next Planning Commission meeting will be January 10 in the City Council Chambers and 

they will be starting their review of the flagpole code related topics that evening.  Additional 

meetings would be scheduled in the future.  All meetings are open to the public and the public is 

encouraged to attend.  The Planning Commission meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of the month, 

as needed.  Additional information about the Planning Commission may be found at:  

 

http://www.marysvillewa.gov/259/Planning-Commission 

 

Thank you for providing your thoughts on the code.  Your email correspondence of Wednesday 

December 21, 2016, will be provided to the Planning Commission.  Your questions and thoughts 

about the code expressed in your email will be provided to the Planning Commission for their 

consideration. 

 

 

 

Chapter 22G.050 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Sections: 

 

22G.050.010    Planning commission created. 

 

22G.050.020    Appointment of members – Term of office. 

Item 5 - 102

138

mailto:roumx@comcast.net
http://www.marysvillewa.gov/259/Planning-Commission


 

22G.050.030    Expenses. 

 

22G.050.040    Meetings – Officers – Rules. 

 

22G.050.050    Quorum – Voting. 

 

22G.050.060    Conflicts of interest. 

 

22G.050.070    General powers and duties. 

 

22G.050.010 Planning commission created. 

Pursuant to RCW 35A.63.020, there is hereby created a city planning commission, which shall 

serve in an advisory capacity to the mayor and city council, and shall have such other powers and 

duties as may be provided herein or delegated to it by the mayor and city council. (Ord. 2852 § 

10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.050.020 Appointment of members – Term of office. 

The planning commission shall consist of seven members who shall be appointed by the mayor 

subject to confirmation by the city council. Members shall be appointed without regard to their 

political affiliation, and shall serve without compensation except as hereinafter provided. At least 

a majority of all commission members, at any time, shall be residents of the city. All members of 

the planning commission shall reside within the city’s urban growth area. The term of office of 

each member shall be six years; said terms shall be staggered so that no more than two positions 

become vacant in any year. A commissioner may be removed from office by the mayor for 

inefficiency, negligence of duty or misconduct in office. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.050.030 Expenses. 

The planning commission, as a body, or individual members thereof, may be reimbursed for 

actual and reasonable expenses in the performance of their duties in behalf of the commission. 

Such expenses may include, but are not limited to, such items as: travel and subsistence, 

registration fees and other costs incidental to meetings and conferences, professional and 

consulting services, educational fees, dues and assessments of professional planning 

organizations, subscriptions to periodicals and purchases of informational and educational texts, 

and similar expenditures that may be deemed necessary to increase the efficiency and 

professional ability of the members of the commission. Planning commission expenses shall be 

subject to authorization and approval by the city council. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.050.040 Meetings – Officers – Rules. 

The planning commission shall annually elect a chairman from among its members. The 

commission shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month for not less than nine months 

each year. Regular meetings shall be open to the public, and shall be scheduled for a regular time 

and place. Notice of time, place and purpose of any special meeting shall be given as provided 

by law. The commission may adopt rules for transaction of business, and shall keep a written 

record of its public meetings, transactions, findings and determinations, which record shall be a 

public record. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

Item 5 - 103

139



 

22G.050.050 Quorum – Voting. 

A majority of the duly appointed and acting members of the planning commission shall 

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. With a quorum being present, the 

commission may take action on any business upon an affirmative vote of a majority of those 

commissioners present. The chairman shall be entitled to a vote on all business. (Ord. 2852 § 10 

(Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.050.060 Conflicts of interest. 

Any member of the planning commission with a conflict of interest, or an appearance of fairness 

problem, as defined by Chapter 42.36 RCW, with respect to any matter pending before the 

commission, shall disqualify himself from participating in the deliberations and the decision-

making process with respect to the matter. If this occurs, the mayor, subject to confirmation by 

the city council, may appoint another person to serve as a commissioner pro tem in regard to that 

matter. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.050.070 General powers and duties. 

The planning commission shall have the following powers and shall perform the following 

duties:  

 

(1) Prepare a comprehensive plan for anticipating and influencing the orderly and coordinated 

development of land and building uses of the city and its environs; hold public hearings on said 

plan, and any amendments thereto, and make recommendations to the city council;  

 

(2) Divide the city into appropriate zones within which specific standards, requirements and 

conditions may be provided for regulating the use of public and private land, buildings and 

structures, and the location, height, bulk, number of stories and size of buildings and structures, 

size of yards, courts, open spaces, densities of population, ratio of land area to the area of 

buildings and structures, setbacks, area required for off-street parking, protection of access to 

direct sunlight for solar energy systems, and such other standards, requirements, regulations and 

procedures as are appropriately related thereto; hold public hearings on the adoption of zoning 

ordinances and maps, and amendments thereto, and make recommendations to the city council;  

 

(3) Prepare a shoreline management master program for the shorelines of the city, and a 

shoreline environment designation map, as required by state law and city ordinance; hold public 

hearings on the same, and any amendments thereto, and make recommendations to the city 

council;  

 

(4) Review all proposed amendments to the city zoning code, subdivision code and shoreline 

management code; hold public hearings thereon, and make recommendations to the city council;  

 

(5) Conduct, on its own initiative or upon request by the mayor or city council, investigations 

into matters relating to the physical, economic and environmental development of the city, and 

public works and civic improvements, and submit reports and recommendations to the mayor 

and city council with respect to the same;  

 

Item 5 - 104

140



(6) Perform such other duties or responsibilities as may be specifically delegated by the mayor or 

city council. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

. 

22G.020.040 Planning commission review.  

All proposals falling within the scope of the chapter will be introduced to the Marysville 

planning commission, which may schedule workshops as needed to consider the proposal. City 

staff may prepare a report and recommendations to the planning commission. Prior to making a 

recommendation to the city council, the planning commission shall schedule a public hearing 

pursuant to the procedures set forth in MMC 22G.020.060. After the public hearing and any 

further study sessions as may be needed, the planning commission shall transmit its 

recommendation to the city council through the community development department. (Ord. 2852 

§ 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 

 

22G.020.050 City council review.  

Following the review by the planning commission, the city council shall consider at a public 

meeting each recommendation transmitted by the planning commission. The city council may 

hold its own public hearing pursuant to the procedures set forth in MMC 22G.020.060. 

Following such public meeting and/or public hearing, the city council may take any one of the 

following actions: 

 

(1) Adopt the recommendation of the planning commission without changes. 

 

(2) Adopt the recommendation of the planning commission with changes. 

 

(3) Remand the recommendation or parts thereof to the planning commission for further review. 

In the event the city council remands a matter for further planning commission review, the 

council shall specify the time within which the planning commission shall report back to the city 

council with a new recommendation. All entities involved shall comply with the timelines unless 

the city council approves a request for extension of time. 

 

(4) Any action by the city council shall be adopted pursuant to ordinance or resolution; provided, 

however, in the event the city council denies or disapproves any recommendation it may be done 

by motion. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 
 

Dave Koenig | Community Development Director  
    
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Community Development Department 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 
 
360-363-8100  Office 
360-363-8211  Direct Line 
360-651-5099  Fax 
 
dkoenig@marysvillewa.gov 
http://marysvillewa.gov 

 

Item 5 - 105

141

mailto:cholland@marysvillewa.gov
http://marysvillewa.gov/


From: roumx@comcast.net [mailto:roumx@comcast.net]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2017 8:16 AM 
To: Janis Lamoureux <jlamoureux@marysvillewa.gov> 
Subject: Please forward this to the planning commission members 

 

City of Marysville 
Planning Commission 
  
I am including some information that you might find is relevant to the flag and flagpole 
code revisions that you will be considering. 
  
I was informed that I could not address the items on the agenda for 1-10-2017 since this 
was a work session. When I spoke during the meeting, I attempted to convey to you the 
following: Many documents from me and my wife were sent to you. Some of them have 
information that is not relevant to the code revision matters. Source documents were not 
included for some of these documents. The exclusion of these documents would make 
comprehension of many of our statements difficult. For example, consider the letter to 
Ms. Hirashima dated 11-8-2016. Without the emails submitted to Ms. Hirashima, how 
can one know what I am referring to when I reply to Mr. Koenig’s email? That was the 
point that I wanted to suggest to you. The source documents should have been included 
to provide you with a clear and complete picture. 
  
There are very few codes regarding flags and flagpoles and many of the existing codes 
are self contradictory and confusing. Ms. Gemmer now has MMC 
22C.160.070 Prohibitions and this code appears to ban all flags from the city. Review of 
this section will be completed by the planning department. 
  
The planning department and possibly the planning commission might want to 
reference: The United States Flag: Federal Law Relating to Display and Associated 
Questions Updated 1-24-2011. This is on the internet. Also, RCW 64.38.033, RCW 

9.86.010, 9.86.020, and 9.86.030 and other related material. .    
If the planning members would access the internet they would find many informative 
articles about flags and flagpoles. Many of the hazards created by flying flags that are 
too large, poorly manufactured flagpoles and the improper installation of flagpoles are 
described. The flagpoles that created the need to revise these codes were EZPOLE 
flagpoles and this website (ezpole.com) does suggest the manufacturer’s suggested 
height limits based on the type of home and lot size. The suggested heights are 13, 17, 
and 21 feet. 21 feet exceeds the current code limit of 20 feet. Should reasonable height 
limits be considered based on the actual locations of flagpoles? For example a small, 
irregularly shaped front yard of about 300 square feet on a 7,000 square foot lot versus 
a large rectangular shaped front yard of 1,000 square feet on a 7,000 square foot lot. 
Should there be different limits for one acre and larger sites and large estates?   
  
Flags 
Example Definition---A flag is a piece of fabric (most often rectangular, triangular or quadrilateral) 
with a distinctive design that is used as a symbol, as a signaling device, or as decoration. Should 
the definition be specific and determined by planning commission? 

Item 5 - 106

142

mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:jlamoureux@marysvillewa.gov
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Symbol


  
Three of the many factors to consider are the size of flags, the types of flags and 
flagpoles. 
Size of flags. 
Without limits someone can display a 20 x 40 foot wide flag. Is such a flag size 
reasonable for a single family home located on a lot of less than one acre? What about 
on a 20 acre site? Should the city establish the size of the flags that can be flown or just 
rely on the manufacturer/s recommendations or any individual’s decision? 
  
Types of flags 
1. Types of flags that are allowed. Can the city impose any restrictions? Contact city 
attorney? Limit to Flags of any nation, state, or local jurisdiction? Can the following be 
restricted or allowed: nautical flags, custom made flags promoting or criticizing anything 
like gun ownership and any other causes, the KKK, historical flags? Etc. 
Should the Code allow only those that you want to allow and which can be legally 
restricted? 
  
Current code 22A. 020.200 Presently, clearly states that any flag of any county, state or 
local jurisdictions is not a sign. Therefore, they can be flown. Should this definition be 
eliminated?   
 
Non profit organizations—should these be flags or signs? Some types of non profits: 
Endangered Species International, Project Homeless, Shanti Project, Global 
Washington, 501 Commons, 12th man flag and any other sports team’s flags or 
banners.  
Should citizens be exposed to 24 hour displays of these types of flags? 
Flagpoles 
1. Should flagpoles be allowed on single family residential lots? 
  
2. Definition of flagpoles 
22A.020.070 
Definition is a complex problem due to many sizes, types and designs. #1 and #2 What 
is tall? 3’, 6,’ 40 feet? 
#3 Is this the best definition? Would include the small types of flagpoles that can be 
attached to a house or a fence or a structure. Any codes would then apply to these 
small flagpoles. Should the Code differentiate between these types of flagpoles and 
possibly limit size and placement of both types of flagpoles? 
Should flagpole construction be limited by the type of material used in the construction? 
Could one build a 30 foot flagpole out of wood under the current or revised code? 
Should flagpoles require a building permit and a structural review by a structural 
engineer? China has produced many inferior products such as sheetrock and laminated 
flooring that were installed and that had to be removed from homes. Should any 
manufacturer/s instructions for the installation of flagpoles in concrete foundations be 
reviewed by a structural engineer? 
Should the new code limit the number of flagpoles that can be installed on a lot? 
Someone might want 2, 3, or 10 flagpoles to display many flags. 

Item 5 - 107

143



  
Height Limit of flagpoles. 
22c.010.220 This code refers to 22c.010.080 and the only height limit that I find in this 
code is the base height of 30 feet. This code does reference codes 22c.010.100 through 
250. 
22C.180.020 limits the height of a flagpole to 20 feet for lots less than one acre. Are there 
current height limits for flagpoles on sites over one acre? The planning department comments 
appear to indicate that flagpoles will remain classified as accessory structures. Will they remain 
as accessory structures?  
The new code .220 would increase the flagpole height to at least 40 feet and five feet 
above the highest point of the roof (roof of what?). This 40 foot limit would conflict with 
the accessory structure limit of 20 feet. Would this new code allow flagpoles of any 
width depth or diameter?   Different height limits are placed on flagpoles of less the five 
feet in diameter, and those with a diameter greater than five feet.   Picture a 40 high 
flagpole or any structure that is five or more feet in diameter on a very small, irregularly 
shaped front yard. . 
  
22c.010.210 
3. This code would conflict with the current set back requirements for flagpoles. The 
current set back requirements have some problems. For example code .210 would limit 
flags from flying over adjacent properties, which is good since the present code does 
not place such a limit. Because of varying wind directions it would be almost impossible 
to place a flagpole on the property line and not have the flag flying over the adjacent 
property. Is allowing any of the items mentioned in section 3 to project to the property 
line advisable? A 30 foot high antenna and all of the other items could be placed right at 
the property boundary. Shouldn’t these items be kept out of the required set back 
areas? Should consideration be given to removing all of item 3, including the current 
sentence allowing these encroachments to the property line? 
  
When considering the height of poles, lights, antennas, flagpoles and other items that 
are 20 feet or more in height should the fall distance be considered? For example 
someone wants to install a 25 foot flagpole or similar item five feet from the side yard 
property line. If this flagpole were to collapse onto the adjacent property, damage to an 
individual or structures on the adjacent property might result. If this flagpole must be 
located on the subject site at least 25 feet from any adjacent property boundary, only 
the owner installing this flagpole might be damaged.   
  
22c.160.080. 
The first sentence clearly states that this section pertains to signs. Therefore, Item 11 
now classifies certain flags as signs. The former definition of signs specifically stated 
that certain flags are not signs. The revised definition of signs eliminates this exclusion. 
Number 11 and the definition of signs need correction and clarification. Number 11 
clearly states that flags emblems or insignia of non profit organizations are signs. This is 
good if the planning commission wants to prohibit the flags of all of the non profit 
organizations. Allowing the display of one non profit organization might be difficult to do, 
if others are excluded. Should the city attorney be contacted to clarify this question? 
  

Item 5 - 108

144



This revised section allows flagpoles to be constructed without obtaining a building 
permit. Does the commission agree with this section? This section removes the 
requirement that flagpoles obtain a construction permit for structural review? Does the 
commission agree with this section? Should the definition of a structural review be 
clarified? For example, a structural review is a review of the plans by a licensed 
engineer? By removing these requirements, is the public safety put at risk? 
  
While reviewing the codes I read section 22c.010.250 Nonresidential land uses in 
residential zones. 
The title refers to nonresidential land uses. Item 4 refers to a dwelling unit which is a 
residential land use. Should item 4 be included in this section? Is there a more 
applicable code in which item 4 should be placed?  
(4) A single detached dwelling unit allowed as accessory to a church or school shall 
conform to the setback requirements of the zone.  
  
Sincerely yours 
  
Evan Kaiser 
  
 

Item 5 - 109

145



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE: January 20, 2017    

 

TO: Planning Commission     

 

FROM: Angela Gemmer, Senior Planner  

 

 RE: 2016-17 Code Amendments:  STAFF RECOMMENDATION – Flags and Flagpoles 

 

 CC: Dave Koenig, Community Development Director 

  Chris Holland, Planning Manager  

  Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner  

  Amy Hess, Associate Planner 

  

At the January 10, 2017 Planning Commission workshop, proposed amendments pertaining 

to the treatment of flags and flagpoles were presented. At that workshop, the Planning 

Commission expressed concerns regarding both the height of flagpoles and the proposed 

setback requirements. In response to these concerns, revisions to the flagpole regulations 

were drafted which are set forth below. 

When amending flagpole regulations, consideration should be given to the typical placement 

of single family residences on lots so that regulations do not unduly prevent a property owner 

from installing a flagpole. For example, since most residences are subject to setbacks of 20’ 

from front and rear lot lines, and 5’ from side lot lines, requiring a 20’ setback for a flagpole 

could restrict display of the flagpole to the rear yard if the structure is built at the 20’ setback 

line which is typical for many newer homes. 

Additionally, consideration should be given for existing flagpoles, which have remained 

unregulated within the City of Marysville.  In a recent visit through a neighborhood, staff 

photographed seven (7) existing flagpoles within a quarter mile radius that would be non-

conforming if provisions for flagpoles are too restrictive (see attached).    

 

Amendment 7 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDED CODE AMENDMENT:  

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

22A.020.070 “F” definitions. 

 

 “Flagpole” a tall pole from which a flag hangs. 

 

22A.020.200 “S” definitions. 

 

“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way 

or surrounding properties and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy 

conveying a message or image and used to inform or attract the attention of the public, 

Item 5 - 110

146



such as advertising or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or activity. 

A sign may have multiple faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, 

businesses, products, services, or activities. This definition does not include any flag 

of any country, state or local jurisdiction. Unless the context clearly provides to the 

contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes the “sign structure.” 

RESIDENTIAL ZONES – HEIGHT  

22C.010.220 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080: 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and 

utility line towers and poles. 

(3) Flagpoles may rise ten feet above the height limit, or five feet above the highest 

point of the roof, whichever is greater.   

RESIDENTIAL ZONES – SETBACKS 

22C.010.210 Setbacks – Projections allowed. 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may 

project into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear 

setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above 

the finished grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, 

and uncovered accessory structures such as radio antennas and dishes, mechanical 

equipment, play structures, and tennis courts, may project to the property line, 

provided that, with the exception of uncovered porches and decks, the front property 

line setback for the zone shall be observed; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development.  

(5) Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall be setback a 

minimum of five feet from all property lines, provided 

(a) They are not located within a utility or access easement, and; 

(b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach 

onto a neighboring property. 

 

 

COMMERCIAL ZONES 

 

22C.020.190 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 

22C.020.080(2): 

Item 5 - 111

147

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.080


(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, 

flagpoles and utility line towers and poles. 

 

SIGN CODE 

 

22C.160.080 Exemptions. 

The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply with 

all other requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth 

below for each type of sign: 

(1) A change in the face of the sign or advertising copy of an existing, legally 

permitted, sign. 

(2) Temporary and special event signs meeting the requirements of MMC 

22C.160.230. 

(3) On-premises and portable commercial or real estate signs meeting the 

requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(5) and (6). 

(4) Political signs meeting the requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(7). 

(5) Nonelectric signs not exceeding four square feet per face, which are limited in 

content to the name of occupant and address of the premises in a residential zone. 

(6) Instructional signs, not exceeding six square feet per sign; provided, that 

foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of the sign and 

electrical connection require construction permits. 

(7) Menu signs. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of 

the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

(8) Seasonal decorations. Reasonable seasonal decorations within an appropriate 

holiday season or during a festival are exempt from this section as long as such 

displays are removed promptly at the end of the holiday season or festival. 

(9) Sculptures, fountains, benches, lighting, mosaics, murals, landscaping and other 

street furniture and design features, which do not incorporate advertising or 

identification. 

(10) Signs not visible from public way. Exterior and interior signs or displays not 

intended to be visible from streets or public ways, signs in the interior of a building 

more than three feet from the closest window and not facing a window, window 

displays and point of purchase advertising displays such as vending machines. 

(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit 

organization, subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the 

government or organization which they represent. Flag poles require a construction 

permit for structural review. 

(1112) Traffic or other municipal signs, signs required by law or emergency 

services, railroad crossing signs, legal notices, and any temporary signs specifically 

authorized by the city council or authorized under policies and procedures adopted by 

the city council. 

(1213) Signs of public utility companies indicating danger or which serve as an aid 

to public safety or which show the location of underground facilities or of public 

telephones. 

(1314) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings, stained glass windows and 

dates of erection when cut into the surface of the facade of the building or when 

projecting not more than two inches. 

(1415) Incidental signs, including, but not limited to, “no trespassing,” “no 

dumping,” “no parking,” “private,” signs identifying essential public needs (i.e., 

restrooms, entrance, exit, telephone, etc.) and other information warning signs, which 

shall not exceed three square feet in surface area. 

Item 5 - 112

148

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230


(1516) Flush-mounted wall signs which are used to identify the name and address 

of the occupant for each dwelling, provided the sign does not exceed two square feet 

in sign area. 

(1617) Gateway entrance signs. Gateway entrance signs that comply with the city 

of Marysville gateway master plan. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other 

structure support of the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

Community Development staff requests the Planning Commission review the revised STAFF 

RECOMMENDED amendments related to flags and flagpoles, and provide direction on finalizing 

the proposed amendments. 

 

 

 

  

Item 5 - 113

149



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

Item 5 - 114

150



 
 

 

 
 

 
  

Item 5 - 115

151



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 5 - 116

152



 
 

 

 

Item 5 - 117

153



From: roumx@comcast.net [mailto:roumx@comcast.net]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 8:34 AM 
To: Jon Nehring <jnehring@marysvillewa.gov> 
Subject: Many 

 

City of Marysville, WA 
Office of the Mayor 
  
From: Evan and Patricia Kaiser 
Please respond by email 
  
Dear Mayor Nehring, 
  
After reviewing this data, could you please give us a reasonable estimate of when we 
might expect a completed reply? We would appreciate a response to our questions 
about the three codes mentioned in the first three pages of this email as soon as 
possible and this answer can be provided without a response to the remaining 
questions. 
  
We are addressing this email to you because you are a full time city employee who 
presides over the council meetings. We believe that this message addresses at least 
two of your stated priorities which are as follows: 
Maintaining public safety as a top priority and ensuring that integrated and innovative 
approaches to policing are responsive to community needs and built around a 
partnership of trust between citizens and police personnel. 
Maintaining customer service, transparency and accountability in city government, and 
prioritizing constituent issues with prompt response 
  
The city now knows that code revisions are necessary and that there were a limited 
number of codes pertaining to the construction of flagpoles and the display of flags. 
Revision of some codes will occur and the implementation of more should result from 
the review process. Many safety issues were not addressed by the current codes. 
These actions were taken as a result of the complaints that we filed and the questions 
that we asked. There are several more problems present in the various city 
departments, and the MMC, which we will address in the future. 
  
The mention of individual names and actions in this statement is not a personal attack 
on these people. We do question some of the city employees’ decisions, actions and 
refusal to act. We present these matters to notify you of these matters, for you and the 
council members to review and for all of you to decide if constructive measures are 
warranted 
 
The city has many competent, helpful, knowledgeable and efficient employees. Over the 
years we have met several and recently, many more. As with any organizations there 
are employees who do not always meet these standards. 
  

Item 5 - 118

154

mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:roumx@comcast.net
mailto:jnehring@marysvillewa.gov


This is not a complaint, but a request for information and a statement to you and the 
council. We know that you, personally cannot answer all of these questions, but we 
believe that we deserve answers to these questions. Our questions and this statement 
do reveal a lack of attention to detail by several employees and does request the facts 
on which certain decisions were based. This is a long statement that covers many items 
and includes comments regarding a three month process that according to Mr. Koenig 
should have been resolved in 2 to 3 weeks. We agree with Mr. Koenig’s estimated time 
of completion, which was not achieved.   
  
As with all organizations the city is a functioning entity and better, more efficient policies 
can be instituted. We do have some suggestions that if adopted will result in clarification 
and possibly revision of existing city policies which should reduce city expenses. We will 
be presenting these suggestions to the council in the future. We are interested in 
improving city government and contributing constructive changes to provide a better, 
overall living environment in Marysville.   
  
We believe that our statements indicate that there are some serious problems that exist 
in the Community Development Department and that the council should be made aware 
of these problems. The council cannot be aware of every interaction between the public 
and city departments and every process or policy of every city department. We believe 
that based on the information that is included in this statement and information that will 
be provided to you soon, that at some time in the near future someone outside of this 
department should review some of the procedures and actions of some of the 
management and employees in this department. Many of the reasons for the statement 
made in the previous sentence are presented here and in our previous emails to various 
city employees.     
  
We do refer to Mr. Koenig and our comments about him are based solely on our 
experiences with his job performance. This is not a complaint. We believe that the 
council should be made aware of some of the decisions, interpretations and lack of 
responses that occurred during the investigation of our complaints. Mr. Koenig has 
many discretionary powers that, when exercised, may have a significant impact on the 
city. He should be able to justify his statements and decisions and his written responses 
to questions should be complete, accurate, and comprehendible. We mentioned most of 
our disagreements with his conclusions, analysis, statements and logic in previous 
statements, but several more and different ones are listed in this statement.   
  
Confusing and contradictory codes. 
  
Currently, our main concern is the 21 foot high flagpole at 2914 73rd Ave. NE that was 
relocated from the previous illegal location to a nearby location. Mr. Koenig approved 
this height even though the code restricts flagpoles to 20 feet. We do have some 
questions about this approval, which are included later in this statement. The new 
location of this flagpole will not reduce the noise generated by this flag and the illegal 
sign that are displayed. We have no desire to restrict the legal display of our nation’s 
flag, or the 12th man flag (a sign). We did and will object to any excessive noise levels 

Item 5 - 119

155



created by the display of the flag and the 12th man sign. The U.S. flag and 12th man 
banner or flag are displayed 24 hours a day. The following codes clearly define the 12th 
man flag as a sign and contain contradictory statements about the status of the U.S. 
flag as a sign. These types of signs are prohibited in residential neighborhoods. We are 
not attorneys but believe that our statements in the last two sentences are correct 
based on the exiting codes. These are the current codes and we would like responses 
to our questions based on these codes. We previously requested responses to these 
questions and have received no clarification of these codes. 
  
22C.160.070 Prohibitions. 
The following signs are prohibited in the city and are subject to the specific prohibitions, 
requirements, and exceptions set forth below for each type of sign: 
(9) Streamers, pennants, and banners. Displays of banners, festoons, flags, posters, 
pennants, ribbons, streamers, strings of lights, chasing strobe or scintillating lights, 
flares, balloons, bubble machines and similar devices are prohibited when the same are 
visible from any off-site location, including but not limited to any public right-of-way, 
except as provided in MMC 22C.160.230. Where such signs or devices are not visible 
from off site, this prohibition does not apply. This code apparently prohibits all flags. If 
so, why are flags flying on any flagpole? 
  
22A.020.200 “S” definitions. 
“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way or 
surrounding properties and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy conveying a 
message or image and used to inform or attract the attention of the public, such as 
advertising or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or activity. A sign 
may have multiple faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, 
businesses, products, services, or activities. This definition does not include any flag 
of any country, state or local jurisdiction. Unless the context clearly provides to 
the contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes the “sign structure.” 
(Ord. 2955, 2014; Ord. 2870 § 5, 2011; Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 
  
22C.160.080 Exemptions.  
The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply 
with all other requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth 
below for each type of sign: 
(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or 
nonprofit organization, subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the 
government or organization which they represent. Flag poles require a construction 
permit for structural review. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011). 
  
If a flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit 
organization is not a sign, why does item 11 exempt these signs (flags) from obtaining a 
sign permit? The 12th man flag is not a flag of any country, state or local jurisdiction 
but is a flag, emblem or insignia of a nonprofit organization. Based on these codes 
definition, the 12th man flag is a sign. If the 12th man flag is a sign, the flagpole is a sign 
structure and a sign structure is prohibited in a residential neighborhood. Quoting 
22A.020.200:  “Unless the context clearly provides to the contrary, a “sign” as used in 

Item 5 - 120

156

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230


this chapter also includes the “sign structure.”. Displaying the 12th man flag would 
require removal of the flagpole (the sign structure). Are these codes clear? If so, is a U. 
S. Flag a sign? Is the 12th man flag a sign? These codes may be revised soon, but until 
revised these are the current codes. These questionable definitions would have had no 
effect on the processing of our previous complaints. The codes that were violated in our 
previous complaints are very clear.  
  
We believe that the 12th man flag/banner is a sign per the above codes. Mr. Koenig was 
supplied several pictures showing this 12th man sign. Why did Mr. Koenig not inform the 
homeowner that such a display is not permitted by the code? We requested clarification 
of these codes several times and have received no clarification of the city’s 
interpretation of these codes.  
  
If the city wants to allow 12th man flags, extensive consideration should be given to the 
other types of non profit organizations that could request the same treatment. Does the 
city want flags of various non profit organizations displayed on 21 foot high flagpoles in 
residential areas? Since Mr. Koenig just approved two new installations with this height, 
how can any other applicant be denied the same consideration?  
  
These codes were written by someone in the city, reviewed by the city attorney and 
read and approved by the city council. We understand that the council relies on the staff 
and we believe that the reading and approval of ordinances by the council is based on 
the recommendations of the staff and not a complete and thorough review of each item 
by the council. The confusion in these codes is apparently due to a lack of a complete 
review by the author of these codes, the city attorney and the council. We believe that 
the council should want to know why these apparently contradictory codes were 
submitted for the council’s approval. We believe that there is a simple explanation for 
this problem and that explanation is inattention to detail. When revising a code the 
individuals responsible for creating and approving the codes should at the least review 
the definitions that are in each chapter. 
  
We have noticed several other codes that exhibit the same problems mentioned earlier 
and we believe that there are many more codes that are unclear, contradictory or 
confusing. Ms. Hirashima indicated that certain codes will be addressed at the planning 
department hearings, so some codes will be revised and or corrected. The problem of 
poorly worded codes appears to be significantly greater than those that address flags 
and flagpoles. We would like to know if you believe that the council should be made 
aware of this problem and institute a more reliable system to eliminate these types of 
errors in the future? Should the council review the system that presents ambiguous and 
contradictory codes for their approval? Please email us a list of the codes that Ms. 
Hirashima has asked the planning department or any other department to review. If you 
wish, we will, in the future, provide more examples of these types of codes (that are not 
on Ms. Hirashima’s list) for you and the council to review. . 
  
After we contacted Ms. Hirashima, Mr. Koenig’s responses to our emails were more 
prompt and of slightly better quality. Many of our previous questions would not have 

Item 5 - 121

157



been necessary if Mr. Koenig had effectively processed our complaints in the 2 to 3 
week time period that he indicated would be applicable. We will explain this sentence 
later in this statement and in another email to you that includes a time line that is similar 
to Ms. Hirashima’s time line. .  
  
Clarification of parts of our 11-28-2016 statement and questions. 
In our statement to the council on 11-28-2016 we stated that we are detailed oriented 
people. By this statement, we mean that if we submit three questions to a city employee 
or official, we expect answers to three questions. We expect to receive responses that 
are complete, factual, supportable, accurate and comprehendible. We should not be 
required to submit numerous requests for the same information. The fact that we are 
detailed oriented does not mean that we do not make mistakes. 
  
Ms. Hirashima assured us that the city does investigate and enforce violations of the 
MMC. Following are some questions to which we would like responses: 
  
We have repeatedly asked for the dates that the code inspectors visited 2914 73rd Ave 
NE. We would like to know why the city cannot answer this simple question. Does the 
city not have records of these visits? 
  
Are Mr. Koenig’s statements that the lack of a flag or a change in the flagpole height 
somehow changes the status of the flagpole to something other than a flagpole 
supportable, reasonable or accurate? If these statements can be supported, please 
supple the logical facts that would verify his statements. On 9-7-2016, he stated that a 
flagpole is easily recognizable, but since then he has experienced difficulty in identifying 
this flagpole and the valid code violations that existed. The fact that a building permit 
was recently issued to relocate the flagpole would certainly contradict Mr. Koenig’s 
statements. Mr. Koenig has many discretionary powers and should be able to justify his 
statements and decisions. 
  
We would like to know why Patricia Kaiser’s noise nuisance complaint was not 
investigated and have repeatedly requested this information. The main reason that 
Evan filed his original complaint was because of the noise generated by these flags, 
and the fact that we did not learn of the noise nuisance codes until later. The flags were 
still in place when her complaint was filed. The city visited the site and took a picture of 
the flying flags. If the city had investigated this matter then, the city would have reliable 
data regarding the noise levels produced by the flags displayed on a 21 foot high 
flagpole. Such data might have affected the issuance of the future flagpole building 
permits that were issued to 2914 73rd Ave. NE and 2909 73rd Ave. NE. Knowing that 
flags flown at 21 feet produce excessive noise the city might have been given more 
consideration to limiting the height of flagpoles to a height similar to the flagpole 
manufacturer’s suggested height of 13 feet. Not investigating this noise complaint in a 
timely fashion has only delayed the investigation. Due to the adjacent, small, irregularly 
shaped front yard, we advised the city and the homeowner that relocating this flagpole 
to the new location would not reduce or eliminate the noise nuisance caused by the two 
flags that are consistently flown from this flagpole. This new location is less than 20 feet 

Item 5 - 122

158



from our property boundary and possible 20 or so feet from the previous 
location.    Noise from the previous location was noticeable more than 50 feet away, and 
inside our home.    
  
Because the noise generated by the flag and sign at 2914 73rd Ave. NE will most likely 
become a future issue, we would like to know the basis and the procedure that will be 
followed for this investigation. In an email dated 11-18-2016 Mr. Koenig stated “When 
the flag pole is relocated with the new lighter flag this should address your concerns.  If 
the new flag in the new location is perceived as too loud in your home by you, we can 
have someone go into your house and take noise measurements.” 
  
What facts indicate to Mr. Koenig that this new flagpole location should address our 
concerns? Is this statement and conclusion based on facts, accurate and supportable? 
What facts did he consider? Are both the flag and the sign being replaced with newer 
lighter flags? Is the 12th man flag a sign? We informed the city and the homeowner that 
any new location in this small, irregularly shaped front yard would almost certainly not 
resolve the noise nuisance issue. Did Mr. Koenig ever visit this site? Did any city 
employee indicate to Mr. Koenig that based on this new location noise from these two 
flags would not intrude onto our property and not create a noise nuisance complaint? 
The nearest property boundary is probably less than 20 feet away from this new 
flagpole location and noise from the previous location was noticeable inside our home 
and at distances greater than 40 feet. Did Mr. Koenig notice that in all of the pictures of 
flying flags that there was a flag and a sign flying? As explained later, this new location 
will not resolve the noise nuisance issue. A reduction in the flagpole height might cure 
this problem. Because this is a telescoping flagpole a reduction in height can be easily 
be accomplished. A restriction on the flagpole height to 13 feet, based on the 
manufacturer’s recommended flagpole height, when the permit was issued, might also 
have solved this problem. 
  
There are always two flags flying at this site when flags are displayed. Previously the 
flagpole was always extended to 21 feet when flags were flying. Mr. Koenig states that 
he will monitor the noise levels inside our house to determine if there is a code violation. 
Noise levels are not to intrude onto an adjacent property. MMCs 6.76.020. (5) states 
“Property boundary” means the surveyed line at ground surface, which separates the 
real property owned, rented, or leased by one or more persons, from that owned, 
rented, or leased by one or more other persons, and its vertical extension. This code 
means that for a complaint to be filed, the noise must extend only onto our property, not 
into our home or house. Will the city investigate and enforce the code as written or can 
Mr. Koenig change this code with his discretionary powers? If he has this discretionary 
power, please explain in detail why the city would investigate a noise nuisance violation 
in the manner that he suggests. We request a response to this question because the 
flags are now flying 24 hours a day. At noon on 12-29-2016, excessive noise from the 
flags was noticeable inside the home and as far as 30 to 50 feet inside our property 
boundaries. We did not investigate any further than the areas and distances mentioned 
in the preceding sentence. At the same time that these flags were creating noise the 
flag at 2909 73rd Ave. NE was unaffected by the wind. There is a significant difference in 

Item 5 - 123

159



the wind velocities between these two locations. During the night from 1-8-2016 to 1-9-
2017 our family members’ sleep was interrupted due to excessive noise from flapping 
flags. This notice to you is not a noise complaint, merely information. 
  
We were confident, and informed the city and the homeowner, that relocating the flags 
to another location in this small front yard would not eliminate the noise levels that are 
produced by these flags. The city was not required to approve this new building permit 
since this flagpole is 21 feet high and the current code height limit is 20 feet. No 
homeowner has the right to construct a structure that does not conform to the code. 
According to Ms. Hirashima’s reply, Mr. Koenig decided to allow a structure to be 
installed that exceeded the code height limit based solely on a one foot differential and 
industry standards. Due to this minor difference such a decision might be considered to 
be reasonable. Is this one foot difference a variance that must be applied for and notice 
given to adjacent property owners? This 21 foot height exceeded the manufacturer’s 
recommended height by 8 feet. One might conclude that the manufacturer’s 
recommended heights are industry standards. Why did these employees not consider 
the manufacturer’s recommended height limits? We conclude that these factors were 
not considered because they are not mentioned in the building permit file or in your 
response. Was Mr. Koenig’s decision the best decision for the city based on the 
available data? Should 21 foot high flagpoles be permitted on small residential sites? If 
not, why grant exceptions to two different addresses? 
  
There are actually two flagpoles that were granted this one foot change in height. Does 
the decision to allow this 21 foot flagpole permanently change the existing 20 foot high 
limit for all future flagpole installations? If not why was special consideration given to 
this flagpole and the flagpole at 2909 73rd Ave. NE? Was the fact that these two 
homeowners had already bought and installed, without permits, 21 foot high flagpoles a 
factor in making this change? Was this a code variance granted only to these 
homeowners? If this is a variance, were the proper requirements for granting a variance 
completed? Were the flagpole manufacturer’s recommended flagpole height limits 
reviewed prior to this change? Is the manufacturer’s recommended height of 13 feet an 
industry standard? Flagpoles are lightening rods. How close to gas lines should these 
flagpoles be located? Was the city aware that this particular lot is exposed to higher 
wind levels than some surrounding lots? Prior to approval of this building permit had 
anyone approving this permit visited this site? After visiting this site and before 
completing this permit did any of the city employees question the advisability of locating 
a 21 foot high flagpole on this site? Is the 21 foot high flagpole that is located in a very 
small front yard that is exposed to more wind than surrounding sites advisable? Should 
the city have considered that a smaller height (similar to the manufacturer’s 
recommendation) would be best for this particular site? Did the city officials have all of 
this information available to them before granting this height change? Would this 
completed flagpole with flags flying be aesthetically pleasing (a consideration mentioned 
in MMC 22A.010.030) to the majority of the populace? Who would determine whether 
this flagpole is aesthetically pleasing? Shouldn’t such factors be considered before 
making height limit changes? Was the decision to grant this permit the best solution 

Item 5 - 124

160



given the fact that these codes will be soon be reviewed, revised and replaced? Both of 
these flagpoles were previously installed without the proper permits. 
  
There are many more facts about flagpoles that should have been considered before 
these permits were granted. These permits are now complete and any future code 
changes will not apply to these two flagpoles. The city was not required to issue these 
permits because of the current 20 foot height limit. We present two possible options to 
Mr. Koenig’s decision to allow a one foot exception to the code in order to approve the 
permits for these two flagpoles. 
  
1) Mr. Koenig should be aware that higher flagpoles expose the flags to higher wind 
velocities which generate more and louder noise. This telescoping flagpole has 
adjustable heights of at least 13, 17 and 21 feet. Since the 21 foot high flagpoles would 
not conform to the current code, why not allow the flagpoles to be installed with a 13 
foot height limit (manufacturer’s recommended height) as a condition for granting these 
permits? Did Mr. Koenig or any city official ask either of these homeowners if such a 
limit would be acceptable to them?     
  
2) The applicants would not have been harmed by delaying the approval and 
construction of this flagpole. The city could have required that this flagpole and the 
existing flagpole at 2909 73rd Ave. NE. be lowered and kept in the lowered position until 
new codes were imposed. This would insure that these flagpoles would conform to any 
newly approved codes. Did Mr. Koenig or any city official ask either of these 
homeowners this type of limitation would be acceptable to them? 
We would like to know the extent to which the city considered various factors in granting 
these two permits. We do realize that any flagpole permit application that met current 
codes would have been approved. The city shared our concerns that the present codes 
were inadequate and indicated that these codes would be updated and clarified within 
the next three months. Why did the city conclude that these flagpole permits, which 
required special considerations, should be processed before these possible revisions? 
Having these two flagpoles conform to any new code requirements would appear to be 
the best solution. 
  
In her response to us, Ms. Hirashima quotes section 22C.180.020 Accessory structure 
standards. 
(1) Accessory structures on properties less than one acre in size shall comply with the 
following density and dimensional requirements: 
(c) The community development director may allow minor deviations to these 
dimensional requirements in order to accommodate industry standards for building 
dimensions. 
  
The basis used by Mr. Koenig to allow the violation of the 20 foot height limit appears to 
be item c “in order to accommodate industry standards for building dimensions”. One 
would conclude that the 20 foot code height limit was set for specific reasons. There are 
21 foot high flagpoles and 20 foot flagpoles listed for sale and both are industry 
standards. Was this change to allow a 21 foot high flagpole made because two 

Item 5 - 125

161



homeowners already owned 21 foot high flagpoles? One can only conclude from this 
information that in spite of all the reasons not to allow a 21 foot high flagpole on this site 
that Mr. Koenig concluded that allowing this minor change was the best conclusion even 
though this height exceeded the manufacturer’s recommended height by 8 feet. One 
might conclude that the manufacturer’s recommended flagpole heights are industry 
standards. At the least, these recommendations are better than any present code limits. 
We would like to know the basis and reasoning for Mr. Koenig’s decision. One might 
expect that this information would be in the building permit file, but there is very limited 
information in this completed file. According to your reply, the basis is a one foot 
differential. Why were the manufacturer’s recommendations, the 20 foot height limit and 
many other factors not considered? Was a variance for this one foot difference 
required? If so, why weren’t the property variance procedures adhered to in processing 
this permit? Was Mr. Koenig’s decision the best decision for the city based on the 
available data?  
  
Would you, as Mayor, conclude that all of the facts were considered and that the 
decision to grant this one foot waiver was in the best interest of the city? 
  
We have now been advised (after three requests for this information) that the plan 
review or review by a building official is now a structural review. The city made this 
decision. Evan has seen several structural reviews (a review of structural plans which 
were always prepared by licensed engineers) and a structural review of the plan 
submitted to the city would contain many items not available on this plan. The city has 
made their decision. One can only hope that the definition of a structural review and the 
data that must be included in a structural review will be changed with a review of this 
code.   
  
Mr. Dorcas and Mr. Koenig completed this building permit file. Both individuals should 
set the example for their employees. One might expect that all pertinent data regarding 
this permit would be in this permit file. Missing from this building permit file are any 
appropriate comments about the fact that the code height requirement was changed, 
why it was changed, the applicable code that allows this change and the individual who 
made this change. There are no comments as to why a 21 foot height was considered 
to be the best height and why the manufacturer’s recommended height of 13 feet was 
not applicable. There are no comments regarding the fact that the manufacturer’s height 
limits were reviewed, considered or even available to these employees. There should 
also be comments stating that the plan review is a structural review including the name 
of the individual making this decision. There are no comments regarding the fact that 
the plan review fee was waived, why the fee was waived, who waived this fee and the 
code that allows this person to waive this fee. No one reading this file will ever be aware 
of these facts.   
  
One might expect to see comments like the following: The flagpole height of 21 feet, 
which exceeds the code limit of 20 feet, is approved by Mr. Koenig per code section 
22C etc. This change is not a variance due to code number xxx and applies only to this 
permit. These types of comments would clarify some issues. Is this change in height a 

Item 5 - 126

162



variance? If so, was an application for a variance submitted and were the proper 
procedures followed? If this was a variance the appropriate comments should be in this 
file. Does this height limit change apply only to this permit? Is a new city wide height 
limit of 21 feet for flagpoles established by this one foot change? 
  
Additional comments should include a statement that the manufacturer’s height limits 
are not applicable due to the following reasons xxxxx. A plan review fee was not 
charged for this permit. The appropriate comments regarding the waiver of this fee and 
the lack of a structural review should be included in this file. These comments might be 
as follows: This plan review is considered to be a structural review by (employee name). 
The plan review fee is waived by (name of employee) per MMC number xxx and this fee 
was waived because a minimal review was needed. If the appropriate comments were 
included in this file, we would never have questioned this matter and Ms. Hirashima 
would not have had to waste her time obtaining the answer and responding to our 
questions. These same questions should be asked about the permit and the lack of the 
preceding information in the permit file for the flagpole that was granted to 2909 73rd 
Ave. NE. This 21 foot high flagpole permit was issued for the same reasons as the 
flagpole at 2914 73rd Ave. NE.   
  
We have questioned some of Mr. Koenig’s previous statements and decisions and his 
decision to allow this non conforming flagpole to be installed now means that many 
other flagpoles of the same or a greater height can be installed. The two city employees 
relied on the manufacturer’s plan to make their decision. We believe that we and Mr. 
Koenig have a limited knowledge of flagpoles and the dangers, construction 
requirements and other factors that should be considered in determining the code 
requirements for the MMC. We wonder why Mr. Koenig placed so little emphasis on the 
manufacturer’s recommendations for flagpole height, when he opted to allow the one 
foot height differential between the MMC and this flagpole. Did Mr. Koenig review the 
manufacturer’s recommendations for flagpole heights, which were readily available? 
The manufacturer recommends a flagpole height of 13 feet for small single family 
homes, like the subject, and 17 feet for mid size homes or 2 story structures. The 
present location is in a very small, irregularly shaped front yard and a 13 foot height is 
recommended for this type of location. A 21 foot height is recommended for large 
homes (probably estates) or large areas. Are these recommended heights industry 
standards? Did Mr. Koenig conclude that although the 21 foot height of this flagpole 
exceeds, by 8 feet, the manufacturer’s recommended height, that the 21 foot height 
should become a standard height for the city? Please supply us with the reasoning that 
supports Mr. Koenig’s decision to ignore the manufacturer’s recommended height limits. 
One might conclude that pertinent comments would be in the building permit file. One 
might conclude that the same emphasis would have been placed on the manufacturer’s 
suggested flagpole heights as that placed on the manufacturer’s plan for installation. 
We conclude that Mr. Koenig may not have been aware of the manufacturer’s 
recommended height limits since there is no mention of these facts in Ms. Hirashima’s 
response and the building permit files for 2914 73rd Ave NE and 2909 73rd Ave. NE. 
  
The city council 

Item 5 - 127

163



  
We do not want to burden these members with unwarranted problems. We know that 
there are several problems and policies within certain city departments that are a waste 
of time and money. We intend to make the council aware of these problems, may be 
appearing at future meetings and expect that constructive changes will result from the 
information that we will present. Because of our involvement, and we believe Ms. 
Hirashima’s actions some of the city codes will be revised. There are other sections of 
the codes that we have reviewed and which may need further clarification. Revising and 
improving the MMC will result in some minor constructive changes, but more, significant 
changes need to be made to these types of codes. We will address the comments in the 
previous sentence in the future. 
  
We have a few questions about the procedures for citizens who wish to speak on 
matters that are not on the agenda at City Council Meetings. 
  
We tried to obtain as much information on the procedures before speaking at the 
meeting on 11-28-2016. Evan attended the 11-14 meeting, but no one spoke during the 
time allotted for comments that are not on the agenda. We were told that each individual 
can speak for 3 minutes. Before the meeting we presented the 10 copies of our 
documents to the recorder as we were told to do. We each filed a request to speak and 
asked if just one of us could speak for six minutes and we were told that this was 
acceptable. Apparently this information was not relayed to you and you indicated to 
Evan that he should speak for only 3 minutes. When he replied that he would talk for 
about five and one half minutes you suggested that he cease speaking until he is at the 
podium, and we understand why you made this comment. Can one of us speak for the 
entire six minutes? If so, to avoid any sign of favoritism, perhaps the audience should 
be advised why one of us will be speaking for six minutes. 
  
Evan then proceeded to read this very abbreviated statement, copies of which were 
provided to the council. We doubt that anyone listening only to our verbal statement 
would be able to understand our comments due to their abbreviated form and the time 
limit. That is why we supplied the council with the lengthy written version. We were not 
dissatisfied with Ms. Hirashima’s responses to our emails, but we believed that the 
council should be directly informed about the problems with Mr. Koenig’s lack of 
complete responses to our questions and requests for information, and his 
unsupportable interpretation of some of the codes. Mr. Koenig has many discretionary 
powers, so our intent was to notify the council of our opinions and the facts on which our 
opinions are based. 
  
We would like you to respond to the following questions: 
  
Can we ask questions of the city employees who attend the council meetings and the 
council members and have their responses after we have finished speaking and 
assuming that their response would not be lengthy or complex? If so, would the council 
prefer that we send our questions to them or the employees at least a week before we 

Item 5 - 128

164



present our questions? If an immediate response is not possible could we receive 
answers by email or must these answers be provided at a future council meeting? 
  
Some questions about policies can be answered by the staff. However, we believe that 
some problems and recommended solutions should be presented to the council for their 
review. Is it necessary that we speak at a council meeting in order to present this 
information to the council? 
  
Processing our complaint. 
The processing of our complaints could easily have been completed in the 2 to 3 week 
time period suggested by Mr. Koenig on 9-7-2016. The codes pertaining to the 
violations present at the subject site are very clear. Processing this complaint would 
have required very few and very simple steps.   Verifying that no permit was issued 
would take very little time or effort and would reveal that a construction plan was not 
submitted and that a structural review was not completed. If a plan was not submitted to 
the city the plan could not have undergone a structural review. The first code 
enforcement inspection of the property revealed that this was a flagpole and that the set 
back requirement was violated. A simple code enforcement letter stating that the 
flagpole must be removed could have easily been mailed. This process could not have 
involved much more than a day or two of employee time at most.     
  
We should never have met Ms. Hirashima or at least ten other very helpful and 
competent employees. At least 20 employees who should not have been involved in this 
process were referenced in various emails, contacted by phone or spoken with. Several 
excuses were offered for the delay and problems involved in processing this complaint. 
These excuses are not justifiable. The delays and extra work were due to the problems 
listed in our 11-28-2016 statement, in our emails to Ms. Hirashima and other 
correspondence. The codes were clear and easily interpreted. A flagpole is an 
accessory structure. The fact that this accessory structure is a flagpole would not create 
any problem with enforcement action. The fact that some other unrelated codes that are 
unclear might need clarification should have had no effect on the processing of our 
complaints. 
  
The numerous emails and consultation among all of the employees which were created 
by some unknown confusion within this department resulted in the waste of many hours 
of employees’ time. 
Based on a review of the numerous emails, phone calls and office visits produced by 
this process, we would conclude that at least $2,000 to $4,000 (probably more) of time 
was wasted and this estimate does not include the allocated cost of equipment and 
materials. Do you think that a reasonable cost estimate of the wasted time and 
resources should be presented to the council?   Should someone explain why this time 
was wasted? Should the public be notified of this type of cost overrun, or should we be 
kept ignorant of these types of problems? If the city believes that there was no waste of 
resources and time, please supply us with justification of your position. These wasted 
employee hours were not the result of our complaint which could have been quickly and 
easily processed. 

Item 5 - 129

165



  
Item 3 in our 11-28-2016 statement. 
  
We were not concerned about the amount of the charge or that it was not paid. 
Typically, Ms. Hirashima understands and replies to a direct question, but not this time. 
Our questions were: Quote “This is simply a question about who can change the 
MMC’s? Can city employees change these code requirements?” Neither of these 
questions was answered. The response indicates that the department waived the fee. 
Which employee waived this fee and did this employee have the authorization to do so? 
We do not want their name and we do not want them punished if they acted 
inappropriately. Can city employees change the municipal codes that are approved by 
the city council and which we would assume the council would require employees to 
comply with? Is there a separate code that allows city employees to change any of the 
fees that are required by many codes in the MMC? For example can employees waive, 
reduce or increase any of the building permit fees? If the employee that waived this fee 
has the authorization to do so then they acted appropriately. If employees are granted 
the option of reducing fees specified in the MMC, is there a list of these employees? Is 
there a code that allows city employees to change these fees? Why not include a 
comment in the permit file stating that the fee was waived, why it was waived, who 
waived it and the code that allows such a change. Then our question would never have 
been necessary. 
  
We would like a response to each and every question that we present in this statement. 
If the city believes responses are not warranted, please supply us with the city’s 
reasons for refusing to answer our questions.     
  
We received Ms. Hirashima’s response and time line of events and Ms. Hirashima is 
aware of some of the facts about the processing of our complaint. We believe that her 
response is the council’s response. We will be emailing an abbreviated response to her 
statements and a similar, more complete, time line of these events to you and every 
council member. The majority of the comments to the council are from this statement to 
you. We would like you to answer the two questions in this other email that are 
addressed to you on page one. The other new information to you will be the time line 
that is in that email.   
  
We realize that this is a lengthy message that will require substantial effort on your part 
in order to complete a response. We understand that some of the questions might be 
answered by your staff, but we hope that you will read this message and approve their 
responses. We hope that a review of these facts will result in constructive changes, 
make you more aware of some of these existing problems as well as the many efficient, 
competent and helpful city employees. 
  
Sincerely yours, 
  
Evan and Patricia Kaiser 
 

Item 5 - 130

166



 
 EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 

1049 State Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 
(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 

 
 

 

February 3, 2017 

 

Evan and Patricia Kaiser 
2910 73rd Avenue NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 
 
Subject: 11 page email to Mayor Nehring sent 1/11/17 

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Kaiser: 

I am responding to the email sent to Mayor Nehring 1/11/17.  The email was quite long and presented 

many questions and comments.  As staff to the Mayor, he has asked me to respond to some of your 

concerns, many of which relate to code language and questions under the purview of the Community 

Development Department.    I have consulted with staff, and further reviewed sections of the code that 

you highlighted in your email.  Again, as in previous correspondence with you, I am not answering every 

one of your questions, instead focusing on a few of the repeated themes from this email and prior 

correspondence.  Marysville citizens expect response on  a wide expanse of issues and our organization 

has collectively (between multiple CD staffers, Clerk’s staff, Mayor’s staff, Council) spent well over a 

hundred hours responding to your flag concerns and while some of your concerns have been identified 

for action & response, on other items we disagree and do not propose any response or action.  

 

Many of your questions relate to interpretation of the Unified Development Code (Title 22) and 

potential contradictions within referenced codes.  You raised concerns about 22C.160.070 Prohibitions 

(Signs) contradicting 22A.020.200 and 22C.160.080.   Title 22C.160 relates to Signs.  The stated purpose 

of Title 22C.160, is as follows “22C.160.010 Purpose.  The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the 

reasonable display of signs necessary for public service or the conduct of business. . .”   After reviewing 

your questions and familiarizing myself with the code language, it is my opinion that flags on residential 

properties, not displayed for either public service or the conduct of business are not covered, or 

intended to be covered, by Title 22C.160 Sign Code.  I disagree with the contention that flags on 

residential properties are subject to the Sign Code at all.  Staff at CD have taken a more conservative 

interpretation than I would, by choosing to read residential flags as an exemption to the Sign Code, 

subject to permit requirements.   In my view, after reading the overarching purpose of the sign code, I 

would not have interpreted residential flags as being covered by the sign code at all.  They are not flown 

for the conduct of business and therefore Title 22C.160 should not apply.   

 

So, in some sense, I agree with you.  You have raised that sections 22C.160.070, 22A.020.200, and 

22C.160.080 are contradictory.  They are if you believe residential flags are covered by Title 22C.160.  

Item 5 - 131

167



They are not contradictory, if you are of my position, which is that Title 22C.160 does not cover flags 

flown on residential properties.  Title 22A.020.200 then is consistent with that reading and poses no 

contradiction. 

 

Consistent with their interpretation, staff worked with the neighboring properties to bring the signs in 

violation of this code interpretation into compliance.  This would have been required whether or not the 

flags are believed to be subject to Title 22C.160, as the structure did not meet required setbacks for an 

accessory structure.   Consistent with their interpretation that residential flags are subject to the Sign 

Code, they are currently working with the Planning Commission to revise the Sign Code and related 

sections.  I have attached the Planning staff report that relates to these sections.   

 

You have asked many questions related to permit process and review.  After reviewing the various 

sections of the Sign Code more thoroughly, I now disagree entirely that any permit should have been 

required at all for the residential flag.  As a result, I do not have a response to whether proper process 

was followed relating to the building permit, because I do not think CD staff should have required a 

permit for this particular use.  I do still agree that the flag is an accessory structure, subject to setbacks, 

and height restrictions.  CD staff properly applied setbacks to the relocated flagpole.  CD staff also 

properly applied height review as indicated by Mr. Koenig’s response to you on 1/17/17.   

 

You have asked for a response to the question -Can city employees change code requirements or 

MMC’s?  The answer to that is no.  Code that is adopted by ordinance can only be changed by the City 

Council.  However, as identified in my responses, staff can interpret code, and because codes are 

complex and there are multiple layers of code sections which can apply to a given situation, this requires 

that the staff and employees read and interpret code and if it is unclear, give weight and consideration 

to the stated purpose of the ordinance. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Gloria Hirashima 

Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

 

 

Item 5 - 132

168



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE: February 8, 2017    

 

TO: Planning Commission     

 

FROM: Angela Gemmer, Senior Planner  

 

 RE: 2016-17 Code Amendments – Flags and Flagpoles 

 

 CC: Dave Koenig, Community Development Director 

  Chris Holland, Planning Manager  

  Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner  

  Amy Hess, Associate Planner 

  

The following proposed amendments are to clarify what constitutes a flagpole as well as the 

applicable height and setback requirements. Also included in the amendments is a revision to 

the flag reference in the definition of “sign”, and the elimination of flags from the exemptions 

section of the sign code. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

22A.020.070 “F” definitions. 

 

 “Flagpole” a tall pole from which a flag hangs. 

 

22A.020.200 “S” definitions. 

 

“Sign” means any device, fixture, or placard that is visible from a public right-of-way 

or surrounding properties and uses graphics, symbols, logos, or written copy 

conveying a message or image and used to inform or attract the attention of the public, 

such as advertising or identifying an establishment, product, goods, service or activity. 

A sign may have multiple faces and advertise multiple on-premises establishments, 

businesses, products, services, or activities. This definition does not include any flag 

of any country, state or local jurisdiction. Unless the context clearly provides to the 

contrary, a “sign” as used in this chapter also includes the “sign structure.” 

RESIDENTIAL ZONES – HEIGHT  

22C.010.220 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 22C.010.080: 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, and 

utility line towers and poles. 

Item 5 - 133

169

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C010.html#22C.010.080


(3) Flagpoles may rise ten feet above the height limit, or five feet above the highest 

point of the roof, whichever is greater.   

RESIDENTIAL ZONES – SETBACKS 

22C.010.210 Setbacks – Projections allowed. 

Projections may extend into required setbacks as follows: 

(1) Fireplace structures including eaves and factory-built garden or bay windows may 

project into any setback, provided such projections are: 

(a) Limited to two per facade; 

(b) Not wider than 10 feet; and 

(c) Not more than 24 inches into a side setback or 30 inches into a front or rear 

setback; 

(2) Uncovered porches and decks, including stairs, which exceed 30 inches above 

the finished grade may project: 

(a) Eighteen inches into side setbacks; and 

(b) Five feet into the front or rear setback; 

(3) Uncovered porches and decks not exceeding 30 inches above the finished grade, 

and uncovered accessory structures such as radio antennas and dishes, mechanical 

equipment, play structures, and tennis courts, may project to the property line, 

provided that, with the exception of uncovered porches and decks, the front property 

line setback for the zone shall be observed; 

(4) Eaves may not project more than: 

(a) Twenty-four inches into a side setback; 

(b) Thirty-four inches into a front or rear setback; or 

(c) Eighteen inches across a lot line in a zero lot line development.  

(5) Accessory structures such as flagpoles and lampposts shall be setback a 

minimum of five feet from all property lines, provided 

(a) They are not located within a utility or access easement, and; 

(b) Flags are not displayed in a manner that would cause the flag to encroach 

onto a neighboring property. 

 

 

COMMERCIAL ZONES 

 

22C.020.190 Height – Exceptions to limits. 

The following structures may be erected above the height limits of MMC 

22C.020.080(2): 

(1) Roof structures housing or screening elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans 

or similar equipment required for building operation and maintenance; and 

(2) Fire or parapet walls, skylights, chimneys, smokestacks, church steeples, 

flagpoles and utility line towers and poles. 

 

 

SIGN CODE 

 

22C.160.080 Exemptions. 

The following signs are exempted from obtaining a sign permit, but must comply with 

all other requirements of this chapter and with the specific requirements set forth 

below for each type of sign: 

(1) A change in the face of the sign or advertising copy of an existing, legally 

permitted, sign. 

Item 5 - 134

170

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C020.html#22C.020.080


(2) Temporary and special event signs meeting the requirements of MMC 

22C.160.230. 

(3) On-premises and portable commercial or real estate signs meeting the 

requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(5) and (6). 

(4) Political signs meeting the requirements of MMC 22C.160.230(7). 

(5) Nonelectric signs not exceeding four square feet per face, which are limited in 

content to the name of occupant and address of the premises in a residential zone. 

(6) Instructional signs, not exceeding six square feet per sign; provided, that 

foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of the sign and 

electrical connection require construction permits. 

(7) Menu signs. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other structural support of 

the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

(8) Seasonal decorations. Reasonable seasonal decorations within an appropriate 

holiday season or during a festival are exempt from this section as long as such 

displays are removed promptly at the end of the holiday season or festival. 

(9) Sculptures, fountains, benches, lighting, mosaics, murals, landscaping and other 

street furniture and design features, which do not incorporate advertising or 

identification. 

(10) Signs not visible from public way. Exterior and interior signs or displays not 

intended to be visible from streets or public ways, signs in the interior of a building 

more than three feet from the closest window and not facing a window, window 

displays and point of purchase advertising displays such as vending machines. 

(11) The flag, emblem or insignia of a nation or other governmental unit or nonprofit 

organization, subject to the guidelines concerning their use set forth by the 

government or organization which they represent. Flag poles require a construction 

permit for structural review. 

(1112) Traffic or other municipal signs, signs required by law or emergency 

services, railroad crossing signs, legal notices, and any temporary signs specifically 

authorized by the city council or authorized under policies and procedures adopted by 

the city council. 

(1213) Signs of public utility companies indicating danger or which serve as an aid 

to public safety or which show the location of underground facilities or of public 

telephones. 

(1314) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings, stained glass windows and 

dates of erection when cut into the surface of the facade of the building or when 

projecting not more than two inches. 

(1415) Incidental signs, including, but not limited to, “no trespassing,” “no 

dumping,” “no parking,” “private,” signs identifying essential public needs (i.e., 

restrooms, entrance, exit, telephone, etc.) and other information warning signs, which 

shall not exceed three square feet in surface area. 

(1516) Flush-mounted wall signs which are used to identify the name and address 

of the occupant for each dwelling, provided the sign does not exceed two square feet 

in sign area. 

(1617) Gateway entrance signs. Gateway entrance signs that comply with the city 

of Marysville gateway master plan. Foundation, anchorage, attachments and other 

structure support of the sign and electrical connection require construction permits. 

Staff respectfully requests that Planning Commission make a recommendation of approval of 

the flags and flagpoles amendments to City Council for adoption by Ordinance. 

 

Item 5 - 135

171

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160.230


Index #6
 

172



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: April 10, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Professional Services Agreement with X for Design of the State Avenue Widening Project 
from 100111 St NE to 116111 St NE 
PREPARED BY: DTRVPROVAL: 
Jeff Laycock, City Engineer 

DEPARTMENT: 
Engineering 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
Professional Services Agreement 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

30500030.563000, R1601 $X 

SUMMARY: 

On January 14, 2017, the City advertised a Request for Proposals, asking firms to submit written 
proposals stating their qualifications to provide consultant services related to the State A venue 
Widening project from lOOth St NE to l 16tli St NE. The City received proposals from eight firms 
and selected HDR, Perteet, and Gray and Osborne to participate in an interview selection process 
Interviews were conducted on March 3, 2017. Following the interviews, the consultant selection 
committee concluded that X was the most qualified firm for the project. 

The attached Professional Services Agreement (PSA) will provide the City with design, 
permitting and right-of-way services for the project. It is in staffs opinion that the negotiated fee 
of $X is fair and consistent with industry standard. The design and right-of-way is funded in part 
by the Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) . TIB's contribution towards the project design 
and right-of-way acquisition is $1,270,832. 

The scope of services included with the PSA demonstrates a clear approach in order to complete 
the design, permitting and right-of-way services associated with the project. Staff is confident 
that the City will be well served by X as it relates to this project. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign and execute a Professional Services 
Agreement for the State Avenue Widening Project from 100111 St NE and 116111 St NE, between the 
City of Marysville and X in the amount of $X. 

Item 6 - 1

173



Index #7
 

174



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  4/10/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Resolution Designating Agent to Accept Claims for Damages 

PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  

Jon Walker, City Attorney  

DEPARTMENT:   

Legal 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Resolution 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:  

  

SUMMARY:   
 
RCW 4.96.020 to requires the governing body of each local government entity to appoint 
an agent to receive any claim for damages made pursuant to Chapter 4.96 RCW.  Such a 
claim is required before a person may file a lawsuit against the city.  The Council 
previously designated the City Clerk as the agent to receive claims for damages.  
Specifying that deputy clerks are also designated and giving the Clerk authority to 
designate other appropriate city employees would provide flexibility when the Clerk or 
her deputies are not available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the Council consider approving the resolution updating the agent to receive 
claims for damages. 
 

Item 7 - 1

175



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE APPOINTING THE CITY 
CLERK AS THE AGENT TO RECEIVE CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES PURSUANT 
TO RCW 4.96.020. 

WHEREAS, RCW 4.96.020 requires the governing body of each local government entity 
to appoint an agent to receive any claim for damages made pursuant to Chapter 4.96 RCW; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council previously adopted Resolution 2209 recorded July 13, 
2012, Snohomish County Recording No. 201207130817; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2209 designated the City Clerk as the designated agent to receive all 
claims for damages; and 

WHEREAS, the Council wishes to provide the City Clerk with flexibility to designate her 
deputies to receive claims for damages and to designate other appropriate City employees in the event 
neither she nor any Deputy City Clerk is available; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON AS FOLLOWS. 

Section 1.  The Marysville City Clerk shall be the designated agent for the City to receive 
all claims for damages pursuant to Chapter 4.96 RCW. Such claims may be served upon the City 
Clerk during normal business hours at Marysville City Hall, 1049 State Avenue, Marysville, 
Washington 98270. 

Section 2.  If the City Clerk is not available during normal business hours, a Deputy City 
Clerk or the City Clerk’s designee is appointed as the agent to receive claims for damages. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall be recorded with the Snohomish County Auditor as 
required by RCW 4.96.020(2).  

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of 
____________________, 2017. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

By 
JON NEHRING, MAYOR 

Attest: 

By 
APRIL O’BRIEN, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

Item 7 - 2

176



 

 

Approved as to from: 
 
By        

JON WALKER, CITY ATTORNEY 

Item 7 - 3

177


	Agenda
	1
	Item 1
	2
	Item 2
	3
	Item 3
	4
	Item 4
	5
	Item 5
	ab cover 4-3 2016 code clean-up
	alternative flagpole heights - addition to 4-3 agenda item
	Item 14
	2
	3


	6
	Item 6
	7
	Item 7



